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is listed on the London Stock Exchange and 1s a member of the
FTSE 250 share index. it 1s aleading international business-to-business
media group focused primarily on the international finance, metals
and commodities sectors.

The group publishes more than 70 titles in both print and online, including
Euromoney, Institutional investor and Metaf Bulletin, and 15 a leading provider
of electronic research and data under the BCA Research, Ned Davis Research
and ISI Emerging Markets brands. It also runs an extensive portfolio of
conferences, seminars and training courses for financial markets

The group’s main offices are in London, New York, Montreal and Hong Kong
and more than a third of 1ts revenues are derived from emerging markets

“We have continued, and will continue, to invest across
the business to drive organic growth and through
selective acquisitions. The five businesses acquired
since the beginning of last year build on our existing
strengths but also take us into exciting new sectors.

First quarter trading in the new financial year is in
line with the board’s expectations and sentiment
in financial markets remains broadly positive. This
encourages us to believe that we can continue to
grow our revenues and gives us confidence that
our investment programme for the digital
transformation of our businesses, in

particular via the Delphi content

management system, is the right

strategy to pursue.”

Richard Ensor

Chairman
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Highlights

Revenue

£404.7m

Operating Profit

£105.6m

Profit before tax

£95.3m

Diluted Earnings per Share

56.7p

Net debt

£9.9m

* See reconchation of Consolidated Income
Statement to adjusted results on page 7

Ad|usted Operating Profit*

£121.1m

Adjusted Profit before Tax*

£116.5m

Adjusted Diluted Earnings per Share*

71.0p

Diwvidend

22.75p
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Our Divisions

Activities

FINANCIAL
PUBLISHING

Revenue

£75.6m

BUSINESS
PUBLISHING

Revenue

£68.9m

CONFERENCES
AND SEMINARS

Revenue

£99.4m

Financial publishing includes an extensive portfolio of titles
covering the international capital markets as well as a number of
specialist financial titles. Products include magazines, newsletters,
journals, surveys and research, directories, and books.

A selection of the company’s leading financial brands includes Euromoney, Institutional
Investor, EuroWeek, Latin Finance, Asiamoney, Global Investor, Project Finance, Air
Finance and the hedge fund title EuroHedge

The business publishing division produces print and online
information for the metals and mining, legal, telecoms and
energy sectors.

its leading brands include Metal Bulletin, American Metal Market, International Financial
Law Rewview, International Tax Review and Managing Inteflectual Property, Capacity,
Petroleum Economist, World Oif and Hydrocarbon Processing

The group runs a large number of sponsored conferences and
seminars for the international financial markets, mostly under
the Euromoney, Institutional Investor, Metal Bulletin and IMN
brands.

Many of these conferences are the leading annual events in their sector and provide
sponsors with a high quality programme and speakers, and outstanding networking
opportunities Such events indude Euromoney’s Covered Bond Congress, the Global
Borrowers and Investors Forum, the Annual Global Hedge Fund Summit, the European
Airfinance Conference, and Global ABS and ABS East for the asset-backed securities
market iIn the commodities sector, events include Metal Bulletin's International Ferro
Alfoys conference and the world's leading annual coal conferences, Coaltrans and
Coaltrans Asma, TelCap runs International Telecoms Week, the worldwide meeting
place for telecom carrers and service prowviders, and MIS runs a leading event for the
information secunty sector in the US, infoSec World
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Group revenue

£404.7m
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GROUP REVENUE SPLIT
Finaricial publishing 19%
Business publishing 17%
Conferences and serinars 25%

» For more information go to the Training 7%

Strategic report on pages 8-29

TRAINING

Revenue

£30.1m

RESEARCH
AND DATA

Revenue

£131.4m

Research and data 32%

The training division runs a comprehensive range of banking,
finance and legal courses, both public and in-house, under the
Euromoney and DC Gardner brands.

Courses are run all over the world for both financial institutions and corporates In
addition the company’s Boston-based subsidiary, MIS, runs a wide range of courses for
the audit and information securnity market

The group provides a number of subscription-based research and
data services for financial markets.

Montreal-based BCA Research is one of the world's leading independent providers of
global macro economic research In 2011, the group expanded its independent research
actvities with the acquisition of US-based Ned Dawvis Research, a leading provider of
independent financial research to institutional and retall investors The company’s US
subsidiary, internet Securities, Inc provides the world’s most comprehensive service for
news and data on global emerging markets under the Emerging Markets Information
Service (EMIS) brand, and includes CEIC, one of the leading prowiders of time-series
macro-economic data for emerging markets The group also offers global capital market
databases through a venture with its partner, Dealogic {Holdings) plc

Strategic Report
Nuvannow
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Chairman’s Statement

Richard Ensor

Highlights

Euromoney institutional Invester PLC, the
international onhne nformation and events
group, achieved a record adjusted profit before
tax of £116 5 millkon for the year to September
30 2013, agamnst £106 8 millon in 2012
Adjusted diluted earrungs per share were 71 Op
(2012 659p) The directors recommend a 7%
Increase In the final dwvidend to 15 75p, giving a
total for the year of 22 75p {2012 21 75p), to
be paid to shareholders on February 13 2014

Total revenues for the year increased by
3% to £4047 milllon Underlying revenues,
excluding acquisttions, ncreased by 1%
Headline subscription revenues increased by 3%
to £206 3 million, after a flat first half, and again
accounted for just over half of group revenues

The adjusted operating margin was unchanged
at 30% While the operating margins of some
divsions have come under pressure, this has

been offset by savings on central costs Costs
and margins remanned tightly controlled
throughout the year and, as highlighted In
previous announcements, the group has
continued to invest N technology and new
products as part of its online growth strategy

Net debt at September 30 was £99 million
compared with £381 milion at March
31 and £30 8 million last year-end The group’s
net debt Is at 1ts lowest level since the acguisition
of Institutional Investor in 1997 The group
spent £28 1 millon on four acquisitions during
the year, and since the year-end has put in place
a new 3160 mithon multi-credit faclity providing
headroom for a larger acquisiion If and when
the opporturity arises

The board believes the Capital Appreciation Plan
(CAP), the group's long-term incentive scheme
designed to retain and reward those who drve
profit growth, has been an important driver of

the fivefold increase in the group’s profits since
it was first introduced 1n 2004 Accordingly,
subject to shareholder approval at the AGM in
January 2014, the board proposes to ntroduce
a new CAP, CAP 2014, which will be structured
along similar lines to CAP 2010

As highlighted in previous trading updates, the
profitability of banks and asset managers has
impraved during 2013, particularly in the US
However, continuing litigation against banks,
often leading to sigrificant financial settlements,
combined with increasing regulation and
demands for stronger capital bases, continues
to put pressure on the profits of the banking
industry As a result, the broadly positive outlook
for markets and economic growth I1s taking time
to translate into a recovery in the spending of
financial institutions on marketing, traiming and
information buying
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Strategy

The group’s strategy remains the bullding of
a robust and tightly focused global online
information business with an emphasis on
emerging markets This strategy 15 being
executed through increasing the proportion of
revenues derived from electronic subscription
products, investing In technology to drive the
online migration of the groups products as
well as developing new electromc information
services, bulding large, must-attend annual
events, maintaining products of the highest
quality, eliminating products with a low margin
or too high a dependence on print advertising,
matntaining tight cost control at all times,
retaining and fostenng an entrepreneunal
culture, and using a healthy balance sheet and
strong cash flows to fund selective acquisitions

Acquisitions remain a key part of the group’s
strategy Four were completed in the year and
another post year-end In December, the group
acquired TTWanguard, a private membership
orgarusation for executives who lead technology
innovation, providing an  opportunity  for
tnstitutional Investor to apply its expertise
in bulding global subscription membership
organisations to a new sector In Apnl the
group acquired CIE, Australia’s Jeading prowider
of investment forums for senior executives of
superannuation funds and asset management
firms Combimng CIE with the expertise and
relationships of Institutional Investor’s forums
and membership business has extended the
group's coverage of the asset management
events sector 10 a key geographic market

The acquisition of Insider Publisting in March
enhanced the group’s position In the insurance
and rensurance sector and provides a strong
complementary fit with its other reinsurance
utle, Reactions At the end of September the
group completed the acquisition of HSBC's
Quantitative  Techmiques  operation, the
benchmark and calculation agent business of
HSBC Bank plc The business has been rebranded
Euromoney Indices and the group believes the
acquisition creates an exciting opportunity to
establish a significant footprint in the attractive

index compilation market Fally, at the end of
October, the group completed the acquisition
of Infrastructure Journal, a leading information
source for the nternational nfrastructure
markets By combiring the deals database
and news coverage of Infrastructure Journal
with the deals analysis, awards and events of
Euromoney’s Project Finance, the group aims to
create the market's most comprehensive online
infrastructure information provider

All of these transactions were consistent with
the group’s strategy of investing n online
subscription  and  events  businesses which
will benefit from its globa! reach, marketing
expertise and content platforms, and the group
will continue to use its robust balance sheet and
strong cash flows to pursue further acquisitions
in 2014

Driving revenue growth from new products
15 another key part of the group’s strategy
The group has continued to tnvest heavily In
technology and content delivery platforms,
particularly for the mobile user, and In new digital
products as part of its transition to an onhine
information business New products launched

in the year included Steeffirst, a specialised
online news, pricing and analysis service for the
steel markets, Institutional Investor’s Sovereign
Wealth Center, a premium digital research tool
designed to provide a detaled understanding
of sovereign wealth fund investment strategies,
and Petroleum Economist's interactive digital
maps covering global energy infrastructure

In addtion, the group has continued the
development of 1ts new platform for authoring,
stonng and delivenng 1ts content (Project
Delphi), with a view to both improving the
qualty of s existing subscription products
and increasing the speed to market of new
digital information services [nally the Delphi
platform will be used to transform BCAS
content into a fully integrated online research
service, iIncluding personalised content and
alerts, dynarmic and interactive charts, semantic
search and a research dashboard to track
research themes, investment recommendations
and trades Delph: 15 also being used to upgrade
the group’s Global Capital Markets products,
including EuroWeek, through improved search,
more data feeds and new transaction and data
products, staring with the launch of a new

Mrarninow

Chatrman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

continued

service covenng the Renminbt debt market
The Delphi platform 1s expected to be ready for
launch in the second quarter of financial year
2014 The total expected capital investment in
Project Delphr 15 £9 4 million, of which £6 1
million was spent in 2013, with a further £2 7
million expected to be incurred to complebon
The cost of this project will be amortised over a
four-year period

Capital Appreciation Plan

The CAP Is the group’s long-term incentive
scheme designed to retain and reward those
who drive profit growth and 1s an integral
part of the group’s successful growth and
investment strategy

After satisfying the profit target under CAP
2010, the fust 50% of CAP 2010 awards
vested in February 2013, sabsfied by the 1ssue
of approximately 175 millon new ordinary
shares and a cash payment of £7 5 milion
The second 50% of CAP 2010 awards, to the
extent the additional performance test has been
satisfied, will vest in February 2014 and lead to
the issue of a similar number of new shares and
cash distribution

The board, supported by its Remuneration
Committee, believes the CAP has been an
inportant dniver of the fivefold increase In
the group's profits since it was first introduced
In 2004 Accordingly, subject to shareholder

approval at the AGM in January 2014, the
board proposes to introduce a new CAP CAP
2014, which will have a similar structure and
cost to CAP 2010 The prmary performance
test under CAP 2014 will require the group
to achieve an adjusted profit before tax (and
before CAP expense) of £1736 million by
financial year 2017, equivalent to an average
profit growth rate of at least 10% a year from
a base of £118 6 millon* in 2013 This profit
target would be adjusted in the event of any
significant acquisiions or disposals durning the
CAP performance period CAP 2014 awards
would vest in three roughly equal tranches in
financial years 2018, 2019 and 2020, subject to
additional performance tests

tn accounting terms, CAP 2014 1s expected to
cost the group up to £41 milhon which will be
amortised over its six-year life, against a cost of
£30 million for CAP 2010 over its four-year life
A maximum of 3 5 million ordinary shares wall
be used to satisfy CAP 2014 rewards, with the
balance settled in cash The company intends
to acquire these shares in the market over the
course of the CAP performance period, rather
than through the issue of new shares

Further detals of the proposed terms of
CAP 2014 will be included in the arcular
to shareholders to be 1ssued in December
in connection with the AGM to be held on
January 30 2014

Qutlook

First quarter trading has started in line with the
board's expectations As part of s strategy,
the group has Increased significantly the
proportion of revenues derved from less volatile
subscriptions, and from events Subscription
revenues, supported by deferred revenues
at the balance sheet date, should continue
to grow, whie the outlook for events and
training 15 reasonably robust However, the
sharp improvernent in fourth quarter financial
advertising has not continued nto the first
quarter of the new financial year As usual at
this time, forward revenue visibiity beyond the
first quarter 1s hoited for revenues other than
subscrptions

While sentment in finangial markets remains
reasonably positive, there 1s usually a lag between
their improved profitability and the appetite for
financial institutions to increase their spending
on marketing, training and information buying
Mast customer budgets are calendar year driven
50 1t 1s too early to determine whether this lag
will translate into increased spend in 2014

In 2014, the board plans to continue its
pragramme of investing n the dgital
transformatton of s publishing businesses, n
particular using the Delphi platform to improve
the qualty of its content and launch new
products The board 1s confidenit its strategy for
investing In new products and technology and
using s strong balance sheet to fund further
acgugtions will continue ve further
g

-

Richard Ensor
Chairman
November 13 2013

* The base profit for 201315 £118 & millon, besng the
adjusted profit before tax of £116 5 million before
CAP expense of £2 1 milien
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Appendix to Chairman’s Statement

Reconciliation of Consolidated Income Statement to adjusted results for the year ended September 30 2013
The reconciliation below sets out the adjusted results of the group and the related adjustments to the statutory income Statement that the directors
consider necessary in order 1o provide an indication of the adjusted trading performance

Adjust- 2013 Adjust- 202
Adjusted ments Total  Adjusted ments Total
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Total revenue 3 404,704 - 404,704 364,144 - 394,144
Operating profit before acquired intangible
amortisation, long-term incentive expense and
exceptional items 3 121,088 - 121,088 118,175 - 118,175
Acgquired intangible amartisation " - (15,890) (15,890) - (14,782) {14,782)
Long-term incentive expense (2,100) - (2,100) (6,301) - (6,301}
Exceptional items 5 - 2,232 2,232 - (1,617) (1,617}
Operating profit before associates 118,988  (13,658) 105,330 111,874  (16,399) 95,475
Share of results in associates 284 - 284 459 ~ 459
Operating profit 119,272 (13,658) 105,614 112,333 (16,399) 95,934
Finance income 7 1,830 - 1,830 1,500 2,975 4,475
Finance expense 7 {4,575) {7.609) {12,184) (7,064) (377) (8,041}
Net finance costs {(2,745) {7.609) (10,354) (5.564) 1,998 (3,566}
Profit before tax 116,527 (21,267} 95,260 106,769  (14,401) 92,368
Tax expense on profit 8 {25.241) 3,006 (22,235) (23,359) 831 (22,528}
Profit after tax 91,286 (18,261) 73,025 83,410 {13,570) 69,840
Attributable to
Equity hotders of the parent 90,884  (18,261) 72,623 83,242 (13,570) 69,672
Equity non-controlling interests 402 - 402 168 - 168

91,286 (18,261) 73,025 83,410 {13,570) 69,840

Diluted earnings per share 10 7096p (14 26)p 56.70p 6591p (10 74)p 5517p
Adjusted figures are presented before the impact of amortisation of acquired intangible assets (compnsing trademarks and brands, databases and
customer relationships), exceptional items, movements in acquisiton deferred consideration, and net movements in acquisiion commitment values In

respect of earnings, adjusted amounts reflect a tax rate that includes the current tax effect of the goodwill and intangible assets

Further analysis of the adjusting items 1s presented in notes 5, 7, 8, 10 and 11 to the Annual Report

Chairman’s Statemen

Nuvannaw
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Strategic Report

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC 1s listed
on the London Stock Exchange and a member
of the FTSE 250 share index It 1s a leading
international business-to-business media group
focused primanly on the international finance,
metals and commodities sectors It publishes
more than 70 titles in both print and online,
including  Euromoney, Institutronal  Investor
and Metal Bulfetin, and 1s a 'eading provider
of electronic research and data under the BCA
Research, Ned Dawvis Research and ISI Emerging
Markets brands It also runs an extensive
portfolio of conferences, seminars and training
courses for financial and other markets The
group’s main offices are in tondon, New York,
Montreal and Hong Kong and more than a
third of 1ts revenues are derved from emerging
markets Details of the group’s legal entities can
be found In note 13

The Strategic Report has been prepared for the
group as a whole and therefore gives greater
emphasis to those matters which are sigruficant
to Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC and
its subsicdiary undertakings when wviewed as a
whole It has been prepared solely to provide
additional information to shareholders to assess
the company’s strategy and the potential for
that strategy to succeed, and the Strategi
Report should not be relted upen by any other
party for any other purpose

1. Strategy

The group’s strategy s designed to buld a
growing, robust and tghtly focused global
information and events business To achieve this
strategy the four key objecuves are

¢ to drive organic growth,

® using a healthy balance sheet and strong
cash flows for selective acquisitions to
accelerate growth and build market share,

e to mamntain focus on high margins and
tight cost control, and

& toretain and foster entrepreneurial culture

Set out below 1s how the group intends to
achieve nts objectives, the related risks and
key performance indicators See page 22 for
detailed explanation of the group's principal nsks
and uncertainties and page 12 for the group’s
performance against its key performance
indicators
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1.1 Dnive organic growth
BUILDING ROBUST SUBSCRIPTION AND REPEAT REVENUES AND REDUCING THE DEPENDENCE ON ADVERTISING

Strateqic Repart

Stratoanu and Parfnrmanra

The group has increased the proportion of revenues denved from subscnption products to more than half of its total revenues and expects the proportion
of revenues denved from subscnptions to remain between 50% and 60% for the foreseeable future Subscription—based preducts, partcularly online have
the advantage of premium—pnces, high renewal rates and high margins

KEY RISKS KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

e  Downturn in economy or market sector e  Subscription revenue growth
®  Revenue mix — percentage of revenues from subscriptions
®  Product subscription retention rates

DRIVING TOP-LINE REVENUE GROWTH FROM BOTH NEW AND EXISTING PRODUCTS

Approximately two thirds of the group’s revenues are derived from its infermation activities including print and online content, databases and
research The other third 1s derived from events induding training Growth from these activities remains an integral part of the group’s overalt
strategy Since 2010, the group has been investing heavily in technology and content delivery platforms, particularly for the mobtle user, and in new
digital products as part of its transitton 1o an onhne information business

KEY RISKS KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
& Downturn In econormy or market sector ®  Revenue growth
®  Falure of online strategy ®  Like-for-like change in profits

e Percentage of revenues delvered onhne

USING TECHNQLOGY EFFICIENTLY TO ASSIST THE ONLINE MIGRATION OF THE GROUP’S PRINT PRODUCTS AND DEVELOP NEW
ELECTRONIC INFORMATION SERVICES

The group invests for the long-term n businesses and products that meet certain financial and strategic cnteria The group is investing heavily in its
program to migrate Its pnnt products online, develop new electronic information services, and to take advantage of mobile and doud technology

KEY RISKS KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATCRS

e Dataintegnty, avallability and security # Investment in technology and new products
e  Failure of central back-office technology ®  Online user engagement

e  Falure of online strategy ®  Product subscription retention rates

STRENGTHENING THE GROUP‘S MARKET POSITION IN KEY AREAS WHICH HAVE THE CAPACITY FOR ORGANIC GROWTH USING THE
EXISTING KNOWLEDGE BASE OF THE GROUP

The group has a global customer base with revenue derived from almost 200 countries, with approximately 60% from the US, Canada, UK and the
rest of Europe and more than a third of its revenue from emerging markets Its customer base predominantly consists of financial institutions,
governments, financial advisory firms, hedge fund organisations, faw firms, commodity traders, other corporate ergamsations and, for the group's
niche focused products, relevant corporate entities across the length of the respective supply chain The group has a sizeable and valuable marketing
database alfowing new and existing products to be matched with relevant comparnies and indwiduals

KEY RISKS KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
®  Travel nsk ® Revenue by customer location
& London, New York, Montreal or Hong Kong wide disaster ®  Revenue by market sector

e Downturn in economy or market sector
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Strategic Report

continued

1.2 Using a healthy balance sheet and strong cash flows for selective acquisitions to accelerate growth and build
market share

MAKING ACQUISITIONS THAT SUPPLEMENT THE GROUP’S EXISTING BUSINESSES AND DISPOSALS WHERE THEY NO LONGER FiT

While the market for acquisitions of specialist online information businesses remains competitive and valuations challenging, the group continues
10 use Its robust balance sheet and strong cash flows to pursue further transactions Equally, where businesses no longer fit, the group divests

KEY RISKS KEY PERFORMANCE {INDICATORS

®  Acquisitions and disposal nsk e Cash consideration on acquisitions
& Acqusitions TTWVanguard, Insider Publishing, Centre for lnvestor
Education and Quanttative Techniques

MANAGING ITS CASH FLOWS TO KEEP ITS DEBT WITHIN A NET DEBT TO EBITDA LIMIT OF THREE TIMES

The group has strong covenants and takes advantage of its ability to borrow money cheaply using these funds to invest in new products and fund
acquisitions  The group’s subscription revenues are normally received in advance, at the beginning of the subscription service, and a typical
subscniption contract would be for a 12-month penod This helps provide the group wath strong cash flows and normally leads to cash generated
from operations being In excess of adjusted operating profit — a cash conversion percentage in excess of 100%

KEY RISKS KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

®  Treasury operations &  Net debt to EBITDA
®  Cash conversion rate

1.3 Maintain focus on high margins and tight cost control
IMPROVING OPERATING MARGINS THROUGH TIGHT COST CONTROL
The group's costs are tightly managed with a constant focus on margin control The group benefits from having a flexible cost base, outsouraing
the pnnting of publications, hiring external venues for events, and choosing to engage freelancers, contributors, external trainers and speakers to
help delver its products Other than 1ts main offices, the group avoids the fixed costs of offices in most of the markets in which 1t operates This

allows the group to scale up resources or reduce overheads as the economic anvironment in which 1t operates demands The group continues to
eliminate products with a low margin or too high a dependence on print advertising

KEY RISKS KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

e  Downturn in economy or market sector ®  Gross margin
®  Adjusted operating margin

1.4 Retain and foster entrepreneurial culture
PROVIDING INCENTIVES TO FOSTER AN ENTREPRENEURIAL CULTURE AND RETAIN KEY PEQPLE
The board does not micro-manage each business, instead devolving operating deassions to the local management of each business, while taking

advantage of a strong central control environment for monitoring performance and underlying nsk This encourages an entrepreneurial culture
where businesses have the nght kind of support and managers are motivated and rewarded for growth and intiative

KEY RISKS KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

®  Loss of key staff ® Long-term Incentives (see section 3 3 6 of the Strategic Report)
® Variable pay as a percentage of total pay
e (AP profit and Adjusted PBT
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2. Business model

The group's actmvities are categonsed into
five operating dwisions Financial Publishing,
Business Publishing, Conferences and Seminars,
Training, and Research and Data (see page 2 for
further details) The group has many mutually
exclusive valuable brands (see page 3} allowing
the directors to extend the value of existing
products and to develop these In new areas
- both on a geographical basis and with new
products For example, publishing businesses
often run branded events and produce data
products covering therr area of specialism The
group has a sizeable and valuable marketing
database allowing new and existing products
1o be matched with relevant companies and
indwviduals

The group primarily generates revenues from
four revenue streams advertising, subscriptions,
sponsorship and delegates

Advertising revenues represent the fees that
customers pay to place an advertisement in one
or more of the group’s publications, either in
print or onlne Advertising revenue 1s prmanly
generated from the Financal Publishing and
Business Publishing divisions

Subscription  revenues are the fees that
customers pay to receive access to the group’s
information, through online access to vanous
databases, through regular delivery of soft copy
research, publications and newsletters or hard
copy magazines Subscriptions are also receved
from customers who belong to Institutional
lnvestor's exclusive specalised membership
groups  Subscripion  revenue 15 pnmarily
generated from the Financial Publishing,
Business Publishtng and Research and Data
dvisions

Sponsorship revenues represent fees pad by
customers to sponsor an event A payment
of sponsorship can enttle the sponsor to
high-profile  speaking opportunities at the
conference, umigue branding before, dunng and
after the event and an unparalleled netwaorking
opporturity to meet the sponsors chents
and representatives Sponsorship revenue 1s
generated from the Conferences and Seminars
dmsion and the pubhshing businesses which
run smaller events

Delegate revenues represent fees paid by
customers to attend a conference, traning
course or seminar Delegate revenues are
derived from the Conferences and Seminars and
Traiming dwsions and from smaller events run by
the publishing businesses

Detalls of the groups revenues by revenue
stream and by division are set out in note 3

The group’s costs are tightly managed with a
constant focus on margin control The group
benefits from having a flexible cost base,
outsourcing the printing of publications, hiring
external venues for events, and choosing to
engage freelancers, contributors, external
trainers and speakers to help deliver Its products
Other than its main offices, the group avoids the
fied costs of offices in most of the markets in
which it operates, this allows the group to scale
up resource or reduce overhead as the economic
environment in which 1t operates demands

Strategic Report

Ctratanu and Parfarmanea
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Strategic Report

continued

3. Business review
3.1 Key performance indicators
The group monitors its performance against its strategy using the following key perfermance indicators

Revenue Mix Revenue Mix Revenue
2013 2013 2012 2012 growth
fm % fm % %
Revenue growth and mix
Subscriptions 2063 51% 1997 51% +3%
Advertising 576 14% 58 4 15% (1%)
Sponsorship 514 13% 476 12% +8%
Delegates 778 19% 801 20% (3%)
Other/closed 123 3% 97 2% +27%
Foreign exchange losses on forward contracts 07) - {14) - -
4048 7 100% 3941 100% +3%
Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Year
% % % % %
Revenue growth by quarter
Subscriptions {3%) +3% +4% +9% +3%
Advertising {10%) (10%) (9%) +17% (1%)
Sponsorship +8% (3%) +9% +17% +8%
Delegates +1% (21%) +1% +11% (3%)
Other/closed +35% +21% +27% +25% +27%
+1% (3%) +2% +11% +3%
Revenue by type Revenue by customer focation Revenue by division
2013 2012 Change
Gross margin' 743% 75 1% (0 8%)
Adjusted operating margin? 299% 300% (01%)
Like-for-like change in profits® {£2 7m) £57m
Investment in technology and new products* £12 3m £100m £2 3m
Headcount® 2,142 2,133 9
Cash consideration on acquisitions® £28 1m £6 5m £21 6m
Net debt to EBITDA’ 0091 0271
Cash conversion rate® 88% 103%

Variable pay as a percentage of total pay® 32% 39%
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CAP profit" and Adjusted PBT"!

10

H

Gross margin gross profit as a percentage of revenue Gross profit and revenue are both as per note 4 in the financial statements
Adjusted operating margin operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation, long-term incentive expense, exceptional items and
associates as a percentage of revenue Operating profit and revenue are both as per the Consolidated Income Statement in the financial
statements

Like-for-like change 1n profits proportion of adjusted operating profit growth that refates to organic growth, rather than acquisitions
Adjusted operating profit 1s from continutng operations and excludes closed businesses, acguired intangible amortisation, exceptional items,
long-term incentive expense, unallocated corporate costs and interest and is adjusted for significant tming differences

Investment in technology and new products the group’s investment in technology and new digital products as part of its transition to
an online information business

Headcount number of permanent people employed at the end of the penod excluding pecple employed in associates

Cash constderation on acquisitions the total cash outflow on acquisition related activity In the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows net
of cash acquired

Net debt to EBITDA. the amount of the group's net debt (converted at the group’s weighted average exchange rate for a rolling 12 month
period) to earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and also before exceptional items but after the normat Jong-term incentive
expense

Cash conversion rate. the percentage by which cash generated from operations covers adjusted operating profit

Variable pay as a percentage of total pay staff incentives including bonuses, comrmissions and normal long-term incentive expense as a
percentage of total staff costs as per note 6 in the financial statements

CAP profit profit before tax excluding acquired intangible amortisation, long-term incentive expense, exceptional tems, net movements
in acquisition commitments values, imputed interest on acguisition commitments, movement m acquisition deferred consideration, foreign
exchange loss interest charge on tax equalisation contracts and foreign exchange on restructured hedging arrangements as set out in the
Consolidated Income Statement, note 5 and note 7

Adjusted PBT CAP profit after the deduction of long-term incentive expense as set out on page 7
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3.2 KPis explained
The key performance indicators are all within the board’s expectations and support its successful strategy These indicators are discussed in detail in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 6, and 1n section 3 3 below

3.3 Development of the business of the group

3.3.1 Trading review

Total revenues for the year increased by 3% to £404 7 milllon After a 1% decline in the first half, the headline rate of revenue growth improved to 6%
in the second, due to a combination of gradually improving markets and the contnibution from three acquisitions completed in the middle of the year
Underlying revenues, excluding acquisitions, increased by 1%

The group denves nearly two thirds of its total revenue in US dollars and movements in the sterling-US dollar rate can have a significant impact on
reported revenues However, currency movements in 2013 were not significant and headline revenue growth rates are similar to those at constant
currency (see table below)

Change at |
constant :
exchange i
2013 2012 Headline change rates
Revenues fm fm H1 M2 Year Year !
Subscnptions 2063 199 7 - 7% 3% 2%
Advertising 576 584 {10%} 5% (1%) (2%)
Sponsorship 514 476 2% 12% 8% 7%
Delegates 778 801 (10%:) 5% (3% {3%)
Other/closed 123 97 29% 26% 27% 27%
Foreign exchange losses on forward
contracts ©7) {14 - - - -
Total revenue 4047 3941 (1%) 6% 3% 2%
Less revenue from acquisitions (62) - - - - -

Underlying revenue 3985 3941 (2%) 4% 1% 1%
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Headline subscription revenues increased by
3% to £206 3 million, after a flat first half, and
again accounted for just over haff of group
revenues Underlying subscrniption revenues,
excluding acquisitions, Increased by 2% with
the strongest performances coming from CEIC
Data, the emerging markets data business, and
Institutional  Investor's membership  business
Revenues from independent research were
unchanged

After two years of decline, advertising revenues
returned to growth in the final quarter This was
largely driven by factors speafic to the quarter
new products and a tendency for advertising in
the main financial titles, Euromoney, institutional
Investor, Latin Finance and Asiamoney, to be
concentrated in therr IMF 1ssues published in
September This guarterly improvement I1s more
indicatve of product timing than a sustaned
improvement In advertising markets Over the
year, advertising fell across most of the group’s
uitles with Latin Finance, which celebrated its
25% anniversary, and the energy titles the only
significant exceptions

Event sponsorship revenues have continued to
grow from a combination of new events and
strong demand for emerging market events,
helped In the second half by the acquisitons
of Insider Publishing and CIE Paying delegate
attendance improved across most of the event
businesses, mostly due to new events The
first hatf decline in revenues was due to timing
differences on biennial events not held this year

Other revenues largely compnse content
redistribution foyalties and one-off content
sales Although only accounting for 3% of total
revenues, these revenues increased sharply as
the group continues to explore the possibilities
for alternative distribution channels for its
content

The group’s adwsted operating margin was
30%, the same as 2012 OQver the past four
years the group has consistently delivered
steady operating margins around the 30%
level Increased spend on technology and digital
products has reduced margins in the publishing
businesses, but has been largely offset by
changes in the dwisional mix towards higher
margin research and data products, as well as
ngorous cost control and a constant refreshing
of the portfolic with new products replacing
those with Jower margins The permanent
headcount at September 30 was 2,142 people,
including 38 from businesses acquired in the
year, against 2,133 a year ago

3.3.2 Business division review
Research and Data this division accounts for
a third of group revenues and, with its higher
margins, nearly 40% of group operating
profits before central costs Revenues are
derved predominantly from subscriptions
and increased by 1% 10 £1313 millien while
adjusted operating profits fell by 1% to
£54 8 milllon The trends seen in the first half
continued, with finangial institutions exercising
tight control over therr information buying and
new business difficult to generate In addition,
US sequestration had a negative impact In the
second half as customers including government
agenaies and kbraries were forced to cut costs
That apart, renewal rates for most products
remained robust, and more recently have shown
signs of improving

Financial Publishing revenues increased by
2% to £75 6 milion while adjusted operating
profits fell by 1% to £238 millon An
advertising-led rebound in the final quarter, and
a contnbution from tnsider Publishing, helped
offset first half weakness The 1% point decline
in the adjusted operating margin reflects the
continued Investment in the transition to a
digrtal first publishing model

Business Publishing the group's actvities
in the non-financial sectors of the market,
particutarly energy and telecoms, have proved
more robust, partly because they are less

dependent on advertising The growth achieved
in the first half continued into the second, with
revenues up 7% to £68 9 milhon and adjusted
operating profits 5% ahead at £25 8 mullion For
the first time, profits from business publishing
exceeded those from finangal publishing

Conferences and Seminars revenues comprise
both sponsorship and paying delegates and
increased by 5% 10 £99 4 million, despite the
tirming differences on biennial events in the first
half, and helped in the second by a contnbution
from CIE Growth was achieved across most
sectors and reflects both new events and more
robust US financial markets However, adjusted
operating profits fell by 4% to £28 9 million
and the dechine In adjusted operating margin 15
largely due to the event timing differences
Traiming the group's traming dwision
predominantly serves the globat financial sector
and banks have continued to tughtly control
headcount and training budgets Revenues felt
by 3% to £30 1 million, although performance
in the second half showed an improvement on
the first The decline in operating margin from
22% to 18% reftects the high operational
gearing in this business and adjusted operating
profits fell by 23% to £5 4 millen

3.3.3 Financial review

The adjusted profit before tax of £116 5 million
compares to a statutory profit before tax of £95 3
million A detailed reconciliation of the group's
adjusted and statutory results 1s set out on page
7 The stetutory profit 1s generally lower than
the adjusted profit before tax because of the
impact of acquired intangible amortisation and
non-cash movements in acquisiion habilies

A net exceptional credit of £2 2 million (2012
£1 6 millon charge) was recognised This
includes a credit of £4 4 million for negative
goodwill ansing from the valuation of intangibles
as part of the acquisition of Quanttative
Techniques, offset by acquisition, restructunng
and other exceptional costs of £2 2 miflien
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The reduction in long-term incentive expense
to £2 1 milion (2012 £6 3 million) reflects the
final cost of CAP 2010, which has now been
fully amortised after the performance test was
satisfied in 2011 and again in 2012

Adjusted net finance costs for the groups
committed borrowing facility fell by £2 8 milhon
to £2 7 million, reflecting lower debt levels
during the year The average cost of funds for
the year was 4 7% (2012 4 8%} Statutory
net finance costs of £10 4 million (2012 £3 6
milhion) include a charge of £4 7 mitlion for the
increase in deferred consideration payable on
two of the acquisitions completed in the year
which have performed better than expected
since acquisiton, and a charge of £2 7 milhon
largely due to the extension of the put option
agreement to acquire the outstanding minonty
interest In Ned Dawvis Research

The adjusted effective tax rate for the year was
22%, the same as 2012 The tax rate depends
on the geographic mix of profits and applicable
tax rates The group has benefited this year
from the reduction in the UK corporate tax
rate from 24% to 23%, although this was
offset by the expiry of the US tax deduction for
goodwill amortisation from the acquisitton of
Insttutional Investor 15 years ago The UK tax
rate wall fall further to 21% in Apnl 2014 and
20% in April 2015

The group continues to generate two thirds of
its revenues, including approximately 30% of
the revenues from its UK bustnesses, and more
than half its operating profits in US dollars
The group hedges its exposure to the US dollar
revenues in 1ts UK businesses by using forward
contracts to sell surplus US dollars This delays
the impact of movements in exchange rates for
at least a year

The group does not hedge the foreign exchange
nsk on the translation of overseas profits,
although 1t does endeavour 1o match foreign
currency borrowings with mvestrments and the
related foreign currency finance costs provide a
partial hedge agasnst the translation of overseas
profits The translaton impact on overseas
profits of a one cent movement In the average
US doliar exchange rate 15 approximately £0 6
million on an annuahsed basis The average
sterhng-US dollar rate for the year was $1 56
(2012 $158)

3.3.4 Net debt, cash flow and
dividend

Net debt at September 30 was £99 million
compared with £38 1 million at March 31 and
£30 8 milkon last year-end The group's debt is
provided through a dedicated multi-currency
committed faclity from its parent company,
Dally Mall and General Trust plc (DMGT} The
group has exercised its option to replace s
existng $300 milion (£190 mihon} faolity
with DMGT, which expires in December 2013,
with a new $160 miflion (£100 million)} facility
which expires at the end of April 2016 This new
facility will continue to provide funding for the
group’s acquisition strategy

Significant non-operating cash outflows n
the year mcluded four acquisitions with a net
cash cost of £28 1 million, dvidends of £27 2
million aganst £7 5 milllion in 2012 when a scrnip
dividend was offered, and capital investment in
Project Delptw of £6 1 million Cash generated
from operations fell by £16 0 million to £106 2
milhon and the operating cash conversion
rate was 88% (2012 103%) The reduction
in operaung cash flow and operating cash
conversion was due 1o cash payments in 2013
In respect of long-term mcentive costs and profit
shares which were expensed in 2012 or earlier
The underlying operating cash conversion rate,
after adjusting for these timing differences, was
unchanged at 103%

The company’s policy 15 to distnbute a third of its
after-tax earnings by way of dividends each year
Pursuant to this policy, the board recommends a
final dwvidend of 15 75p a share 2012 14 75p}
gving a total dvidend for the year of 22 75p a
share (2012 21 75p) As explained in previous
announcements, foliowing the earlier than
expected achievement of the CAP 2010 profit
target an additional accelerated CAP expense of
£6 6 milllon was not charged against earnings
for dwidend purposes In 2011, but 1s being
spread over the penod to which 1t oniginally
related Accordingly, earnings for dvidend
purposes were reduced by £1 1 million in 2012
and by £3 9 milon 1in 2013, and will be similarly
reduced by £1 6 million in 2014

It 15 expected that the final dividend wili be paid
on February 13 2014 to shareholders on the
register at November 22 2013
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3.3.5 Balance Sheet
The main movements in the balance sheet were as follows
2013 2012 Change
£m fm im
Goodwill and other intangible assets 5056 469 3 363
Property, plant and equipment 168 180 (12)
Acguisition commitments and deferred consideration (31 1) {7 9) (23 2)
Liability for cash-settled options (7 4) (14 1) 67
Deferred income (117 3) (105 1) (12 2)
Other non-current assets and liabilities 13 (48} 35
Other current assets and habihties (69) (22 3} 154
Net pension defiat (29) (4 8) 19
Deferred tax (11 B) {9 6) 22)
Net assets before net debt 3437 3187 250
Net debt (99) (30 8) 209
Net assets 3338 2879 459

These movements are explained befow

Goodwill and other intangible assets — includes £25 3 milion of goodwll and £23 4 milkion of acquired intangible assets following the
acquisitions during the year of TTiAVanguard, Insider Publishing, Centre for Investor Education (CIE) and Quantitative Techniques (QT) (see note 14)
and the addition of £6 1 millon of intangible assets in development, offset by amortisation costs of £15 9 million,

Property, plant and equipment — regular capital expenditure across the group of £2 7 million offset by depreciaton of £3 9 million,
Acquisition commitments - increased by £7 2 million to £15 0 million, deferred consideration increased by £16 0 million to £16 1 million - due
to the acquisitions of TTIAanguard, Insider Publishing and CIE and an mcrease in the Ned Dawis Research (NDR) acquisition commitment following
the amended acquisition agreement for the remaining equity shareholding,

Liability for cash settled options — reflecting the cash payment of £7 6 million following the vesting of the first tranche of the cash element of
CAP 2010 in February 2013, '

Deferred income — due to balances brought into the balance sheet following this year's acquisitions and an underlying increase in deferred
subscription revenue, mainty from NDR as it continues t© move clients onto subscription contracts,

Other current assets and liabilities — includes an increase in trade debtors and accrued subscnption income aiso due to balances brought into
the balance sheet following the acquisitions together with the impact from NDR as 1t moves dients onto subscription contracts Prepayments
increased as deferred consideration was paid in advance into escrow following the acquisitions of Insider Publishing and CIE Accruals fell, with
lower profit shares and bonuses following the death of Padraic Fallon in October 2012,

Net pension deficit - a £2 8 million increase in the pension asset value offset by a £0 9 million increase in the obligation,

Net debt — the DMGT loans reduced by the group’s excess cash net cash generated by the group from operations of £106 1 millicn offset by
£31 6 milion used in investing activities, £33 4 million spent on finanang activities {excluding repayment of loans), £19 2 mifion on tax and an
exchange loss of £1 0 millign, (see cash flow on page 82)
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3.3.6 Capital Appreciation Plan
(caP)

The CAP the group’s long-term incentive
plan, remains an important part of the group’s
remuneration strategy it 15 a highly geared,
performance-based share option scheme
which both directly rewards executives for
the growth in profits of the businesses they
manage, and links to the delivery of shareholder
value by satisfying rewards in a mix of shares
in the company and cash It aims to deliver
exceptional profit growth over the performance
period and for this profit to be maintained over
the remaining payout period The graph set
out In the Directors’ Remuneratton Report on
page 49 shows the groups profit achieved
since the introduction of the CAP scheme
Further details are set out in the Company Share
Schemes section in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report

3.3.7 Acquisitions and disposals
Acquisttions remain an inportant part of the
group’s growth strategy [n particular the board
believes that acquisitions are valuable for taking
the group into new sectors, for bringing new
technologies into the group and for Increasing
the group’s revenues and profits by buying mto
rapidly growing niche businesses The group
continues to look for strategic acquisitions
which will fit well with its existing businesses

Acquisitions

Purchase of new business

TTt Technelagies, LLC (TTW/Vanguard)
On December 21 2012, the group acquired
87 2% of the equity of TTlWanguard, a
US-hased private membership orgamisation for
executives who lead technology innovation
in global organisations, for US$8,063,000
(£5,031,000) followed by a working capital
adjustment of £91,000 in June 2013 The
acquisition of TTlWanguard 1s consistent with
the group’s strategy of acquinng high-quality
events businesses and accelerating their growth
globally

The remaining 12 8% equity holding will be
acquired in two instalments of 7 4% n March
2014 based on a pre-determmed multiple of the
profits for the year to December 31 2013 and
5 4% in March 2015 based on a pre-determined
multiple of the profits for the year to December
31 2014 The total discounted amount that the
group expects to pay at September 30 2013
under the earn-out agreement 15 US$678,000
(£418,000} calculated using the group’s WACC

Insider Publishing

On March 19 2013, the group acquired 100%
of the equity share caprtal of Insider Publistung
Lmited, a leading information source and
events provider for the international insurance
and retnsurance markets, for an wibal cash
consideration of £14,148,000, followed by a
working capital adjustment of £2,549,000 In
June 2013 The acquisition 1s consistent with the
group’s strategy of investing In specialist online
information businesses and using 1ts global
reach to drive further growth
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At acquisition a  discounted  deferred
consideration of £8,342,000 was recognised In
May 2013, deferred consideration of £251,000
was paid and the remaining discounted deferred
consideration of £8,091,000 was expected
to be paid between March 2014 and March
2015 dependent upon the audited results of
the business for the average of the 2013 and
2014 calendar years The discounted expected
payment under this mechanism increased
to £11,081,000 at September 30 2013
resulting In a charge to the Income Statement
of £2,990,000 At the date of acqusition,
£2,400,000 of the deferred consideration was
pald in advance into escrow

Centre for Investor Education (CIE}

On April 18 2013, the group acquired 75% of
the trade and assets of CIE, a leading Australian
pronder of investment forums for semor
executives of superannuation funds and global
asset management firms, for A$10,800,000
(£7,415,000) offset by a working capital
adjustment receipt of £929,000 in July 2013
By combiming CIE with the expertise and
relationships of Institutional Investor's forums
and memberships, the group expects to
consoldate 1ts leading position In the global
asset management events sector

A discounted deferred consideration  of
A$5,586,000 (£3,835,000) was expected to

be paid between March 2014 and March 2015
dependent upon the audited results of the
business for the 2013 and 2014 calendar years
The expected payment under this mechanism
increased to A%$8,737,000 (£5,044,000) at
September 30 2013 resulting in a charge to the
Income Statement of £1,209,000 In Aprif 2013,
A$3,600,000 (£2,472,000) of the deferred
consideration was paid in advance Into escrow

The rematning 25% nterest in the trade and
assets of CIE will be acquired 1n two equal
instalments based on the profits for the
calendar years to 2014 and 2015 The total
discounted amount that the group expects to
pay at September 30 2013 under this earn-out
agreement 1s A$7,315,000 (£4,224,000)

Quantitative Techniques (QT)

On Apnl 3 2013, the group signed a binding
agreement with HSBC to acquire 1ts QT
operation for £1 QT 15 the benchmark and
calculation agent business of HSBC Bank plc and
creates and maintains more than 100 equity and
bond indices for HSBC's Global Markets division
as well as over 60 external clients Completion
of the sale took place on September 30 2013
HSBC has agreed to purchase index calculation
services from QT for a mimimum penod of
three years The group believes the acquisition
creates an opportunity to establish a significant
footprint in the index compilation market

Further details of the above acquisitions are set
out in note 14

Increase 1n equity holdings

Internet Securnities, Inc (I54)

During the year the group spent £67,000 on the
remaining 0 08% interest in ISI, the emerging
market content aggregator and data business,
taking its holding to 100%

Structured Retail Products

Limited (SRP)

In April 2013, the group purchased 0 76% of
the equity share capital of SRP from some its
employees for a cash consideration of £86,000,
representing the fair value of 0 76% of assets at
date of acquisition, increasing the group’s equity
shareholding in SRP t0 98 94%

3.3.8 Headcount

The number of people employed 1s monitored
monthly to ensure there are sufficient resources
to meet the forthcoming demands of each
business and to make sure that the businesses
continue to deliver sustainable profits During
2013 the directors have focused on maintaining
headcount at a similar level to that in 2012,
hinng new heads only where 1t was considered
essential or for iInvestment purposes Headcount
at September 2013 was 2,142, an increase of
only rine since September 2012, including 38
acquired heads offset by restructunng across
the group

3.3.9 Marketing and digital
development

The group’s digital development continues with
record investment Part of this contnbutes to a
major scale roll-out of best-in-class publishing
authornng tools and a new content management
system The group’s customers increasingly
desire mobile access — Euromoney launched 13
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new mohile and tablet services in 2013, as well
as redesigning online sites and emasl alerts with
responsive design, to adapt to the mobile or
tablet interface

Notable new product launches Include
SteelFirst — one of the group's most significant
online product launches to date, this has already
become one of the top news, pricing data and
analysis service for the steel industry delivered
via online, email alerts and mobile, Sovereign
Wealth Center — provides detalled information,
insight, deal flows and data on sovereign wealth
funds, Digital Maps for Petroleum Economist
- Iinteractve map providng Interactive
country-and-project level infrastructure
information and data on the world's Liquid
Natural Gas, Isfamuc Finance - information
service and comprehensive and timely analysis
for the Islamic banking commurity

Customer-segmented campaign management
and social media have dominated marketing
in 2013 The group made a recent Investment
In a new campaign system that sits on top of
propnetary customer database and enables
personalised cross-channel campaigns and
an improved customer marketing expertence
Combined wath this new process 15 the
Increasing investment In customer msight data
— the group now help customers find the nght
products and services through their online
behawviour, online chat plus user feedback and
tnal/purchase history

Socal media growth and wvisibility across all
brands continues with over 335,000 members
{130% increase from last year) These members
are hwghly engaged through third party
networks, such as Linkedin and Twitter, as well
as the group's own social networks, and now
contribute to event sales, subscription tnals and
sponsorship opportunities

The marketing structure and central contacts
data capability have enabled the company to
rapidly integrate new acquisitions — Euromoney
indices, Insurance Insider and Infrastructure
Journal have all benefited from this capability

3.3.10 Systems and information
technology

The group continues to focus significant
investment on enhancng its corporate and
digital infrastructure and services as well the
people that deliver 1t A number of new products
were launched as well as existing digital assets
redesigned during the year to support continued
business demand

To aid in flexible delivery a new locally based
partnership was introduced that 1s proving
particularly successful

The first phase of Project Delphi continued as
planned with the successful tnal of the first
new BCA product in May and the integration
of an acquisiion All EuroWeek content will be
created using the new authoring platform and 1s
nowv truly digrtal first Plans for the second phase
of Project Delphi and an accelerated rollout are
also underway while the project itself has been
shortiisted for an Agle development award
Forty other projects were also completed
with a focus on updating legacy codebases
and delvening mobile and socially integrated
products Notablelaunches include the Amencan
Metal Market 1Pad app, Euromoneyindices com
and StructuredRetanProducts com  There are
now over 15 apps avallable across the group
with five publications available in Apple’s
newsstand All new development projects
are now run on an Agile/Kanban basis with
Behavtour Driven Design

The project to migrate the digrtal and corporate
infrastructure 10 an enterprise-class hybnd,
cloud suppher was successfully completed while
a leading search solution was also enabled
via Elastc Search This, in conunction with
ngorous new service management disciphnes,
has resulted In business-impacting incidents
being reduced by over 50% dunng the year
Investment was increased again in information
security with a revised auditable basehne plan
agreed across the group entities The corporate
network has been upgraded to improve its
resihence, support the increasing demands
of a glohal, remote workforce, and to absorb
network demand from three new satellite
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offices following the group's acquisitions A
Microsoft Office 365 and Windows platform
rollout will be completed wathin the second
guarter of 2014 as planned while an upgrade
to the Customer Relationship Management
platform is also underway

These steps have positioned the group to make
the most of product opportunities and increased
the group’s agility allowing technical staff to
focus on revenue-generating actwities rather
than commodity maintenance

3.3.11 Tax and treasury

Treasury

The treasury department does not act as a profit
centre, nor does 1t undertake any speculative
trading activity, and 1t operates within policies
and procedures approved by the board

Interest rate swaps are used to manage the
group’s exposure to fluctuations in interest rates
on 1its floating rate borrowings The matunty
profile of these dernvatives s matched wath
the expected future debt profile of the group
The group’s policy 15 to fix the interest rates on
approximately 80% of s term debt locking
forward aver five years The matunty dates
are spread 1n order to avond interest rate basis
nsk and also to mitigate short-term changes
in interest rates The predictability of interest
costs 15 deemed to be more important than the
possible opportunity cost foregone of achieving
lower Interest rates and this hedging strategy
has the effect of spreading the group’s exposure
to fluctuations anising from changes In interest
rates and hence protects the group’s interest
charge against sudden increases in rates but also
prevents the group from benefiting immediately
from falls in rates

Given the group’s low level of debt, there
were no interest rate hedges in place as at
September 30 2013

The group generates approximately
two-thirds of its revenues in US dollars, including
approximately 30% of the revenues n its
UK-based businesses, and approximately 60% of
its operaung profits are US doilar-denominated

The group Is therefore exposed to forewgn
exchange nsk on the US dollar revenues in its
UK businesses, and on the translation of the
results of its US dollar-denominated businesses

In order to hedge 1ts exposure to US dollar
revenues in its UK businesses, a senes of forward
contracts are put in place to sell forward surplus
US dollars The group hedges 80% of forecast
US dollar revenues for the coming 12 months
and up to 50% for a further six months

The group does not hedge the foreign exchange
nsk on the translation of overseas profits,
although ¢ does endeavour to match foreign
currency borrowings with investments and the
related foreign currency finance costs provide a
partial hedge against the transtation of overseas
profits As a result of this hedging strategy,
any profit or loss from the strengthening or
weakening of the US dollar will largely be
delayed untl the following financial year and
beyond

Detalls of the financial instruments used are set
out in note 18 to the accounts

Tax

The adjusted effective tax rate based on
adjusted profit before tax and excluding
deferred tax movements on intangible assets,
prior year rtems and exceptional items 15 22%
(2012 22%) The group’s reported effective tax
rate decreased to an expense of 23% compared
to an expense of 24% in 2012 A reconaliation
to the underlying effecuive rate 1s set out In
note 8 in the accounts

The total net deferred tax balance held 1s a
lability of £11 8 million (2012 £9 6 mullion) and
relates pnmarily to capitalised intangible assets
and rolled over capital gains, net of deferred
tax assets held in respect of US tax losses and
short-term tmung differences and the future
deductions available for the CAP
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4. Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal risks and uncertainties the group faces vary across the different businesses and are 1dentified in the group’s nisk register Management of
significant nisk 1s regularly on the agenda of the board and other senior management meetings

The geographical spread and diverse portfolio of businesses within the group help to dilute the impact of some of the group's key nisks

The group’s pnnctpal nsks and uncertainties are summansed below The arrows provide a pictonal indication in the change in niskiness of each pnncipal

nsk compared to last year

DOWNTURN IN ECONOMY OR MARKET SECTCR

The group generates sigrificant income from certain key geographical regions and market sectors for its publishing, events, research and

data businesses

POTENTIAL IMPACT

Uncertainty in global financial markets increases the rnisk of a downturn
or potential collapse in one or more areas of the business I this occurs
income 1s likely to be adversely affected and for events businesses some
abandonment costs may also be incurred

TRAVEL RISK

MITIGATION

The group has a dwerse product mix and operates in many geographical
locations This reduces dependency on any one sector or region
Management has the ability to cut costs quickly f required or to
switch the group’s focus to new or unaffected markets e g through
development of new vertical markets or transferring events to better
performing regions

The conference, seminar and training businesses account for approxtmately a third of the group’s revenues and profits The success of these events
and courses relies heavily on the confidence in and ability of delegates and speakers to travel internationally

POTENTIAL tMPACT

Significant disruptions to or reductions in international travel for any
reason could lead to events and courses being postponed or cancelled
and could have a significant impact on the group’s performance

Past inaidents such as transport strikes, extreme weather including
hurricanes, terronst attacks, fears over SARS and swine flu, and natural
disasters such as the disruption from volcanic ash in Europe, have ali
had a negative impact on the group’s results, although none matenally

MITIGATION

Where possible, contingency plans are in place to minimise the
disruption frem travel restnictions Events can be postponed or moved
to another location, or increasingly can be attended remotely using
online technologies Cancellation and abandonment insurance 1s In
place for the group’s largest events
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Group businesses are subject to legislation and regulation in the jurisdictions in which they operate The key laws and regulations that may have
an impact on the group cover areas such as libel, brbery and corruption, competition, data protection, privacy (induding e—pnvacy), health and
safety and employment law Additionally, specific regutations from the Audit Bureau of Circulations apply to published titfes {see incorrect arculation

claims below)}

POTENTIAL IMPACT

A breach of legislation or regulations could have a significant impact
en the group In terms of addiional costs, management tme and
reputational damage

In recent years responsibiities for managing data protection have
increased significantly The emergence of new online technology 1s
further driving legislation and responsibilities for managing data privacy
Faillure to comply with data protection and privacy laws could result in
significant financial penatties and reputational damage

DATA INTEGRITY, AVAILABILITY AND CYBER SECURITY

MITIGATION

Comphance with laws and regulations 1s taken seriously throughout
the group The group’s Code of Conduct (and supporting policies) sets
out appropriate standards of business behawiour and highlights the key
tegal and regulatory issues affecting group businesses Disional and
tocal management are responsible for comphance with applicable local
laws and regulations, overseen by the executive committee and the
board, and supported by internal audit

The group has stnct policies and controls in place for the management
of data protection and privacy with staff recemving refevant training
This year the group began rolling out new website technology across its
online businesses to reinforce legal and regulatory compliance

Controls are also In place to comply with the Audit Bureau of Circulation's
regulations and other regulatory bodies to which the group adheres

The group uses large quantities of data including customer, employee and commercial data 1n the ordinary course of its business The group also
pubhishes data (see published content nsk below) The integrity, avallability and secunty of this data 1s key to the success of the group Risk 1o the
group’s data has increased as a result of the growing number of cyber attacks affecung organisations around the world

POTENTIAL IMPACT

Any challenge to the integnty or avallabihty of information that the
group relies upon could result in operational and regulatory challenges,
costs to the group, reputational damage to the businesses and the
permanent loss of revenue This risk has increased as the threat of cyber
attack has become more sigmificant A successful cyber attack could
cause considerable disruption to business operations

The wider use of social media has also increased information nsk as
negative comments made about the group’s products can now spread
more easlly

Although technological mnovations «n mobile  working, the
introduction of cloud-based technologies and the growing use of social
media present opportunities for the group, they also introduce new
information secunty nisks that need to be managed carefully

MITIGATION

The group has comprehensive information secunty standards and
polcies In place which are reviewed on a regular basis Access to key
systems and data Is restricted, monitored, and logged with auditable data
trails Restrictions are in place to prevent unauthorised data downloads
The group s subject to reqgular internal information secunty audits,
supplemented by expert external resource The group continues to
Invest In appropriate cyber defences including implementation of
intrusion detection systems 1o mitigate the nisk of unauthonsed access
The group's Information Secunty Group meets regularly to consider and
address cyber nisks

Comprehensive back-up plans for IT infrastructure and business data
are in place to protect the businesses from unnecessary disruption

The group has professional indemmty insurance
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4, Principal risks and uncertainties continued
LONDON, NEW YORK, MONTREAL OR HONG KONG WIDE DISASTER

The group’s main offices are located in London, New York, Montreal and Hong Kong A significant incident affecting these aities could lead to

disruption to group operations

POTENTIAL IMPACT

An incident affecting one or more of the key offices could disrupt the
ordinary operations of the businesses at these locations, a region-wde
disaster affecting all offices could have much worse implications with
sernous management and commumnication challenges for the group and
a potential adverse effect on results

The nisk of office space becoming unusable for a prolonged period and
a lack of surtable alternative accommodation in the affected area could
also cause significant disruption to the business and interfere with
delivery of products and services

Incidents affecting key clients or staff in these regions could also give
nse to the nsk of not achieving forecast results

PUBLISHED CONTENT RISK

MITIGATION

Business continuity plans are in place for all businesses These plans are
refreshed annually and a programme 1s 1n place for testing If required,
employees can work remotely

The group has robust IT systems with key locations (including the UK,
US, Canada and Asia) benefiting from offsite data back-ups, remote
recovery sites and third-party 24-hour support contracts for key
applications

The group's business continuity planning helped its New York office to
recover quickly and effectively from the significant disruption caused by
Hurricane Sandy in 2012

The group generates a significant amount of 1ts revenue from publishing magazines, journals or infermation and data online As a result, there 1s
an inherent nsk of error which, in some instances, may give nse to claims for ibel The rapid development of social media has increased this risk

The transiton to onhine publishing means content 15 being distnbuted far quicker and maore widely than ever before This has introduced new
challenges for securing and delivering content and effective management of content rights and royalties

The business also publishes databases and data services with a particular focus on high—value proprietary data There 15 the potential for errors In
data collection and data processing The group publishes industry pricing benchmarks for the metals markets and more than 100 equity and bond

indices The group also runs more than 100 reader polls and awards each year

POTENTIAL IMPACT

A successful libel claim could damage the group's reputation The nse
tn use of socral media, and in particular blogging, has further increased
this risk Damage to the reputation of the group anising from ibel could
lead to a loss of revenue, including income from advertising In addition
there could be costs incurred in defending the dlaim

The falure to manage content redistnbution nghts and royalty
agreements could lead to overpayment of royalties, loss of intellectual
property and additional labiliwes for redistribution of content

MITIGATION

The group runs mandatory annual hbel courses for all journalists and
editors Controls are in place, incuding legal review, to approve content
that may carry a libe! nsk The group also has editonat controls in place
for publishing using soaal media and this actiity 1s monitored carefully

The group's pelicy 1s to own its content and manage redistnbution
nghts tightly Royalty and redistrbution agreements are In place to
mitigate nisks anising from online pubhshing

The group has implemented tight controls for the venfication, cleaning
and processing of data used in its database, research and data services
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PUBLISHED CONTENT RISK continued

POTENTIAL IMPACT

The integnity of the group’s published data 1s criucal to the success
of the group’s database, research and data services The group also
publishes extensive pnang information and indices for the global
metals industries and financial markets Errors in published data, price
assessments or indices could affect the reputation of the group leading
to fewer subscnbers and lower revenues

Any challenge to the integnty of polls and awards could damage the

reputation of the product and by association the rest of the group,
resulung in legal costs and a permanent loss of revenue

INCORRECT CIRCULATION OR AUDIENCE CLAIMS

MITIGATION

The group’s processes and methedologies for assessing metals and
other commodity prices and calculating ndices are clearly defined
and documented All employees mnvolved with pubhshing pncing
information or indices receive relevant traring Robust contractual
disclaimers are in place for all businesses that publsh priong data,
benchmarks and indices

Polls and awards are regularly audited and a firewall 1s in place between
the commercaial arm of the business and the editors involved in the polls
and awards

Key staff are aware of the significant nsks associated with publishing
content and strong internal controls are in place for reporting to
seruor management if a potential ssue anses The group also has libel
insurance and professional indemnity cover

The group publishes over 70 titles and sells advertising based partly on arculation and online audience figures An incorrect claim for circutation or

audience could adversely affect the group’s reputation

POTENTIAL IMPACT

A claim resulting from an incorrect circulation or audience clam could
lead to the permanent loss of advertisers and other revenue and
damage to the reputation of the group

MITIGATION

The group audts the arculation figures of every publication regularly
and monitors related nternal controls A strict approval system s in
place for all media packs Detalled guidance 1s provided to all relevant
employees, and their understanding of the rules Is regularly monitored

There are a large number of mutually exclusive titles and it 15 unhkely
that an incorrect arculation claim, should 1t anse, would affect the
crculation of other titles within the wider group

Similar controls are applied 1o claims for electronic publishing activities
including enline traffic reporting
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4, Principal risks and uncertainties contimued

LOSS OF KEY STAFF

The group Is rehiant on key management and staff across all of its businesses Many products are dependent on specialist, technical expertise

POTENTIAL IMPACT

The inability to recruit and retain talented people could affect the
group’s ability to maintain 1ts performance and deliver growth

When key staff leave or retire, there 15 a nsk that knowledge or
competitive advantage 15 lost

FAILURE OF CENTRAL BACK-OFFICE TECHNOLOGY

MITIGATION

Long-term Incentive plans are in place for key staff to encourage
retention The directors remain committed to recruitment and retention
of high-quality management and talent, and provide a programme of
career opportunity and progression for employees nduding extensive
training and international transfer opportunities

Succession planning 15 in place for semior management In 2012,
following an independent and ngorous selectron process PR Ensor,
managing director, succeeded PM Fallon as executive charrman CHC
Fordham, an executive director since 2003, succeeded Mr Ensor

The business has invested significantly in central back-office techrology to support the transition of the business from print to online pubbshing
The back-office provides customer and product management, digital nghts management, e—commerce and performance and actmty reporting
The platform supports a large share of the group’s online requirements incuding key activities for publishing, events and data businesses The
back—office technology 1s critical to the successful functioning of the online business and hence carries a significant amount of risk

POTENTIAL IMPACT

A falure of the back-office technology may affect the performance,
data integrity or availability of the group’s products and serices Any
extensive failure 15 likely to affect a large number of businmesses and
customers, and lead directly 1o a loss of revenues

Online customers are accessing the group's digital content In an
increasing number of ways, incduding using websites, apps and
e-books The group relies on effective digital nghts management
technology to prowvide flexible and secure access to 1ts content An
inability to prowde flexible access rights to the group’s content could
lead to products being less competitive or allow unauthonsed access to
content, reducing subscription revenues as a result

The group'’s reliance on key supplers, particularly IT suppliers, has
increased An operational or financial falure of a key supplier could
affect the group’s ability to deliver products, senices or events with a
direct impact on management time and financial results

A reduction in back-offtce technology investment increases the risk of
the online platform becoming ineffective with the group becoming less
competitive This could lead to fewer customers and declining group
revenues

MITIGATION

The group continues to Invest significantly in its central back-office
technology The platform s planned, managed and run by a dedicated,
skilted team and 1ts progress and performance are closely monitored by
the executive committee and the board

The group continues to invest in digital nghts management technology
to ensure its content Is adequately secured and changing customer
requirements for accessing the group’s products and services are met

Operational and financial due dihgence s undertaken for all key
supphers as part of a formal risk assessment process as well as regular
monitoring Contingency planning 15 carried out to mitigate risk from
supplher failure

The group has made a substantial mvestment in e-commerce technology
and hosting infrastructure to ensure the back-office platform continues
to perform effectively
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ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL RISK

As well as launching and bullding new businesses, the group continues to make strategic acquisitions where opportunities exist 1o strengthen the
group The management team reviews a number of potential acquisitions each year with only a small proportion of these gong through to the
due diligence stage and possible subsequent purchase The strategy alse results in the disposal of businesses that no longer fit the group's strategy

POTENTIAL IMPACT

There 15 a nsk that an acquisition opportunity could be rmissed The group
could also suffer an impairment loss if an acquired business does not
generate the expected returns or fals to operate or grow Additionally,
there 15 a nsk that a newly acquired business 15 not integrated into
the group successfully or that the expected nsks of a newly acquired
entity are misunderstood As a consequence a significant amount of
management time could be derted from other operational matters

The group 15 also subject to disposal nsk, possibly faling to achieve
optimal value from disposed businesses, faling to identify the time at
which businesses should be seld or underestimating the impact on the
remaining group from such a disposal

FAILURE OF ONLINE STRATEGY

MITIGATION

Senior management perform detaded in-house due diligence on
all possible acguisitions and call on expert external adwisers where
necessary Acquisition agreements are usually structured so as to retamn
key employees In the acquired company and there 15 close monitoring
of performance at board level of the entity concerned post-acquisition

The board regularly reviews the group’s existing portfolio of businesses
to dentify underperforming businesses or businesses that no longer fit
with the group's strategy and puts in place divestment plans accordingly

The emergence of new technologies such as tablets and other mobile devices and the proliferation of social media are changing how customers
access and use the group’s products and services The group has established a strategy to meet the many challenges of migrating the publishing
businesses from tradional print media 10 online and to ensure the non-publishing businesses take advantage of new technology when
advantageous to do so This strategy has been pursued for a number of years

POTENTIAL IMPACT

The group’s onfine strategy addresses a number of challenges ansing
from the group’s transition from print media to an online business and
changing custorner behaviour

Competition has increased, with free content becoming more available
on the Internet and new competitors benefiting from lower barriers to
entry A falure to manage pricing effectively or successfully differentiate
the group’s products and services could negatively affect business
results

The customer environment 1s changing fast with an increasing number
spending more tme using the Internet Print arculation 1s dechining
and a fallure to convert customers from print risks a permanent loss of
customers 1o competitors

MITIGATION

The group Is already embracing these challenges and overall sees the
Internet and other technological advances as an opportunity, not a
threat

Significant investment in the group’s online strategy has already
been made and will continue for as long as necessary New content
management technolegy 15 being implemented across the group
to enable more effectve publishing to web, print and the rapidly
Increasing number of mobile platforms coming onto the market Many
of the group's businesses already produce soft copies of pubtications to
supplement the hard copies as well as provide information and content
vIa apps

Strategic Report

Ctratanv and Parfarmanra



28

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC
www eurcmoneyplc com

Strategic Report

continued

4. Principal risks and uncertainties continued
FAILURE OF ONLINE STRATEGY continued

POTENTIAL IMPACT

The transition from a traditional weekly or monthly publishing cycle to
continuous publishing has affected editonial practuces sigruficantly A
failure to continue to manage this transition effectively could make the
bustness less efficent and less competitive

Further changes in technology including the widespread use of tablets
and other mobile devices and the impact of social media such as Linkedin
and Twitter are changing customer behaviour and will introduce new
challenges for all businesses

A failure in the group’s online strategy to meet these challenges could
result in a permanent loss of revenue

TREASURY OPERATIONS

MITIGATION

The group’s acquisition strategy has increased the number of onhine
information providers in the business However, while online revenues
are important, the group’s product mix reduces dependency on this
ncome For example, the group generates a third of its profits from its
event businesses and face-to-face meetings remain an important part
of customers’ marketing activities

The group treasury function is responsible for executing treasury pohicy which seeks to manage the group’s funding, hquichty and treasury derivatives
nsks More specifically, these include currency exchange rate fluctuations, interest rate nisks, counterparty nisk and hquidity and debt levels These

nsks are described in more detail in note 18 to the financal statements

POTENTIAL IMPACT

If the treasury policy does not adequately mitigate the financial nisks
summansed above or 15 not correctly executed, 1t could result in
unforeseen dernvative losses or hugher than expected finance costs

The treasury function undertakes high-value transactions, hence there

1s an inherent high rnisk of payment fraud or error having an adverse
Impact on group results

UNFORESEEN TAX LIABILITIES

MITIGATION

The tax and treasury committee s responsible for rewewing and
approving group treasury policies which are executed by the group
treasury

Segregation of duties and authonsation lmits are in place for all
payments made The treasury function 1s also subject to regular internal
audit

The group operates within many tax jurisdictions and earnings are therefore subject to taxation at differing rates across these junsdictions

POTENTIAL IMPACT

The directors endeavour to manage the tax affars of the group in an
efficient manner, however, due to an ever-more complex international
tax environment there will always be a level of uncertainty when
provisioning for tax labilities There 15 also a nsk of tax laws being
amended by authorruies in the different junsdictions in which the group
operates which could have an adverse effect on the financial results

MITIGATION

External tax experts and in-house tax spectalists, reporting to the tax
and treasury committee, work together to review all tax arrangements
within the group and keep abreast of changes in global tax legislation
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5. Future development in the
business

An indication of the trading outlook for the
group Is given In the Charrman’s Statement on
page 6 In 2014 the directors will manage the
business to facilitate growth and to continue to
shape the business to remain competiive in the
economic environments In which it operates
The group 15 well placed to dwersify its product
and geographical base and remains committed
to Its strategy set cut on page 8

The board wilf continue to review the portfolio
of businesses, disposing, closing or restructunng
any underperforming businesses to allow the
group to have the necessary resources and skills
to reman acquistive The group will invest in
technology and new businesses, particularly
glectronic infermation products, as well as in its
internal systems

6. Gender diversity

The group’s gender diversity information 1s set
out In the Corporate Governance report on
page 38

7. Employees’ involvement and
training

Equal opporturnities

The group 15 an equal opportunities employer
It seeks to employ a workforce which reflects
the diverse community at large, because
the contnbution of the individual 1s vafued,
irrespective of sex, age, marital status, disability,
sexual preference or orientation, race, colour,
religion, ethruc or national ongin it does not
discriminate in recruitment, promotion or other
employee matters The group endeavours
to provide a working environment free from
unlawful  discimination,  victmisaton  or
harassment

Qualrty and integrity of employees

The competence of people 15 ensured through
high recruitment standards and a commitment,
to management and business skills training The
group has the advantage of running external
training businesses and uses this in-house
resource to train cost effectively its employees on
a regular basis Employees are also encouraged
actively to seek external training as necessary

High-quality and honest personnel are an
essential part of the control environment
The high ethical standards expected are
communicated by management and through
the employee handbook which 1s provided to all
employees The employee handbook indudes
specific polices on matters such as the use of
the group’s mformation technology resources,
data protection policy, the UK Bribery Act,
and disaplinary and gnevance procedures
The group operates an internal intranet site
which 15 used to communicate with employees
and provide guidance and assistance on
day-to-day matters facng employees The
group has a specific whistle-biowing policy that
15 supported by an externally monitored and run
whistfe-blowing hothine The whistle-blowing
policy 15 updated regularly and is reviewed by
the audit committee

Human rights and health and safety
requirements

The group 15 committed to the health and
safety and the human nghts of its employees
and communities in which 1t operates Health
and safety issues are monitored to ensure

comphance with all local health and safety
regulations External health and safety advisers
are used where appropriate The UK businesses
bemefit from a regular assessment of the
working environment by experienced assessors
and regular traimung of all existing and new UK
employees in health and safety matters

Disabled employees

It 15 the group’s pobcy to give full and far
consideration to applications for employment
from people who are disabled, to continue,
wherever possible, the employment of, and to
arrange appropriate training for, employees who
become disabled, and to provide opportunities
for the career development, traming and
promotion of disabled employees

8. Corporate and social
responsibility

informatien on the group's corporate and
social responsibility including information on its
carbon footprint, greenhouse gas emissions and
charitable activities 15 set out in the Corporate
and Soual Responsibility report on page 44

ﬁr /o/ﬂ/« /

Chnistopher Fordham
Managing Director
November 13 2013
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Directors’ Report

The directors submit ther annual report
and group accounts for the year ended
September 30 2013

Business review and activities

The principal activities of the group are set out
on page 8 of this Annual Report and Accounts
The nformation that fulfils the Comparies Act
requirements of the business review Is included
in the Strategic Report on pages 8 to 29 This
includes a review of the development of the
bustness of the group dunng the year, of its
position at the end of the year and of likely
future developrments tn its business Detalls of
the principal nsks and uncertainties are included
in the Strategic Report on pages 22 to 28 The
Corporate Governance report forms part of this
Directors’ Report

Forward-looking statements

Certain statements made i this document
are  forward-looking  statements  Such
statements are based on current expectations
and are subject to a number of nsks and
uncertainties that could cause actual events or
results to differ matenally from any expected
future events or results referred to In these
forward-looking statements Unless otherwise
requred by applicable law, regulation or
accounting standards, the directors do not
undertake any obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result
of new information, future development or
otherwise Nothing i this document shali be
regarded as a profit forecast

Group results and dividends

The group profit for the year attnbutable to
shareholders amounted to £72 6 million (2012
£69 7 milhon} The directors recommend a final
dwvidend of 1575 pence per ordinary share
{2012 1475 pence), payable on Thursday
February 13 2014 to shareholders on the register
on Friday November 22 2013 This, together
with the intenm dividend of 7 00 pence per
ordinary share (2012 7 00 pence) which was
declared on May 16 2013 and paid on June 27
2013, brings the total dividend for the year to
22 75 pence per ordinary share (2012 2175
pence)

Directors and their interests

The company's Articles of Assocation give
power to the board to appoaint directors from
time to time In addition 1o the statutory nghts
of shareholders to remove a director by ordinary
resolution, the board may also remove a director
where 75% of the board give wntten notice
to such director The Articles of Assocation
themselves may be amended by a specal
resolution of the shareholders

The directors who served during the year are
sted on page 58 The directors’ interests are
gwven on page 67 PM Fallon, the chairman,
who was due to retire at the AGM in January
2013, died on October 14 2012 The company
announced that, effective from October 152012,
Its previously announced succession plans would
be accelerated and that PR Ensor would succeed
PM Fallon as chairman and CHC Fordham would
succeed PR Ensor as managing director In
addition, on December 12 2012 ART Ballingal
and TP Hillgarth were appointed as non-executive
directors and on January 31 2013 !C Gonzalez
retired as non-executive director

Following best practice under the September
2012 UK Corporate Governance Code and
In accordance with the company's Articles of
Association, all directors submut themselves for
re-election annually Accordingly, all directors
will retire at the forthcorming Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, will offer themseives
for re-election In addition, in accordance with
the September 2012 UK Combined Code on
Corporate Governance, before the re-election
of a non-executwe diwector, the charman
is required to confirm to shareholders that,
followang formal performance evaluation, the
non-executive directors” performance continues
to be effective and demonstrates commitment
to the role Accordingly, the non-executive
directors will retire at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible foliowing a
formal performance evaluation by the chairman,
offer themselves for re-election

Details of the nterests of the directors n
the ordinary shares of the company and of
options held by the directors to subscrnibe for
ordinary shares n the company are set out n
the Direcors’ Remuneration Report on pages
50 to 73

Post balance sheet events
Events ansing after September 30 2013 are set
out In note 29

Going concern, debt covenants
and hquidity

The results of the group’s business actiities,
together with the factors likely to affect its
future development, performance and financial
position are set out in the Chairman's Statement
on pagesd to 7

The financial position of the group, 1ts cash flows
and liquidity position are set out in detal in this
report The group meets its day-to-day working
capital requirements through its US$300 million
dedicated multi-currency borrowing facility with
Dally Mall and General Trust plc group {DMGT)}
The total maximum borrowing capacity 1Is
US3$250 milion (£154 milhon) and £33 milion
and was due to mature in December 2013 The
facility’s covenant requires the group’s net debt
1o be no more than four times adjusted EBITDA
on a rolling 12 month basis At September 30
2013, the group’s net debt to adjusted EBITDA
covenant was 0 09 times and the committed
undrawn faclity avalable to the group was
£165 9 million

Subsequent to the year end, the group has
signed a  US$16CG milion  multi-currency
replacement funding faclity with DMGT that
prowvides access to funds during the perod to
Apnl 2016 The new facility's covenant requires
the group’s net debt to be no more than
three times adjusted EBITDA on a roling
12 month basis
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The group’s forecasts and projections, looking
out to September 2016 and taking account
of reasonably posstble changes in trading
performance, show that the group should be
able to operate within the leve! and covenants
of its current borrowing facility

After making enquines, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the group has
adequate resources to continue n operational
existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly,
the directors continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing this annual report

Capital structure and significant
shareholdings

Details of the company’s share capital are given
in note 22 The company’s ulimate controlling
party 1s giveri in note 30 The company's share
caprtal 1s divided into ordinary shares of 025
pence each Each share entitles its holder to one
vote at shareholders’ meetings and the nght to
recewe one share of the company's dividends

Significant shareholdings at
November 12 2013

Nature % of
Name of Number voting
of holder holding of shares rights
DMG Charles
Limited Direct 85,838,458 6788

EU Takeovers Directive

Pursuant to 5992 of the Companies Act 2006,

which implements the EU Takeovers Directive,

the company 1s required to disclose certain

additional tnformation which 15 not covered

elsewhere in this annual report Such disclosures

are as follows

e there are no restrictons on the transfer
of securiies {shares or lcan notes) in the
company, including () limitations on the
holding of securties, and (i1} requirements
to obtan the approval of the company,
or of other holders or secunties in the
company, for a transfer of securities,

® there are no people who hold securities
carrying specal nghts with regard to
conitrol of the company,

e the company’s employee share schemes do
not give rights with regard to control of the
company that are not exerasable directly
by employees,

® there are no restnictions on voting nghts,

o the drectors are not aware of any
agreements between holders or secunties
that may result In restnctions on the
transfer of securities or on voting nights,

® the company has a number of agreements
that take effect, alter or termunate upon a
change of control of the company following
a takeover bid, such as commercial
contracts, bank loan agreements, property
lease arrangements, directors’ serwvice
agreements and employee share plans
None of these agreements are deemed to
be signmficant in terms of thew potential
impact on the business of the group as a
whole, and

e detals of the directors’ entitlement to
compensation for loss of office following a
takeover or contract termination are given
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Authority to purchase and allot
own shares

The company’s authonty to purchase up to 10%
of s own shares expires at the condusion of
the company's next Annual General Meeting
A resolution to renew this authorty for a
further penod will be put to shareholders at this
meeting

At the Annual General Meeting of the company
on January 31 2013, the shareholders authorised
the directors to allot shares up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £93,266 expinng at the
concluston of the Annual General Meeting to
be held in 2014 A resolution to renew this
authonty for a further period will be put to
shareholders at this meeting

Directors’ indemnities

The company has directors’ and officers’ hability
and corporate reimbursement nsurance for
the benefit of its directors and those of other
assocated companies This insurance has been
in place throughout the year and remams in
force at the date of this report

Annual General Meeting
The company's next Annual General Meeting
will be held on January 30 2014

Auditor

In the case of each of the persons who 1s a

director of the company at November 13 2013

® 50 far as each of the directors 1s aware,
there 15 no relevant audit information
{as defined in the Companies Act 2006}
of which the company’s auditors are
unaware, and

¢ each of the drectors has taken all the
steps that hefshe ought to have taken as
a director to make himseli/herself aware of
any relevant audit information (as defined)
and to establish that the company’s
auditors are aware of the information

This confirmatton s given and should be
interpreted in accordance with the provisions of
5418 of the Companies Act 2006

A resolution to reappoint Deloitte LLP as the
company’s auditor 15 expected to be proposed
at the farthcoming Annual General Meeting

Strategic Report

Ltratanv and ParfArmanra
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Directors’ Report
Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the
annual report and the financial statements In
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare
finanaalstatements foreach financial year Under
that law the directors are required to prepare
the group financial statements In accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards
(*IFRSs") as adopted by the European Umon
and Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation and have
elected to prepare the parent company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable
law) Under company law the directors must not
approve the accounts unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair wew of the state of
affairs of the company and of the profit or loss
of the company for that period

In prepanng the parent company financial
statements, the directors are required to

® select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently,

® rmake |udgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

® state whether applicable UK Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject
to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements, and

® prepare the fmancal statements on
the going concern basts unless 1t 15
nappropriate to presume that the company
will continue in business

In prepanng the group financial statements,
International Accounting Standard 1 reguires
that directors

® properly select and apply accounting
policies,

& present information, including accounting
policies, In a manner that provides relevant,
reliable, comparable and understandable
information,

e provide additonal disclosures  when
comphance with the speafic requirements
in IFRSs are insufficent to enable users
to understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and conditions
on the enttys finanaal position and
financiat performance, and

e make an assessment of the company’s
abulity to continue as a going concern

The directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the company’s transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial posiion of the company
and enable them to ensure that the finanaal
statemnents comply with the Comparnies Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities

The directors are responsible for tRe
maintenance and integnty of the corporate and
financal information included on the company's
website Legislation in the Umited Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of
finanaal statements may differ from legislation
In other junsdictions

Responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

e the financial statements, prepared In
accordance with the relevant financial
reporting framework, give a true and
farr view of the assets, habilities, financial
position and profit or loss of the company
and the undertakings mcluded in the
consolidation taken as a whole, and

e the management report, which s
incorporated 1nto the Strategic Report,
includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and
the position of the company and the
undertakings tncluded in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a
desciption of the prnapal nsks and
uncentainties that they face

In addition, each of the directors considers
that the annual report and accounts, taken as
a whale, 15 far, balanced and understandable
and provides the nformation necessary
for s{'\areholders to assess the company’s
performance, business model and strategy

By order of the board

=r} O/7z'v /(

Christopher Fordham
Drector
November 13 2013

Colin Jones
Director
Navember 13 2013
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Directors and Advisors
Executive Directors

Mr PR Ensor ¥

Chairman

Mr PR Ensor (aged 65) joined the company 1n 1976 and was appointed an
executive director in 1983 He was appointed managing director in 1992
and chawman on October 15 2012 He 1s charman of the nominations
committee He Is also a director of BCA Research, Inc, Ned Dawvis Research
inc , and Davis, Mendel & Regenstein Inc , and an outside member of the
Finance Committee of Oxford University Press

Mr CHC Fordham %

Managing Birector

Mr CHC Fordham (aged 53} joned the company in 2000 and was
appowinted an executive director in July 2003 and managing director
on QOctober 15 2012 He was appointed a member of the nominations
commitiee on December 12 2012 He was previously the director
responsible for acquisiions and disposals as well as running some of the
company’s businesses

Mr NF Osborn

Mr NF Osborn {aged 63) joined the company in 1983 and was appointed
an executive director in February 1988 He is the publisher of Euromoney
He 15 also a director of RBC 0JSC, a Moscow-listed media company

Mr DC Cohen

Mr DC Cohen {aged 55) joined the company in 1984 and was appointed
an executive director in September 1989 He I1s managing director of the
traiming division

Mr CR Jones

Mr CR lones (aged 53} 1s the finance director and a chartered accountant
He joined the company in July 1996 and was appointed finance director
in November 1996 He Is also the group’s chief operating officer and a
director of Institutional Investor, LLC and BCA Research, Inc

Ms DE Alfano

Ms DE Alfano (aged 57) joined Institutional Investor, LLC 1n 1984 and was
appointed an executive director in July 2000 She 1s managing director of
Institutional Investor's conference division and a director and chairman of
Institutional Investor, LLC

Ms JL Wilkinson

Ms JL Wilkinson (aged 48) joined the company In 2000 and was appointed
an executive director In March 2007 She 1s group marketing director, CEQ
of Institutional Investor’s publishing activities and president of Institutional
Investor, LLC

Mr B AL-Rehany

Mr B AlL-Rehany (aged 56) was appointed an executve director In
November 2009 He 15 chief executive officer and a director of 8CA
Research, Inc which he joined in January 2003 Euromoney acquired BCA
Research, Inc in October 2006

$  Member of the nominations comrmittee

Directors and Advisors
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Directors and Advisors
Non-executive Directors

The Viscount Rothermere ¥

The Viscount Rothermere {aged 45} was appointed a non-executive
director In September 1998 and 5 a3 member of the nomnations
committee He is chairman of Dally Mail and General Trust plc

Sir Patrick Sergeant

Sir Patrick Sergeant {aged 89} 15 a non-executive director and president
He founded the company in 1969 and was managing director until 1985
when he became chairman He retired as chairman in September 1992
when he was appointed as president and & non-executive director He 1s a
member of the nominations committee

Mr JC Botts 11§

Mr JC Botts (aged 72) was appointed a non-executive director in December
1992 and is chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of
the audit and nominatrtons committees He 1s senior adviser of Allen &
Company 1n London, a director of Sengbird Estates plc and a director of
several private companies He was formerly a non-executive chairman of
United Business Media plc

Mr M\WWH Morgan 1+

Mr MWH Morgan {aged 63} was appomnted a non-executive director in
October 2008 He 15 a member of the remuneration and nominations
committees He was previously chief executve of DMG Information
and became chief executive of Daly Mal and Gereral Trust plc in
October 2008

Mr DP Pritchard §1

Mr DP Pritchard {independent} (aged 69) was appointed a non-executive
director in December 2008 He 1s chairman of the audit committee and
a member of the remuneration committee He 1s chairman of Songbird
Estates plc and of AIB Group (UK) plc, and a director of The Motability
Tenth Annwversary Trust He was formerly deputy chairman of Lloyds
TSB Group, chairman of Cheltenham & Gloucester ple and a director of
Scottish Widows Group and LCH Clearnet Group

Advisors and registered office

Auditor

Deloitte LLP,

2 New Street Square,
London EC4A 3BZ

President
Sir Patrick Sergeant

Company Secretary
C Benn

Sohlictors

Nabarro, Lacon House,
Theobald’s Road,
London WC 1 8RW

Registered Office
Nestor House, Playhouse Yard,
London EC4V 5EX

Registered Number
954730

Mr ART Ballingal

Mr ART Ballingal (independent), aged 52, was appointed a non-executive
director on December 12 2012 He is chief executive and chief investment
officer of Ballingal Investment Adwisors (BIA), an independent investment
firm based in Hong Kong, which advises two award-winning Asia Pacific
hedge funds, the BIA Pacific Fund and the BIA Pacific Macro Fund A
graduate of Oxford Unwversity, he has lived in Asia for over 20 years and
waorked in the Asia Pacific mvestment market at various firms including
Barclays/BZW, Sloane Robinson, Schraders and Ruffer before founding BIA
in 2002 In additton to extensive Asia Pacific investment experience, he
has had sigrificant involvernent over two decades as an adwsor, investor,
and partner in hedge and absclute return nvestment funds Since 2008,
he has served as a member of the Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC
Asta Pacific Adwisory Board

Mr TP Hillgarth §

Mr TP Hillgarth (independent), aged 64, was appainted a non-executive
director on December 12 2012 and a member of the audit committee
on March 12 2013 He 15 a partner of Powe Capital Management LLP,
a European hedge fund management company He has 30 years of
experience n the asset management industry having recently been a
director of Jupiter Asset Management for eight years and before that at
Invesco where he held several senior positions over 14 years including
CEOQ of Invesco’s UK and European husiness

t  Member of the remuneration committee
¥  Member of the nominations committee
§  Member of the audit committes

Brokers
UBS, 1 Finsbury Avenue,
London EC2M 2PP

Registrars

Equiniti, Aspect House,

Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex,
BN9S 6DA
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Corporate Governance

The Financial Reporting Councls 2012 UK
Corporate Governance Code (“the Code”) 1s
part of the Listing Rules (“the Rules”) of the
Financial Conduct Authority The paragraphs
below and in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 49 to 73 set out how the company has
applied the pnnciples lad down by the Code
The company continues substantially to comply
with the Code, save for the exceptions disclosed
in the Directors’ Comphance Statement on
page 42

Directors

The board and its role

Detalls of directors who served during the year
are setout on page 58 PM Fallon, the chairman,
who was due to retire at the AGM in January
2013, died on October 14 2012 The company
announced that, effective from October 15
2012, ts previously announced succession
plans would be accelerated and that PR Ensor
would succeed PM Fallon as chairman and CHC
Fordham would succeed PR Ensor as managing
director In addition, on December 12 2032
ART Ballingal and TP Hillgarth were appointed
as non-executive directors and on January 31
2013 JC Gonzalez retired as non-executive
director Following these changes the board
compnsed the charman, managing director,
and six other executve directors and seven
non-executive directors Four of the seven non-
executive directors are not independent, one 1$
the founder and ex-chairman of the company,
two are directors of Daily Mail and General Trust
plc (ODMGT), an intermediate parent company,
and one has served on the board for more than
the recommended term of nine years under
the Code

There are clear dwsions of responsibility within
the board such that no one indwidual has
unfettered powers of decsion The board,
although larger than average, does not consider
itself to be unwieldy and believes it 1s beneficial
to have representatives from key areas of
the business at board meetings There 5 a
procedure for all directors 1n the furtherance of
therr duttes to take independent professional
advice, at the company's expense They also

have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary In accordance with best
corporate governance practice under the 2012
UK Corporate Governance Code all directors
will submit themselves for annual re-election
Newly appointed dwrectors are submitted for
election at the first avallable opportunity after
their appointment

The board meets every two months and there
1s frequent contact between meetings Board
meetings take place in London, New York,
Montreal and Hong Kong, and occasionally in
other locations where the group has operations
The board has delegated certain aspects of the
group’s affairs to standing commuttees, each
of which operates within defined terms of
reference Details of these are set out below
However, to ensure its overall ¢ontrol of the
group's affairs, the board has reserved certain
matters to itself for decision Board meetings
are held to set and monitor strategy, 1dentify,
evaluate and manage matenal nsks, to review
trading performance, ensure adequate funding,
exarmine major acquisiton possibilities and
approve reports to shareholders Procedures
are established to ensure that appropnate
information 15 communicated to the board In a
timely manner to enable 1t to fulfil its duties

Committees

Executive committee

The executive committee meets each month
to discuss strategy, results and forecasts, nsks,
possible acquisitions and divestitures, costs,
staff numbers, recrutment and traming and
other management 1ssues It also discusses
corporate and social responsibiity including
the group's vanous chanty initiatives It is not
empowered to make deosions except those
that can be made by the members in ther
indwidual capacaties as executives with powers
approved by the board of the company It 1s
chaired by the group charman and comprises ail
executive directors plus the following dwisional
directors RP Daswani {Metal Bulfetin), R Davies
{speaalist publication group), RCM Garnett
(Euromoney conferences), L Gibson (Euromoney
seminars and Metal Bulletn events), RG Inang

(Structured Retall Products and TelCap), BR
Jones (nformation technology), JG Orchard
{capital markets group), AB Shale (Asiamoney),
and DR} Willams (Euromoney) The discussions
of the committee are summansed by the group
chairman and reported 1o each board meeting,
together with recommendations on matiers
reserved for board decsions

Nominations committee

The nominations committee 15 responsible for
proposing candidates for appointment to the
board having regard to the balance of skills,
structure and composition of the board and
ensuring the appointees have sufficient time
avallable to devote to the role The chairman of
the committee, PM Fallon, died on October 14
2012 and was succeeded by PR Ensor, previously
a member of the nominattens committee On
December 12 2012 CHC Fordham was appointed
a member of the committee Following these
changes the committee comprises PR Ensor
{chairman of the commuttee), CHC Fordham
and four non-executive directors, being Sir
Patrick Sergeant, The WViscount Rothermere,
MWH Morgan and JC Botts The committee’s
terms of reference are avalable on the
companys website at  www euromoneyplc
com/reports/Norminationcommittee pdf

The committee meets when required and
this year met four times in Qctober 2012
to recommend the succession of PM Fallon
by PR Ensor as chairman of the nominations
committee, in Novemnber 2012 to recommend to
the board the appointment of ART Ballingal and
TP Hitlgarth as non-executives to the board, CHC
Fordham to the nominations commitiee and
C Benn as company secretary, in Decernber 2012
to recommend to the board the re-election of
directors retining by rotation, and in March 2013
to recommend to the board the appointment of
TP Hillgarth to the audit commuittee

The group's gender diversity information 1s set
out in the Corporate Governance report on
page 38

Corporate Governance
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Corporate Governance

continued

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee meets twice a year
and additionally as required It 1s responsible for
determining the contract terms, remuneration
and other benefits for executive directors,
incduding performance-related incentives This
committee also recommends and monitors the
levet of remuneration for senior management
and overall, induding group-wide share
option schemes The composition of the
commuttee, detals of directors’ remuneration
and mterests in share options and information
on directors” service contracts are set out in
the Drrectors’ Remuneration Report on pages
49 to 73 The commuttee’s terms of reference
are avallable on the company’s website at
http //'www euromoneyple com/freports/
Remunerationcommittee pdf

Audit committee

Detals of the members and role of the audit
committee are set out on page 39 The
committee’s terms of reference are avalable
on the company's website at http /www
euromoneyplc com/reports/Auditcommttee
pdf

Tax and treasury committee

The groups tax and treasury committee
normally meets twice a year and 1s responsible
for recommending policy to the board The
committee members are the chairman,
managing director and finance director of the
company, and the finance director and the
deputy finance director of DMGT The chairman
of the audit committee 1s also invited to attend
tax and treasury meetings The group's treasury
policies are directed to giving greater certainty of
future costs and revenues and ensuring that the
group has adequate liquidity for working capital
and debt capacity for funding acquisitions

Details of the tax and treasury policies are set
out in the Strategic Report on page 21

Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors bring both
independent views and the views of the
company’s major shareholder to the board
On December 12 2012, ART Balingal
(independent) and TP Hillgarth (independent)
were appointed non-executive directors of the
company JC Gonzalez (independent) retired as
a non-executive director at the Annual General
Meeting on January 31 2013 The other non-
executive directors who served duning the year
were The Viscount Rothermere, Sir Patrick
Sergeant, JC Botts, MWH Morgan, and DP
Pritchard (independent} Their biographies can
be found on page 34 of the accounts

At least once a year the company’s charman
meets the non-executive directors without the
executive directors being present The non-
executive directors meet without the company's
chairman present at least annually to appraise
the charrman’s performance and on other
0Ccasions as necessary

The board considers DP Pritchard, ART Bailingal
and TP Hillgarth to be independent non-
executive directors JC Botts has been on the
board for more than the recommended term
of nine years under the Code and the board
beleves that his length of service enhances his
role as a non-executive director However, due
to his length of service, JC Botts does not meet
the Code's definition of independence

Sir Patnick Sergeant has served on the board
in various roles since founding the company
in 1969 and has been a non-executive director
since 1992 As founder and president of
the company, the board believes his insight
and external contacts remain nvaluable
However, due to his length of service,
Sir Patnick Sergeant does not meet the Code's
definition of independence

The Viscount Rothermere has a significant
shareholdng 1n the company through his
beneficial holding tn DMGT and because of this
he 1s not considered independent

The Viscount Rothermere and MWH Morgan
are also executive directors of DMGT, an
intermediate parent company However, the
company 1S run as a separate, distinct and
decentralised subsidiary of DMGT and these
directors have no wwolvement i the day-to-
day management of the company They bring
valuable experience and advice to the company
and the board does not believe these non-
executive directors are able to exert undue
influence on decisions taken by the board,
nor does 1t consider their independence to be
impaired by thewr positions with DMGT However,
their relationship with DMGT means they do not
meet the Code’s definition of independence
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Board and committee meetings

Board and committee meetings are arranged well in advance of the meeting date and papers covenng the points to be discussed are distnbuted to its
members In advance of the meetings The followang table sets out the number of board and cornmittee meetings attended by the directors during the

year to September 30 2013

Executive Remuneration
committee

Board committee
Number of meetings held during year 6 10
Executive directors
PM Fallon {died October 14 2012} - -
PR Ensor - chairman 6 10
CHC Fordham - managing director 6 10
NF Osborn 6 10
DC Cohen 6 10
CR Jones - finance director 6 10
DE Alfano 6 10
JL Wilkinson 6 10
B AL-Rehany 6 8
Non-executive directors
The Viscount Rothermere 6 -
Sir Patnick Sergeant 4 -
IC Botts 5 -
JC Gonzalez {retired January 31 2013) 1 -
MWH Morgan 6 -
DP Prtchard 6 -
ART Ballingal {appointed December 12 2012) 3 -
TP Hiflgarth (appointed December 12 2012) 4 -

Board and committee effectiveness

3
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The Code requires an externally faclitated evaluation of the board every three years The external evaluation was due this year, but the board decided to
delay it until 2014 following the changes to the board earlier in the year, including the appointment of a new charman However, as in previous years, In
2013 the board, through its charrman, assessed its performance and that of its committees The charrman surveyed each board member and evaluated
the strengths and weaknesses of the board and its members In addition, each of the main committees completed a questionnaire encompassing key
areas within therr mandates The chairman concluded that the board and its commuttees had been effective throughout the year

As part of the performance evaluation the board are asked to assess the chairman's performance The results of the assessment are provided to the
non-executive directors for review in the absence of the group having a senior independent director It was concluded that the chairman had been

effective throughout the year

Corporate Governance
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Corporate Governance

continued

Diversity

The board believes that diversity I1s important for
board effectiveness However, diversity 1s much
more than an issue of gender, and includes a
diversity of skills, experence, nationality and
background Dwersity will continue to be a
key consideration when contemplating the
composition and refreshing of the board and
indeed senior and wider management The
board recognises that while the overall balance
of gender 15 good within the group, with 49%
of employees being female as at September 30
2013, there 15 still more work to be done to fulfil
overall diversity ambitions

Executive Permanent
Board committee employees

Male 13 14 1,099
Fernale 2 3 1,043
Total 15 17 2,142
% Female 13% 18% 49%

Communication with shareholders
The company’s charman, together with the
board, encourages regular dialogue with
shareholders Meetings with shareholders are
held, both in the UK and in the US, to discuss
annual and interm  results and  highlight
significant acquisiions or disposals, or at the
request of institutional shareholders Private
shareholders are encouraged to participate
in the Annual General Meeting In line wath
best practice all shareholders have at least 20
working days notice of the Annual General
Meeting at which the executive directors, non-
executive directors and committee chars are
avalable for questioning

The company’s charman and finance director
report to fellow board members matters
raised by shareholders and analysts to ensure
members of the board, in particular the
non-executive directors, develop an
understanding of the investors’ and potential
investors’ view of the company

Internal control and risk
management

The board as a whole 15 responsible for the
oversight of nisk, the group’s system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness Such
a system 15 designed {0 manage rather than
eliminate the nsk of fallure to achteve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss

In accordance wath principle € 2 and € 2 1 of the
Code and section 34 of the Revised Guidance
for Directors on Internal Control (formatly called
Turnbull guidance}, the board has implemented
a contnuing process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the matenal nsks faced by the
group

The board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the group's system of internal control and nisk
management systems and has taken account of
material developments which have taken place
since September 30 2012 It has considered the
major business and financial nsks, the control
environment and the results of internal audit
Steps have been taken to embed nternal
control and nsk management further Into
the operations of the group and to deal with
areas of improvement which have come to
management’s and the board’s attention

Key procedures which the directors have
established with a wiew to providing effective
internal control, and which have been in place
throughout the year and up to the date of this
report, are as follows

The board of directors

® theboard normally meets six imes a year to
consider group strategy, nsk management,

financial  performance,  acquisitions,
business development and management
155ues,

e the board has overall responsibility for the
group and there 1s a formal schedule of
matters specifically reserved for decision by
the board,

&  each executive director has been given
responsibility for specific aspects of the
group’s affaurs,

e the board reviews and assesses the group’s
principal risks and uncertainties at least
annually,

& the board seeks assurance that effective
control 15 being mantained through
regular reports from business group
management, the audit committee and
vanous independent monitonng functions,
and

¢ the board approves the annual forecast
after performing a review of key nsk
factors Performance is monitored regularly
by way of varances and key performance
indicators to enable relevant action to
be taken and forecasts are updated each
quarter The board considers longer-term
financial projections as part of its regular
discussions on the group’s strategy and
funding requirements

Executive management of nsk 15 provided by
a nsk committee compnsing the chairman,
managing director and finance director,
which reports to the board each month and 15
responsible for managing and addressing risk
matters as they anse In addition, the group
employs an informatton secunty manager,
a data protection manager and a nsk and
comphance officer as well as having the ability
to draw on the resources of DMGT's nisk and
assurance should 1t be considered necessary

During the year and up to the approval of this
annual report and accounts the board has not
wdentified nor been advised of any failings or
weaknesses in the group’s system of internat
control which it has determined to be significant
Therefore a confirmation of necessary actions
has not been considered appropriate
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Investment appraisal

The managing director, finance director and
business group managers consider proposals
for acquisitions and new bustness investments
Proposals beyond speafied limits are put to
the board for approval and are subject to due
diligence by the groups finance team and,
if necessary, independent adwsors Capital
expenditure I1s regulated by strict authorisation
contrals For capital expenditure above specified
levels, detalled written proposals must be
submitted to the board and reviews are carried
out to monitor progress against business plan

Accounting and computer systems
controls and procedures

Accounting controls and procedures  are
regularly revewed and communicated
throughout the group Particular attention 15
pad to authonsation levels and segregation of
duties The group’s tax, finanang and foreign
exchange positions are overseen by the tax and
treasury committee, which meets at least twice
ayear Controls and procedures over the security
of data and disaster recovery are perodically
reviewed and are subject to internal audit

Internal audit

The group’s internal audit function 1s managed
by DMGT's internal audit department, working
closely with the company's finance director
Internal audit draws on the services of the
group’s central finance teams to assist In
completing the audit assignments Internal audit
aims to prowide an independent assessment as
to whether effective systems and controls are in
place and being operated to manage significant
operating and financial nisks It also ams to
support management by providing cost effective
recommendations to mitigate nsk and control
weaknesses identified during the audit process,
as well as provide nsight into where cost
efficencies and monetary gains might be made
by improving the operations of the business
Businesses and central departments are selected
for an internal audit visit on a nsk-focused basis,
taking account of the nsks identified as part
of the nsk management process, the rnisk and
mateniality of each of the group’s businesses,
the scope and findings of external audit work,

and the departments and businesses reviewed
previously and the findings from these reviews
This approach ensures that the internal audit
focus 13 placed on the higher nisk areas of the
group, while ensuring an appropriate breadth
of coverage DMGTS internal audit reports
its findings to management and to the audit
committee

Accountability and audit

Audit committee

Commuttee composition, skifl and
expenence

The audit committee compnises DP Pntchard
{chairman, independent), JC Botts, SW Daintith,
the finance director of BMGT and from March
12 2013 TP Hillgarth (independent) JC Gonzalez
{independent) retred from the committee on
January 31 2013 Three of the four members
are non-executive directors All members of the
committee have a high level of financial literacy,
SW Daintith and TP Hillgarth are chartered
accountants and members of the ICAEW, and
DP Pritchard has considerable audit committee
experience

Responsibifities

The committee meets at least three times each

financial year and 1s responsible for

® monitoring the integnty of the intenm
report, the annual report and accounts
and other related formal statements,
reviewing accounting polices apphed and
Judgements applied,

& reviewing the content of the annual report
and accounts and advising the board
on whether, taken as a whole, 1t 15 far,
balanced and understandable and provides
the infarmation necessary for shareholders
to assess the companys performance,
business model and strategy,

& considenng the effectiveness of the group’s
internal financial control systems,

¢ considening the  appomntment  or
reappontment of the external auditors
and 1o review therr remuneration, both for
audit and non-audit,

® monitoning and reviewsng the external
audrtors’ independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process,

¢ monitonng and reviewing the resources
and effectiveness of internal audt,

e reviewing the internal audit programme
and receming penodic reports on s
findings,

¢ reviewing the whistle-blowng
arrangements avalable to staff,

¢ reviewing the groups polcy on the
employment of former audit staff, and

® reviewing the group’s policy on non-audit
fees

The audit committee’s terms of reference are
available at www euromoneyplc com/reports/
Auditcommittee pdf

Content of the annual report

and accounts — fair, balanced and
understandable

One of the key governance requirements
of a group's financal statements 1s for the
report and accounts to be far, balanced and
understandable The co-ordination and review
of the group-wide Input to the annual report
and accounts Is a sizeable exercise performed
within an exactng tme-frame which runs
alongside the formal audit process undertaken
by the external auditors

Arriving at a position where iniially the audit

committee, ang then the board, are sausfied

with the overall fairness, balance and clanty of

the report and accounts 15 underpinned by the

following

®  attendance by the committee members and
the board in the summer at a comprehensive
training session on corporate governance
matters, and speafically the new reporting
and legislative requirements,

® early preparaton by management
and review by the committee of key
components of the annual repon,
particularly those reflecting new disclosure
and reporting requirements,

® comprehensive reviews undertaken by
management, a sub-committee of the
directors and the auditors to ensure
consistency and overall balance,
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knowledge sharng by management of
key nsks and matters lkely to affect the
annual report through attendance by the
charman of the audit committee at the
annua! Internal audit planning meeting
and tax and treasury committee meetings
held dunng the year as well as through
the audit committee chairman’s regular
meetings with management and internal
audit,

a twice yearly review by the audit committee
of key assumptions and judgements
made by management in preparation of
the annual and intenm reports as well as
considenng significant 1ssues ansing during
the year

Financial reporting and sigrificant
financial judgements

The committee, with input from the external
audrtor, assessed whether suitable accounting
polices had been adopted, whether
management had made appropnate estimates
and judgements and whether disclosures were
balanced and fair For the year ended September
30 2013 the committee reviewed the following
main issues

accounting for acquisitions of
TTlVanguard, Insider Publishing,
Quantitatve Techniques and CIE, and the
valuation of acquisiion commitments
and deferred consideration including that
related to previous acquisions including
NDR The committee discussed the
appropriateness of the life of the intangible
asset, and the methodology around and
inputs nto the calculation of the amounts
concerned The committee was satisfied
these were reasonable and appropriate,

presentation of the financal statements
and In particular, the presentation of
the adjusted performance and the
adjusting items The committee reviewed
the financial statements and discussed
with management and the auditor the
appropriateness of the adjusted items
including consideration of their consistency
and the avoidance of any misleading effect

on the financial statements The committee
was satisfied these were appropriate,
consistent and complete,

at the request of the board, the committee
considered whether the 2013 Annual
Report and Accounts was fair, balanced and
understandable and whether 1t prowided
the necessary information for shareholders
to assess the groups performance,
business model and strategy Following the
committee’s review of the accounts and
after applying therr knowledge of matters
raised dunng the year the committee was
satisfied that, taken as a whole, the Annual
Report and Accounts 1s fair, balanced and
understandable,

assessing  significant  provisions  and
accruals induding tax prowisions  The
committee discussed with management
and the auditor how the provision levels
were determined and calculated They also
discussed matters not provided against
to establish if this was appropnate The
chairman of the audit committee also
attends the tax and treasury committee
which provides valuable insight into the
tax matters and related prowvisions The
committee was satisfled that these were
adequate and appropriate,

assessing the recognition and
measurement of deferred tax assets and
labilities The commuttee discussed the
deferred tax balances with the auditor
and management to establish how they
were determined and calculated As
stated above, the chairman of the audit
committee attends the tax and treasury
committee which also helps establish the
appropnateness of the recogrition of the
deferred tax balances The committee was
satisfied that these were appropnately
recognised,

the carrying value of goodwall and intangible
assets and any potential impairments The
committee discussed the appropriateness
of the life of the intangible assets and the
methodology around and inputs into the
calculation supporting the carrying value
of the amounts concerned It was satisfied
that no provisions or impairments were
required and that the disclosures were
reasonable and appropriate,

captalsation of nternally generated
intangible assets in relaton to  the
implementation of the global management
content systern The comrittee discussed
with management and the auditor the
type of expenditure capitalised to help
ensure this was In accordance with the
group’s accounting pahicy in this area The
committee had previously discussed and
approved the group’s accounting policy,
including the amortisation period, related
to this type of spend The committee
was satisfied the capitabsaton of the
internally generated intangible assets were
reasonable and appropriate,

revenue recognition in relation to the
cut-off for publications and events, the
deferral of subscription revenues and
the treatment of voting and commission
share agreement revenues The committee
discussed with management the internal
controls in place in this area and what work
the auditor had completed on revenue
recognition

the appropriateness of the disclosures for
going concern at year end by review of
the avallable faciities, facility headroom,
the banking covenants and the sensitivity
analyses on these tems The committee
was satisfied that the going concern basis
of preparation continues to be appropriate
in the context of the group’s funding and
llquidity position
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External audttors
As noted the committee has pnmary
responsibility for making a recommendation to
the board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditors, together with
approval of therr remuneration As part of its
rofe n ensunng effectiveness, the committee
has completed a formal review which focused
on the effectiveness, mdependence and
objectivity of the external audit and included
the following areas

® the audit partners and audit teams with
particular focus on the tead audrt partner
including an annual assessment of the
qualifications, expertise and resources of
the external auditors,

e planning and scope of the audit and
identification of areas of audit nsk,

e the execution of the audit including the
robustness and perceptiveness of the
auditors in handhng therr key accounting
and audit judgements,

® the role of management in an effective
audit process,

e communications by the auditor, including
the qualty of thew reporting and the
avalability of the tead audit partner to
meet senior management and to discuss
matters with the committee,

&  how the auditor supported the work of the
audit commitiee,

¢ how the audt contnbuted insights and
added value,

¢ a review of independence and objectvity
of the audit firm,

& the quality and content of the formal audit
report n the annual report,

e the appropriateness of the audit fee
including value for money considerations
but also to ensure a sufficient quality of
work can be achieved for the fee proposed,

o results of regulatory reviews by the audit
inspection unit

The appointment of Deloitte as the group’s
external auditor (incumbents since the last audit
tender in 1998)1s kept under annual review and,
if satisfactory, the committee will recommend
the reappointment of the audit firm The

appointment of Deloitte followed a formal
tender process undertaken in 1998 and, rather
than adopting a policy on tendenng frequency,
the annual review of the effectiveness of the
external audit 15 supplemented by a penodic
comprehensive reassessment by the committee
The last such reassessment was performed
in financial year 2009, when having received
assurances on the continued quality of the
audit, the committee determined to recommend
the reappointment of the incumbent firm As
the appointment of the auditor 1s for one year
only, being subject to annual approval at the
company's Annual General Meeting, there I1s no
contractual commitment to the current audit
firm and, as such, the committee may undertake
an audit tender at any time at 1ts discretion

The committee has reviewed the changes to the
Code including the new provision for FTSE 350
companies to put the external audit contract
out to tender at least every ten years Having
constdered the FRCS guidance on ahgning
the tming of such tenders with the audut
engagement rotation cycle, it 15 the cormmittee’s
intention to imtiate an audit tender process
in 2015 This policy will be kept under review
and the committee will use its regular review of
audit effectiveness to assess whether an earlier
date for such a tender 1s desirable

Having considered the output of the review
above, the committee recommends the
reappointment of Deloitte as the group’s auditor
at the next Annual General Meeting

Effectiveness of internal financial
control systems

The committee invests time In meeting with
internal audit to better understand therr work
and 1ts outcome At each meeting of the
committee Internal audit present a detaled
report covering controls audited since the last
meeting, matters 1dentified and updates to
any previous control 1ssues stll outstanding
The commuittee challenges internal audit and
discusses these audits and matters identified
as appropnate Internal audit supplement therr
work through a series of peer reviews completed

by finance people across the group but
independent from the business being audited
The peer reviews audit the operation of key
internal cantrols which have been confirmed by
the businesses as in place through a six-monthly
control standards sign-off Internal audit review
the findings of thus supplemental work and
present a summary to the committee at each
audit committee meeting This 15 challenged by
the commitiee and discussed as necessary

Resources avatlable to internal audit
and rts effectiveness

The committee monitors the level and skill
base avalable to the group from internal audit
Although internal audit areas are planned a
year ahead, the amount of time avallable to the
group from mternal audit 1s not fixed Internal
audit 15 able to scale up resource as required
and draws on finance pecple across the wider
DMGT group as well as regularly supplementing
its team through the use of specalists

The committee are able to monitor the
effectiveness of internal audit through thewr
involvement in 1ts focus, planning, process
and outcome The committee approve the
internal audit plan and any revision to this
dunng the year, the char of the committee
15 invited to attend the mitial internal audit
planning meeting between management and
internal audit Internal audit present, at each
audit committee meeting, a summary of their
work and findings, the results of the mternal
audit team’s follow up of completed reviews
and a summary of assurance work completed
by others including 151 {Internet Securities Ing,
a2 mult-location subsidiary business) internal
audits, technology audits, crculation audits,
polls and awards audits and peer reviews (as
explained above} Internal audit 5 also involved
in other nsk assurance projects including fraud
inwvestigation, an annual fraud and bnbery nsk
assessment, information secunty and business
continuity Internal audit 1s subject to an external
review every five years, the results of which are
fed back to the commuttee This external review
was last carried out in September 2013
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Non-audit work

The audit committee completes an annual
assessment of the type of non-audit work
permissible and a de minirms level of non-audit
fees acceptable Any non-audit work performed
outside this remit 15 assessed and where
appropnate approved by the committee Fees
paid to Deloitte for audit services, audit related
services and other non-audit services are set out
in note 4 During 2013 Deloitte did not provide
significant  non-audit sermces  The group’s
non-audit fee polcy s avalable on the
company's website (www euromoneyplc com/
reports/nonauditfee pdf}

Annual Report and Accounts

The directors have responsibilty for prepanng
the 2013 annual report and accounts and for
making certain confirmations concerning 1t In
accordance with the Code provision C 11 the
board considers that taken as a whole, 1t 1s far,
balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess
the company's performance, business model
and strategy

The board reached this conclusion after recerving
advice from the audit committee

Statement by the directors on
compliance with the Code

The UK Listing Rules require the board to report
on comphance throughout the accounting year
with the applicable principles and provisions
of the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code
1ssued by the Financial Reporting Counal Since
its formation in 1969, the company has had a
majonty shareholder, Dally Maill and General
Trust plc (DMGT) As majority shareholder,
DMGT retains two non-executive positions on
the board These non-executive directors are not
regarded as independent under the Code In
addition, the company’s founder, president and
ex-chairman, Sirr Patrick Sergeant, remains on
the board but is not regarded as an independent
director under the Code As a result, the
company faled to comply throughout the
financial year ended September 30 2013 with
certain prowvisions in the Code as set out below

The company has, however, made significant
stndes over the past few years to bring its
board structure more In kine with best practice
In particular, the number of executive directors
has been reduced to eight, compared to 14
In 2009, and two new independent directors
were appointed at the beginning of the year
It 1s the company’s intention over time to get
to a position where the majonty of its board
comprises non-executive directors, even If not
all are Independent because of their relationship
with DMGT

Prowsion B 12 states that half the board,
excluding the chairman, should be comprised of
non-executive directors determined by the board
to be independent For the majonty of the year
the board, excluding the chairman, comprised
14 directors of whom seven were non-executive
but only three were considered independent
under the Code However, there are clear
divisions of responsibility within the board such
that no one indmdual has unfettered powers
of decision The board, although large, does
not consider itself to be unwieldy and believes
it 15 beneficial to have representatives from key
areas of the business at board meetings

JC Botts has been on the board for more than
the recommended term of mine years under the
Code and the board believes that hss length of
service enhances his role as a non-executive
director However, due to his length of service,
IC Botts does not meet the Code’s definition of
independence

Sir Patnick Sergeant has served on the board
In various roles since founding the company
In 1969 and has been a non-executive director
since 1992 As founder and president of the
company, the board believes his insight and
external contacts remain invaluable However,
due to his length of service, Sir Patrick Sergeant
does not meet the Code's defintion of
independence

The Viscount Rothermere has a significant
shareholding mn the company through his
beneficial holding in DMGT and because of this
he 15 not considered independent

The Viscount Rothermere and MWH Morgan
are also executive directors of DMGT, an
intermediate  parent company  However,
the company 15 run as a separate, distinct
and decentralised subsidiary of OMGT and
these directors have no involvement in the
day-to-day management of the company
They bring valuable expenence and advice to
the company and the board does not believe
these non-executive directors are able to exert
undue nfluence on decisions taken by the
board, nor does it consider their independence
to be impared by therr posstions with DMGT
However, their relationship with DMGT means
they do not meet the Code's defimition of
independence

Contrary to provision A 4 1, the board has not
identified a senior independent non-executive
director However, JC Botts, although not
independent due 1o his length of service, acts as
senior non-executive director

Provision B 2 1 requires that the majonty of the
nominations committee should be comprised of
independent non-executive directors  Although
the committee consists of four non-executive
and two executive directors, none of these
non-executive directors can be considered
independent under the Code

Provision B 32 states that the terms and
condiions of appointment of non-executive
directors should be avalable for inspection
JC Botis, DP Pnitchard, ART Ballingal and
TP Hillgarth have terms and conditions
of appontment, however, The Viscount
Rothermere, MWH Morgan and Sir Patrick
Sergeant operate under the terms of therr
employment contracts with DMGT  and
Euromoney respectively
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Provision B 6 2 requires the board of FTSE 350
companies to be externally faclitated every
three years As explained above, due to the
changes in the board this year, including the
appointment of a new chairman, the board
decided to delay this external review until 2014
An internal evaluation of board effectiveness
was completed

Prowsions €31 and D21 require the
remuneration and audit committees to comprise
entirely of iIndependent non-executive directors
The repuneration committee 15 compnsed of
three non-executive directors, one of whom can
be considered independent under the Code
During the year, the audit committee comprised
four members, only three of which were
non-executive directors of the company, only
two of whom can be considered independent
under the Code

On alf of the board

L)

Richard Ensor
Charrman
November 13 2013

-
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Corporate and Social Responsibility

The group 15 diverse and operates through
a large number of businesses 1 many
geographical locations Each business prowides
important channels of communicatton to
different sections of society throughout the
world The success of the group's businesses
owes much to understanding and engaging
with the communities they serve both locally
and globally

The paragraphs below provide more detalled
explanations on key areas of corporate
responsibility

Environmental responsibility

The group does not operate directly in industnes
where there s the potential for senious industnal
pollution It does not print products in-house or
have any investments in printing works It takes
its environmental responsibility seriously and
comples with all relevant environmental laws and
regulations in each country In which 1t operates
Wherever economically feasible, account 15
taken of environmental 1ssues when placing
contracts with suppliers of goods and services
and these suppliers are regularly reviewed and
monitored Faor (nstance, the group's two biggest
print contracts are outsourced to companies

GREENHOUSE EMISSION STATEMENT

who have environment management systems
comphant with the 150 14001 standard The
paper used for the group’s publications is
produced from pulp obtained from sustainable
forests, manufactured under stnct, monitored
and accountable environmental standards

The group 1s not a heavy user of energy,
however, 1t does manage 1ts energy
requirements sensibly using low-energy office
equipment where possible and using a commen
sense approach to office energy management
For instance, the UK group uses new secure
multi-functional  device technology which
enables two sded prnting and allows
employees to delete unwanted documents at
the printer before pnnting This initiative should
reduce paper, ink and electricity usage

Each office within the group 15 encouraged
to reduce waste, reuse paper and only print
documents and emalls where necessary The
main offices across the group also recycle
waste where possible This year the UK, US
and Canadian offices recycled 81,000kg of
paper and card, which 1s equivalent to more
than 900 trees

Greenhouse Gas {(GHG) reporting

The company, as part of the wider Daily Mail and
General Trust plc group (DMGT), participates in
a DMGT group-wide carbon footprint analysis
completed by ICF Internatwonal This exercise
has been undertaken every year since 2007
using the widely recognised GHG protocol
methodology developed by the World Resource
Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development This year, the group’s
carbon footprint has been restated in order to
account for matenal changes to the conversion
factors provided by Defra for company reporting
purposes

The drrectors are committed to reducing
the group’s absolute carbon emissions and
managing its carben footprint The company, as
part of the wider DMGT group, commtted to
reducing its absolute carbon ermissions by 10%
from the baseline year of 2007 by the end of
2012 Thetargeted 10% reduction was achieved
two years early fn 2012 the company, as part of
the wider DMGT group, set a challenging new
target to reduce 1ts carbon footprint relative to
revenue by 10% from the 2012 base by the end
of 2015

The following emissions have been calculated according to the Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard {(revised edition}
methodology Data was gathered to fulfil the requirements under the CRC Energy Effioency scheme, and emission factors from the UK Government's
GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting 2014 The carbon footprint 1s expressed in tonnes of Carbon Dioxade equivalent and includes all the
Kyoto Protocol gases that are of relevance to the business The company’s footprint covers emissions from uts global operations and the following emission
sources Scope 1 and 2 {as defined by the GHG Protocal), business travel and outsourced delivery activities

ASSESSMENT PARAMETERS

Basehne year
Consolidation approach

Boundary summary
Consistency with the financial statements

Assessment methodology
Intensity ratio

2012
Operational control

All entities and facilimies either owned or under operational control

The only vanation 1s that leased properties, under operationa! control
are Included in scope 1 and 2 data, all scope 3 emissions are
off-balance sheet emissions

Greenhouse Gas Protocol and Defra environmental reporting guidelines
Emissions per £mulion of revenue
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GREENHOQUSE GAS EMISSION SQURCE 2013 2012

(tCOe)  (tCOe}/ £m) {tCO,e) (tCO,e}/£m)
Scope 1 Combustion of fuel and operation of faclities 200 05 200 05
Scope 2 Electriaty, heat, steam and cooling purchased for own use 3,100 77 3,000 76
Total scope 1 and 2* 3,300 82 3,200 81
Scope 3 Business travel and outsourced actmwities 7,700 190 7,400 188
Total emissions 11,000 27.2 10,600 269

*  Statuloey carbon reporung disciosures required by Companies Act 2006

FTSE4Good

The group was Included

for the first time in the

FTSE4Good index In

2011 and continued

to be a constituent of the index in 2013 The
group has maintained its ESG rating of 3/5 and
has a group percentile rating of 44% i the ICB
‘Global Super Sector’

FTSE Group confirms that Euromoney Institutional
Invester PLC has been independently assessed
according 1o the FTSE4Good cnitena, and has sausfed
the requirements to become a constituent of the
FTSE4Gocod Index Series FTSE4Good 1s an equity index
series destgned 1o facilitate investment in companies
that meet globally recogrised corporate responsibiity
standards Companies in the FTSE4Goed Index
Series have met stringent environmental, social and
governance ¢ritena, and are posttioned to capitalise on
the benefits of responsible business practice

Social responsibility

The group continues to expand its chantable
actvitees and raised over £1 4 million for local
and nternational charitable causes dunng
the year These contnbutrons came from its
own chantable budget, individual employee
fundraising efforts and also from clients who
generously made donations 1n support of
the company’s charitable projects The group
also continues to encourage employees to
be involved actively in supporting chanties by
fundraising themselves which it then matches

The group works and partners with recognised
chantable organisations that have expertise
within certain sectors, thus ensurnng that
the implementation and management of a
charnitable project 15 carned out efficiently and
that donated funds reach the communities at
which the chantable cause 15 amed At the
same tme, the chanty committee 1s careful
to address the sustainability aspects in each
chantable project to ensure a long lasting
beneficial impact

Below 1s a summary of some of the charitable
actwities undertaken in the past year

Water and

Sanitation,

Kechene,

Addis Ababa,

Ethiopia

Since February 2011, the group has supported
the African and Medical Research Foundation
(AMREF) with s sustaimable water and
sanitation project In Addis Ababa, Ethiopia
The group's funding far the project to date has
exceeded £260,000, with additional funds to be
donated in the coming months to fund a second
phase of the project Working together, AMREF
and Euromoney have provided better access
to water, sanitation and health information
for more than 19,000 residents of Kechene
Programme actwities have included the
construction of 12 saritation kiosks, nine water
storage tankers, and seven community shower
faalties, as well as rebuilding two water springs
24 local water and sanitation commttees have
also been established which are now managing
these facilities

Activitiesin 2013 have included the construction
of two samtation kiosks and three water
storage tanks, as well as reaching a total of
2,420 residents with hygiene and sanitation
campaigns and education sessions These
activities are having a notable impact on the
health of communities in Kechene Euromoney
plans to fund a second phase of AMREF's water
and sanitation project in Kechene which waill
see the orgarmisation extend its proven model of
developing community run water and sanitation
facliies to more communities throughout
the slum

Grvarnanca
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Little Rock School,

Kibera, Narobi, Kenya

This project involved

funding the cost of land

and the construction of

new school premises for Little Rock School and
was completed in February 2013 The onginal
Little Rock premises consisted of five separate
rented buildings spread across the slum area of
Kibera in Nairobi The school has 16 classrooms,
a computer and physiotherapy rooms and
kitchens The school caters for over 300 full-
time pupils (one third of whom are disabled)
and over 200 after-school pupils

Lttle Rock s much more than a school
in addition to day teaching, 1t prowdes a
feeding programme, after-schools clubs, term
holday tutoring, a public bbrary, commurity
engagement, parent support groups and an
ncome generaung workshop This  holistic
approach empowers children, famibes and the
community to work together to improve the
lives of some of the most vulnerable chuldren in
the world, not only while they attend Little Rock
but with skills and resources they carry forward
into further schooting

The co-ordination of the Little Rock is carned out
by AbleChildAfnca, a UK-headquartered charity
which specialises exdusively in advocating for
and supporting disabled children and disabled
young people in East Africa

The school’s operations are now on a much
sounder faoting but 1t still needs over £150,000
a year to operate (70% of the costs involve
teacher salanes) Thereis no government funding
and Ittle income from the childrens’ parents
as all the puptls live In very poor conditions in
Kibera Euromoney continues to help with part
of the funding and our employees have played
a very active role in helping to fund some of the
operating costs of Liitle Rock over the past year
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Water Well Project in

Krmbunga Valley,

Mombasa, Kenya

Euromoney has continued I1ts

support of Haller's work in

the Kisuam District, north of

Mombasa in Kenya, to help

rural  communities  become

self-sufficient  This  year, Euromoney has
sponsored the prototype and demonstration
model for a new nnovative eco-sarutation
faclity and the funding for an additional
four community faaltles to prowvide basic
sanitation and to ensure water supplies are not
contarninated This infrastructure 15 combined
with extensive farmer traintng which will help
transform the fertility of their land, suitable to
grow crops This year's funding 15 expected to
help approximately 1,600 people by providing
thern with the infrastructure and support they
need to achieve sustainable livelinoods

Anchor House,

Cannming Town,

London E16

Anchor House s

a residental and

Iife skills centre far single, homeless people In
Newham - the second most deprived borough
in the UK It ams to turn s 1960s-style
bulding into a 21* Century facility providing
workshops for vocational courses, an e-learning
zone, a new kitchen traning facility and 25
new ‘move on’ studio flats for residents
Anchor House 15 transforming (tself nto a
restdential Iife-skills centre for the homeless
It annually supports around 180 people and
provides & stable and safe environment to
help them develop aspirations, confidence and
self-esteem, thus enabling them to move
towards leading ndependent and self-fulfilling
Iives Euromoney raised over £45,000 for Anchor
House 1n 2013, in addition to the £175,000
raised at the EuroWeek 25™ Anmiversary Awards
Dinnerin 2012

fRnvarnanra
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Trachoma Project, South

Omo, Ethiopia

Thes project ams to provide

clean water and santaton

faalities to help eradicate

trachoma (a chronic, contagious inflammatory
eye disease which can lead to bhndness)
and 1s run jointly by ORBIS and AMREF The
am 15 to improve the water and sanitation
faclites for 230,000 people within the
South Omo commuruty, Improve the primary
eye-care services for 644,000 people, treat
over 550,000 people suffering from trachoma
with anttbiotics, surgically treat 13,000 adult
sufferers of trachema and train 16 eye care
workers and 600 teachers 1o 1dentify trachoma
symptoms

The first 12 months

of the project have

been taken up with

a thorough planning

and research phase Key milestones duning 2013

have included

& a three day planning workshop in Addis
Ababa followed by a series of meetings
with government staff to develop plans for
the implementation of the project for the
South Omo region,

e the mapping of trachoma inadence across
South Omo which has created an accurate
picture of the prevalence of the disease,
and

® an analysis of the regon’s water and
sanitation facilities

The full project delivery plan has now been
developed with two regions in South Omo
priornised due to ther high incidence of
trachoma and dense populations The project I1s
expected to begin in early 2014

At its July 2012 Awards Dinner, Euromoney
raised over £480,000 to fund the first two years
of this five-year project and the group raised a
further £49,000 1n 2013

Action Against

Cancer

Action Against Cancer

funds the development of cures for cancer at
Impenal College, led by the world-renowned
oncologist Professor Justin Stebbing The funds
are being devoted to the development of a new
drug airmed at blocking a cancer-causing gene,
which Professor Stebbing’s team discovered and
found to be responsible for promoting resistance
to treatment to available cancer treatments The
drug, once developed, will be made avalable to
all The work will be undertaken i memory of
the company's former chairman, Padraic Fallon,
who lost s battle with cancer in October 2012

Euromoney has raised a total of £1 million
including client contnbutions at the annuat
Euromoney and EuroWeek awards dinners as
well as individual contnibutions from employees
which are being match-funded by DMGT In
additton, numerous other fundraising mnitiatives
by vanous dwisions ncluding Institutional
Investor and American Metat Market have also
rased funds for the chanty

Télécoms Sans Frontieres

Close to 100 runners took part in a Skm fun run
at TelCap's (TW conference held in Chicago and
raised U5$15,000 for Télécoms Sans Frontiéres,
the  humanitanan-aad  non-governmental
organisation specialising in telecommunications
for emergency situations

Expert Miracles Foundation

Institutional Investor raised over US$95,000
at ther annual awards dinners for the Expert
Miracles Foundation, which 1s ¢ne of the
leading advocates in the fight aganst cancer
within the financial services industry, and the
High Water Women Backpack Program which
helps thousands of children start the school
year ready to learn by providing fully-supplied
backpacks for children in need

Project Paz

Latin  Finance

raised over US$31,000 at iis Deal of the Year
Awards Dinner for Project Paz, which focuses
s work for underprvileged children In
Ciudad Juarez/El Paso, Mexico by expanding
and strengthening children’s basic education
development with complimentary educational
activities and extended after-school hours
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Report from the chairman of the remuneration committee

Information not subject to audit

Remuneration report contents

This report covers the reporting peniod from

October 1 2012 to September 30 2013 and

includes three sections

¢ the report from the charman of the
remuneration committee setting out the
key decisions taken on executive and
senior management pay during the year,

e the policy report which outlines the
remuneration policy for the year to
Septernber 2014, and

e the annual implementation report on
remuneration which outlines how the
current remuneratton  policy has been
implemented this financial year, including
details of payments made and outcomes
for the vanable pay elements based on
performance for the year

This report has been prepared in accordance
with the relevant requirements of the Large
and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regutations 2013 ("the
Regulations”} and of the Listing Rules of the
Financtal Conduct Authority As required by the
Regulations, a separate resolution to approve

the policy and implementation reports will be
proposed at the company’s AGM

Report from the chairman of the
remuneration committee

2013 was the first year for the company’s new
sentor management team, appointed fallowing
a comprehensive search In conjunction with
Egon Zhender In October 2012, Chnstopher
Fordham succeeded Richard Ensor as managing
director, and the latter moved to the role of
executive chairman to succeed Padraic Fallon
who sadly ded before he had a chance to
complete his retirement plans

With the help of its adwisers, the committee
spent considerable tme benchmarking the
remuneration package of Mr Fordham against
those on offer across other FTSE 250 companies
as well as those avalable within the media
sector in general Mr Fordham's salary was
set at a relatively low base compared to the
market, although relatvely high by Euromoney
standards At the same time his profit share was
rebased to reward above average profit growth
from his appaintment which, together with

his partiopation 1in the Capital Appreciation
Flan, will help ahgn his reward with that of
shareholders The committee deaded to
leave Mr Ensor's profit share unchanged as he
continued to carry out an executive role

The remuneration committee also reviews
the remuneration and incentive plans of the
executive directors and other key people across
the group as well as looking at the remuneration
costs and pohicies of the group as a whole One
result of this and the management succession
plan referred to above was an increase in the
salaries of Colin Janes, finance director, and
Jane Wikinson who combines the roles of
director of marketing and CEQ of Institutional
Investar These were the only changes made
to the salaries and incentives of the executive
directors during financial year 2013

The committee structures remuneration
packages fo encourage an entrepreneunal
culture with a focus on profit growth alongside
tight cost control and nsk management This
generally means setung salanes below market
levels, with a sigrificant part of a directors
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Report from the chairman of the remuneration committee continued

remuneration derived from variable profit dnven
incentives The importance of vanable pay to
each director's total remuneration 1s llustrated
on pages 60 and 61

The committee 15 also a strong believer in
long-term incentives to drive profit growth and
akgn the interests of executive management
with those of shareholders The company's
Capntal Appreciation Plan (CAP), furst intreduced
In 2004, has been a key driver of the company's
growth over the past ten years with adjusted
profit before tax increasing more than fivefold
from a base of £21 3 mihen In 2003 to £116 5
million in 2013 (see chart on page 49)

The group's long-term incentive plan, the CAP, 1s
an mportant part of the group’s remuneration
strategy It 1s a highly geared performance-
based share option scheme which directly
rewards executives for the growth in profits
of the businesses they manage, and links to
the delivery of shareholder value by satisfying
rewards in a mix of shares in the company and
cash 1t aims to deliver exceptional profit growth
over the performance penod and for this profit
to be maintaned over the subsequent vesting
period

Since the mplementation of CAP 2010,
adiusted profit before tax has increased
from £63 0 milion 1n 2009, the base year, to
£116 5 million in 2013, an increase of 85% over
four years The second and final tranche of CAP
2010 wall vest for the majonty of participants in
February 2014

The remuneration committee 1S proposing,
subject to shareholder approval at the 2014
AGM, to put in place a new CAP, CAP 2014,
in order to dnve further above average profit
growth and to help retan key employees
The performance target for CAP 2014 will be
approprnately demanding, requinng the group
10 generate profit growth of at least 10% a year
{or RPI plus 5%, whichever is higher) over a four
year penad from a base of profits achieved in
2013 If the profit target of £173 6 milkon s
achieved by 2017, CAP rewards will vest in three

tranches in February 2018, 2019 and 2020,
with the second and third tranches subject to
an additional RPi test as well as the requirement
for ndividual businesses to achieve at least 80%
of the profits achieved in 2017 This ensures
that the profits of the group are maintained 1n
relation to at least inflation and the businesses
continue to focus on profit growth

CAP 2014 will cost the group, In accounting
terms, no more than £41 million over its [ife and
will be satisfied with approximately 3 5 million
ordinary shares and £10 milion in cash The
shares will be purchased in the market over the
next few years

The committee also focuses on the remuneration
of the wader group and this year approved
an average group-wide salary increase of just
under 2% {excluding promotions) !n approving
this increase, the committee ensured that the
directors and local management considered
inflation n focal areas in which the group
operates, the performance of the businesses
they work for, micro and macroeconomic
factors, market rates for simfar roles and
the skills and responsibility of the indwiduals
concerned The Increases proposed by local
management were focused on those individuals
who excelled in therr roles and were performing
above expectatons This means that strong
performing employees receved an increase
well above the average and conversely those
who weren't meeting expectations received no
Increase

Remuneration committee

During the year the remuneration committee
compnised JC Botts (charman), MWH Morgan,
and DP Pritchard (independent) All members of
the committee are non-executive directors of
the company MWH Morgan 1s also a director
of Daily Mall and General Trust plc, the group’s
parent company For the year under review, the
commuttee also sought advice and information
from the companys charrman, managing
director and finance director The committee’s
terms of reference permit its members to
obtan professional advice on any matter, at the

compary’s expense, although none did so in
2013 The group itself can use external advice
and information i preparing proposals for the
remuneration committee [t does apply external
benchmarking although no matenal assistance
fromn a single source was received in 2013

The key activities of the commitiee In the year

ended September 30 2013 included

& approving salary increases for CR Jones
and JL Wilkinson to reflect changes to
thewr responsibilities as a result of the
management successien plan implemented
at the start of the year,

o confirming that salares would remain
unchanged at Apnl 1 2013 for the other
executive directors for the next 12 months,

®  approving the average annual pay increase,
effectve from Apnl 1 2013, for the group
of just under 2%,

e approving the payment of annual profit
shares for the executive directors and
senicr management of the group for profit
shares earned in financial year 2012,

@ approving the vesting in February 2013
of the first tranche of awards under CAP
2010 following the sausfaction of the
primary performance condrtion,

¢ considenng and  approving  the
implementation, subject to shareholder
approval, of CAP 2014, a replacement
scherne for CAP 2010

Linking KPIs to remuneration

As explained in the Remuneration Palicy Report
on page 52, the group’s remuneration pelicies
are designed to drive and reward earnings
growth and shareholder value The KPIs set out
on page 12 of the Strategic Report similarly
contnbute to the growth in the group’s earnings
and shareholder value These KPIs are integral
to the setung of incentives for senior managers
and others across the group
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Remuneration at a glance

Salary Long-term Total
2013 and fees Benefits  Profit Share incentives* Pension Remuneration

f £ £ £ £ £

Executive directors
PM Fallon (died October 14 2012} 8,692 1,823 246,009 - - 256,524
PR Ensor 175,500 1,019 4,544,828 - 22,918 4,744,265
CHC Fordham 375,000 1,274 648,025 536,917 37,500 1.598,716
NF Osborn 133,159 1.019 336,695 452 9,399 480,724
DC Cohen 115,700 1.274 221,878 99,365 15,855 454,072
CR Jones 252,500 1,274 670,111 417,012 37,875 1,378,772
DE Alfano 141,157 8,960 644,389 165,969 4,101 964,576
IL Wilkinson 268,332 8,968 125,610 240,107 18,657 661,674
B Al-Rehany 261,830 1,491 599,433 556,504 7.447 1,426,705
Total 1,731,870 27,102 8,036,978 2,016,326 153,752 11,966,028

* The long-term incentive figures represent both cash and share options under the groups CAP schemes that have vested during the year

The committee welcomes the new remuneration disclosure regulations that came into force this year and believes that this report complies not only
with the letter of these regulations, but also the spint under which they were wnitten 1t1s hoped that the report provides clanty and transparency of the
work of the committee in its objective of rewarding and retaining the right people and driving the profit growth of the group

Joha Bott:
Chalrgnan af the temureration committee
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
Remuneration policy report

Information not subject to audit

Introduction

This report sets out the group’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of executive and
non-executive directors together with details of
how the policy 15 applied to each component
of remuneration in accordance with the Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
Accounts and Reports Regulations, shareholders
are provided with the opportunity to endorse
the company’s remuneration pelicy through
a binding vote The first binding vote on the
company's directors’ remuneration policy will
be put to shareholders at the AGM on January
30 2014 and 1t 15 expected that the policy will
remain in operation for three years from October
1 2014 The wiews of the largest shareholder
were taken into account when farmulating the
policy through MWH Morgan’s membership of
the remuneration committee

Remuneration policy

The group believes in aligning the interests
of management with those of shareholders
It 15 the group’s policy to construct executive
remuneration packages such that a significant
part of a director’s pay is based on the growth in
the group’s profits ¢contributed by that director
The two consistent objectives iniis remuneration
policy since the company’s formation In 1969
have been the maxmisation of earnings per
share and the creation of shareholder value

Maximising earnings per share

This first objective 1s achieved through a profit
sharing scheme that links the pay of executive
directors and key managers to the growth in
profits of the group or relevant parts of the
group This scheme 15 completely vanable with
no guaranteed floor and no celing Ali those
on profit shares are aware that if profits nise, so
does their pay Similarly if profits fall, so do their
profit shares

To support the policy of profit sharing, the group
15 dwided into approximately 150 profit centres
from which approximately 100 directors and
managers receive profit shares The manager of
each profit centre 15 paid a profit share based
on the profit centre’s profit growth above a
threshold each year Each profit centre 1s in
turn part of a larger division and each dwisional
director or executive director has a profit share
based on the division’s profit growth The profit
shanng scheme 15 closely aligned with the
group’s strategy in that it encourages managers
and directors 1o grow ther businesses, to Invest
in new products, 1o search for acquisitions and
to manage costs and risks tightly

Creating shareholder value
This second objective 1s encouraged through the
Capntal Apprecation Plan (CAP)

The CAP 1s a highly geared performance-
based share option scheme which directly
rewards executives for the growth in profits of
the businesses they manage, and links this to
the delwvery of shareholder value by satisfying
rewards in a mix of shares in the company and
cash As the chart on page 49 shows, the CAP
has been a key factor In drving the exceptional
profit growth achieved by the company since it
was introduced in 2004 Further details of CAP
2004 and CAP 2010 are set out on pages 62
to 63

The company also has an executive share option
scheme which expired 1n 2006 No options
have been 1ssuea under it snce February 2004
although options previously granted may be
exercised before January 2014 The performance
critena under which options granted under this
scheme may be exerased are set out on page
64

The directors believe that these profit
shanng and share option arrangements have
contnbuted significantly to the company's
success since 1969 These arrangements align
the interests of the directors and managers with
those of shareholders and are considered an
important driver of the company’s growth
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Detailed remuneration arrangements of executive directors

Remuneration components

The group believes i ahgning the interests of management with those of shareholders It 15 the group’s policy to construct executive remuneration
packages such that a significant part of a director’s compensation 15 based on the growth in the group’s profits contributed by that director Salanes and
benefits are generally not intended to be the most significant part of a director’s remuneration In formulating 1ts directors’ remuneration policy, the

group has considered employee pay and benefits avallable across the group and did not consider 1t necessary 1o consult with its employees

BASIC SALARY
Purpose and link to strategy e  Partof an overall pay package which seeks to keep fixed salary costs below market with salary generally
not the most significant part of a director’s overall package,
®  Reflect the :ndividual’s expenence, role and perfarmance within the company
Operation ® Pad monthly in cash,
e Salanes are normally reviewed annually by the remuneration committee in April or October each year
Benchmarking group ® The committee periodically examines salary levels at FTSE250 companies and other Iisted peer group
publishers 10 help determine executive director pay Increases
Relationship to all employee e The approach to setting base salary increases elsewhere In the group takes into account performance
salary of the indwiduals concerned, the performance of the business they work for, micro and macro
economic factors, and market rates for simlar roles, skills and responsibihity
BENEFITS
Purpose and link to strategy & Basic benefits are provided but are not the most significant part of a director's overall remuneration

and not linked to performance, role or expenence

Operation Non-cash and cash benefits may include
®  Private healthcare,
® Life insurance under a pension plan,
®  Overseas relocation and housing costs
Relationship to all employee ®  Benefits are avallable to all directors and employees subject to a mmimum length of service or passing
benefits a probationary penod
Benefit levels ®  All executive directors participate in the healthcare scheme offered in the country where they reside,
e ILWilkinson’s salary includes an annual housing allowance This allowance increases with rental values,
e PR Ensor recewves a paid parking space that s treated as a non-cash benefit in kind
PENSIONS
Purpose and link to strategy & Retrement benefits are provided as a retentron mechanism and to recognise long service
Operation e Directors may partiaipate in the pension arrangements apphicable to the country where they work,
® A diector who 15 obliged to cease contributing to a company pension scheme due to changes in
tax or pension legislation may choose to receive a salary payment in lieu of the company’s pension
contributions
Relationship to all employee e Al directors and employees are entitied to participate in the same pension scheme arrangements

pension levels

applicable to the country where they work

Drirectors’ Remuneration Report
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
Remuneration policy report continued

Detailed remuneration arrangements of executive directors
Remuneration components continued

PROFIT SHARES

Purpose and link to strategy &  Profit share links the pay of directors directly to the growth in profits of their businesses It encourages
each director to grow their businesses, to mnvest In new products, to search for acquisitions, and to
manage costs and risks tightly,

& Profit shares are designed to maximise profits with no guaranteed floor and no ceiling for profit share,
® Profit shares are expected to make up much of the director’s total pay and encourage long-term
retention

Operation &  Profit shares are pad in full in the financial year following the year in which they are earned In
exceptional circumstances profit shares may be paid in part dunng the year in which they are earned
but only to the extent that profits have already been generated,

®  There s no deferral of profit share,

@ There is no guaranteed floor or celling on profit shares earned,

e  Profit shares are calculated after charging the cost of funding acquisiions at the group’s actual cost
of funds,

®  Each director’s profit share is subject to remuneration committee approval, and can be revised at any
time if the director's responsibilities are changed,

o  The profit share of PR Ensor (executive chairman) 1s based on the adjusted pre-tax post non-controting
wterests' profit of the group, thereby matching his profit share with the pre-tax return the group
generates for its shareholders The profit share i1s calculated by applying a multipher to the adjusted
pre-tax profits The multiplier 15 adjusted for the difution ansing from increases in the company’s share
caprtal
PR Ensor 15 also entitled to a percentage of adjusted pre-tax profit in excess of a threshold This
threshald increases by 5% each year This multiplier 1s also adjusted for any dilution ansing from the
1ssue of new equity,

®  The profit share of CHC Fordham (managing director) 1s linked to the growth in the group’s adjusted
pre-tax earnings per share (EPS), from a base pre-tax EPS that increases at 5% per year,

® NF Qsborn receves a profit-share linked to the operating profits of the businesses he manages at fixed
rates on profits above various thresholds,

® DC Cohen receives a profit-share linked 1o the operating profits of the businesses he manages at fixed
rates on profits above vanious thresholds,

e CR Jones (finance director) receves a profit share hinked to the adjusted pre-tax EPS of the group A
fixed sum 1s payable far every percentage point the adjusted pre-tax EPS 1s above a threshold and an
additional fixed sum 1s payable for every percentage point that the adjusted pre-tax EPS is above a
second higher threshold,

& DE Alfano receves a profit-share linked to the operating profits of the businesses she manages at fixed
rates on profits above varous thresholds She also receves a profit share on acquisitions she manages
at a fixed rate,

® )L Wilkinson recewes a profit-share linked to the operating profits of the businesses she manages at
the rate of 5% of adjusted profits above a threshold that is adjusted for titles sold, closed or acquired
in line with the group's US investment in digrtal strategy
As group marketing director, she receves an incentive based on the growth in the group's subscnption
and delegate revenues above certain thresholds These thresholds are based on a rolling three year
average of the respective revenue streams,

& B AL-Rehany recewes a profit-share [inked to the operating prafits of the businesses he manages at a
fixed rate on profits above a threshold This threshold increases each year

Relationship to all & ncentwes, including profit shares, are an impertant part of the group culture The directors believe
employee salary they directly reward good and exceptional performance Most employees across the group have some
incentive scheme n place
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Detailed remuneration arrangements of executive directors
Remuneration components continued

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLANS

Purpose and hnk to strategy

Operation

Relationship to all employee
long-term incentive schemes

Share schemes are an important part of the overall compensation and algn the interests of directors and
managers with shareholders They encourage directors to deliver long-term sustainable profit growth

2014 Caprtal Appreciation Plan (CAP 2014)

At the company’s AGM In January 2014 the directors will seek approval for a new long-term incentive
scheme following the achievement of the performance conditions of CAP 2010, now closed to
new members, (see page 50} Awards under CAP 2014 are likely to be granted n March 2014 o0
approximately 250 directors and senior employees who have direct and significant responsibility for the
profits of the group Each CAP 2014 award, if approved, will compnse a nil-paid option to subscnbe
for ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each in the company, and a nght to receive a cash payment No
individual may receive an award aver more than 5% of the award pool In accordance wath the terms
of CAP 2014, no consideration will be payable for the grant of the awards

The primary perfarmance test under CAP 2014 will require the company to achieve an adyusted profit
before tax (before CAP costs) of £173 6 midlion by financial year 2017 Subject to the performance
test being satisfied, rewards under CAP 2014 are expected to vest in three equal tranches in February
2018, 2019 and 2020

The profit target under CAP 2014 will be increased in the event that any significant acquisitions are
made during the perod,

2014 Company Share Option Plan (CSOP 2014)

Also at the company’s AGM, the directors will seek approval of a new CSOP The CSOP 2014 will
be a delivery mechamism for part of the CAP 2014 award Awards are hkely to be granted under
the CSOP 2014 in March 2014 1o approximately 150 directors and senior employees of the group
who have direct and significant responsibility for the profits of the group Each CSOP 2014 option
will enable each UK based director and UK based participant to purchase up to £30,000* of shares
in the company with reference to the market price of the company’s shares at the date of grant
No consideration will be payable for the grant of these awards The options will vest and become
exercisable at the same time as the corresponding share award under the CAP 2014 providing the
CSOP option I1s in the money at that time,

*The Canadian version of the CSOP 2014 will enable a Canadian based director or employee to purchase up to
£100,000 of shares in the company with reference to the market price of the company’s share at the date of grant
SAYE scheme

The group operates an all-employee save as you earn scheme in which those directors employed in the
UK are ehgible to participate No performance conditions attach to options granted under this plan It
15 designed to incentivise all employees

Partiaipants save a fixed monthly amount of up to £250 for three years and are then able 1o buy shares
in the company at a pnce set at a 20% discount to the market value at the start of the savings period,
DMGT SiP

Daily Mai! and General Trust plc, the group’s parent company, operates a share incentive plan in which
all UK-based employees of the Euromoney group can participate Parucipants can contrbute up to
£125 a month from ther gross pay to purchase DMGT "A’ non-voting shares These shares are receved
tax free after five years

All employees based in the UK are entitled to participate in the DMGT SIP and Euromoney SAYE
schemes The CAP 2014 scheme 15 expected to be avalable to approximately 250 senior people across
the group who have direct and significant responsibifity for the profits of their businesses, and new
partictpants may be added dunng the performance period

Directors' Remuneration Report
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
Remuneration policy report continued

Non-executive directors

The remuneration of non-executive directors 15 determined by the board based on the time commitment regured by the non-executive, therr role,
and market conditions Each non-executive director receives a base fee for services to the board with an additonal fee payable tc the chairs of the
remuneration and audit committees The non-executive directors do not parttcipate in any of the company’s incentive schemes

Policy on external appointments
The company encourages is executive directors to take a imited number of outside directorships provided they are not expected to impinge on their
principal employment Subject to the approval of the chairman, directors may retamn the remuneration received from the first such appomtment

Recruitment policy
Compensation packages for new board directors are set on the same basis as those 1n place for exsting board directors The main components are
detalled below

Executive directors will receive a salary commensurate with therr responsibilities, hikely to be befow market average and not the most significant part
of the director’s overall remuneration package Directors’ salaries are reviewed every year by the committee The directors will also be invited to receve
non-cash benefits in the form of private healthcare Other benefits may include a relocation or housing allowance and, in exceptional arcurmnstances,
compensation for loss of earmings from their previous employment which have been forfeited in order to join the company Where these exceptional
crcumstances apply the remuneration committee would try to match dosely the compensation type foregone with that offered by the company

New executive directors are expected to be paid a profit share directly linked to the growth in profits of the business units they manage There wall
be no floor or celing to the profit share Profit share thresholds and the specfic arrangements will be agreed with the remuneration commuttee The
standard profit share arrangement pays 5% of the operating profits in excess of a threshold, which 1s normally set at the level of profits achieved in the
12 months prior to joining the company In some exceptional cases there may be an additional incentive paid to a director in the event of the director
turning around a non-performing business The quantum of this incentive wall be dependent on the tme frame taken to turn the business around and
the initial level of losses

Non-executive directors appointed to the board will receive a base fee in line with that payable to other non-executive directors {see above)

Policy on payment for loss of office
Executive directors are generally employed on 12 month rolling contracts with a 12 month notice period Non-executive directors’ contracts can be
termenated by the company giving summary notice, with the exception of Sir Patrick Sergeant who has a 12 month notice period

In the event of a termination of contract, executive directors are entitled to 12 months’ salary, pension and a pro-rated profit share up to the date of
termination Executive directors are not entitied to any payment from the group’s CAP and other option schemes unless the schemes vest wathin the
director’s notice penod, in which ¢ase the director is only entitled to the options vesting at that time No other termination payments are provided unless
otherwise required by law
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Directors’ service ¢contracts

The company’s palicy 15 to employ executive directors on 12 month rolling service contracts The remuneration committee seeks to mimimise termination
payments and believes these should be restncted to the value of remuneration for the notice period Directors’ service contracts are reviewed from tme
to time and updated where necessary A service contract terminates automatically on the director reaching therr respective retirement age

With the exception of Sir Patnick Sergeant, none of the non-executive directors has a service contract, although JC Botts, DP Pritchard, TP Hillgarth and
ART Ballingal serve under a letter of appointment

A summary of the notice penods and any cbligation under the executive director’s service contract 1s outlined in the table below

Date of

service
Executive directors contract
PR Ensor Jan 13 1993
CHC Ferdham Sep 21 2004
NF Osborn? Jan 4 1991
DC Cohen Nov 2 1992
CR Jones Aug 27 1997
DE Alfano? Jan 10 2001
L Wilkinson July 26 2000
B AL-Rehany® Nov 11 2009
Non-executive director
Sir Patrick Sergeant Jan 10 1993

Notice
penod
{months)

12

12

12

12

12

12

12

12

Retirement Benefits accruing

age

67

62

62

62

62

62

62

62

n/a

if contract terminated’

12 months' salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

12 months” salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

12 months’ salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

12 months’ salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

12 months' salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

12 months' salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

12 months' salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of termination

12 months’ salary, pension and a
pro-rated profit share up to the
date of terminatton

12 months’ expense allowance

Benefits accruing
f contract terminated due to
incapacity?

& months’ salary, pension and profit
share up to the date of termination

& months’ salary, pension, and pro—
rated profit share up to the date of
lermination

1 month’s salary, pension, and a pro—
rated profit share up to the date of
termination

1 menth’s salary, penston, and a pro—
rated profit share up to the date of
termination

& months' salary, pension, and a pro—
rated profit share up to the date of
terrination

Salary, pension and profit share earned
up to the date of terrmination only

& months' salary, pension, and a pro—
rated profit share up to the date of
termination

6 months' salary, pension, and pro—
rated profit share up to the date of
termination

Expense allowance up to the date of
termination

1 On termination profit share 15 caleulated as though the director has been employed for the full financial year and then pro-rated according to the date of termination

2 These reduced benefits also apply if the director gives less than therr required notice period to the company In the event of death in service, benefits accrue to the date
of death If a contract is terminated for reasons of bankrupicy or serious misconduct, it 1s termenated with immedeate effect with no payment in lieu of notice

3 NF Osborn has a second service contract with 2 subsidiary of the group, Euremoney Inc , dated January 4 1991 which may be terminated by 12 months notice In the
event of termination NF Osborn 15 entitied to 12 months base salary and pension, plus a pro-rated profit share to the date nouce of termination 1s given  The company
may also terminate his agreement due to incapacity giving three months notce and NE Osborn would be entitled to three months' salary, pension and pro-rated profit

share Remuneration received under this contract i1s included in NF Osborn's single figure of remuneration on page 58
4 DE Affano’ service agreement 1s with Institutional Investor, LLC

5 B AL-Rehany’s service agreement 15 with BCA Research, Inc

Rrvarnanra
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
Annual report on remuneration

Information subject to audit (pages 58 to 59)
Annual report on remuneration
The table below sets out the break-down of the single total figure of remuneration for each executive directorin 2013 and 2012

Salary Profit  Long-term
and fees Benefits share incentive Pension Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Executive directors

PM Fallon {died October 14 2012} 2013 8,692 1,823 246,009 - - 256,524
2012 222,000 1,823 5,636,600 26,640 - 5,887,063
PR Ensor! 2013 175,500 1,019 4,544,828 - 22,918 4,744,265
2012 175,500 1,019 4,630,646 26,640 22,918 4,856,723
CHC Fordhamn? 2013 375,000 1274 648,025 536,917 37,500 1,598,716
2012 151,300 1,274 743,792 507,525 15,130 1,419,021
NF Osborn? 2013 133,159 1.019 336,695 452 9,399 480,724
2012 132,559 1,019 313,407 27,013 9,399 483,397
bC Cohen* 2013 115,700 1,274 221,878 99,365 15,855 454,072
2012 115,700 1,274 348,796 162,194 40,349 668,313
CR Jones® 2013 252,500 1,274 670,111 417,012 37,875 1,378,772
2012 240,000 1,274 643,278 395,643 43,900 1,324,095
DE Alfanc® 2013 141,157 8,960 644,389 165,969 4,101 964,576
2012 138,994 8,367 636,808 146,860 3,938 934,967
L Wilkinson? 2013 268,332 8,968 125,610 240,107 18,657 661,674
2012 231,002 8,527 146,301 240,476 14,982 641,288
B AL-Rehany® 2013 261,830 1.491 599,433 556,504 2,447 1.426,705
2012 260,662 1,908 752,127 392,471 7,173 1,414,341
Total executive directors 2013 1,731,870 27,102 8,036,978 2,016,326 153,752 11,966,028
2012 1,667,717 26,485 13,851,755 1,925,462 157,789 17,629,208

Non-executive directors
The Viscount Rothermere 2013 28,000 - ~ - - 28,000
2012 28,000 - - - - 28,000
Sir Patrick Sergeant 2013 28,000 - - - - 28,000
2012 28,000 - - - - 28,000
JC Botts 2013 34,500 - - - - 34,500
2012 34,500 - - - - 34,500
JC Gonzalez {resigned January 31 2013) 2013 9,333 - - - - 9,333
2012 28,000 - - - - 28,000
MWH Morgan 2013 28,000 - - - - 28,000
2012 28,000 - - - - 28,000
DP Pnitchard 2013 34,500 - - - - 34,500
2012 34,500 - - - - 34,500
ART Ballingal (appointed December 12 2012) 2013 21,000 - - - - 21,000
2012 - - - - - -
TP Hillgarth {appomted December 12 2012) 2013 21,000 - - - - 21,000
2012 - — — — - -
Total non-executive directors 2013 204,333 - - - - 204,333
2012 181,000 - - - - 181,000
Total 2013 1,936,203 27,102 8,036,978 2,016,326 153,752 12,170,361

Total 2012 1,848,717 26,485 13,851,755 1,925,462 157,789 17,810,208
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®  Salanes and fees include basic salaries and any non-executive directors’ fees The salaries and fees figure for JL Wilkinson includes £88 332 of hausing allowance

Benefits include private healthcare and also dental cover for directors based in Canada and the US

®  The long-term incentive figure represents the value of the CAP 2004 share options, CAP 2010 share aptions, CAP CSOP share options and the CAP cash award where
the performance conditions were met dunng the penod The value of these share options 15 derived by multiplying the number of share options with the market value
of optigns and deducting the cost of the options The value of the CAP cash award 1s equivalent to the cash receved

®  Pension amounts are those contributed by the company 1o pension schemes or cash amounts paid in lieu of pension contributions

1 The profit share of PR Ensor {executive chairman) 1s based on the adjusted pre-tax post non-controlling interests’ profit of the group The profit share 1s caleulated by
applying a multipher of 2 98% (2012 3 01%) to the adjusted pre-tax profits In addiion, PR Ensor is also entitled to 1 12% (2012 1 13%) of adjusted pre-tax profit
In excess of a threshald of £40 806,097 (2012 £38,862,950)

2 The profit share of CHC Fordham (managing director) is inked to the growth in the group’s adjusted pre-tax earnings per share (EPS), from a base pre-tax EPS of
67 5 pence {2012 64 3 pence), equivalent to an adjusted pre-tax profit of £83 million (2012 £79 milion) This 1s broadly equivalent to a 2% profit share above
the base

3 NF Osborn recewves a profit-share iinked to the operating profits of the businesses he manages at a rate of 2 5% on prafits to £1 million, 4% on the next £1 millian
5 58 on the next £1 million and 7% an prefits in excess of £3 million,

4  DC Cohen receves a profit-share finked to the operating profits of the businesses he manages at a rate of 1% on prefits to £1 525 million 5% on profits above
£1 525 milhon and an additional 2 5% on profits above £4 675 milhon,

5 CR Jones receives a profit share inked to the adjusted pre-tax EPS of the group A fixed sum of £500 15 payable for every percentage point the adjusted pre-tax EPS 15
above 11 pence and an additional fixed sum of £800 15 payable for every percentage point that the adjusted pre-tax EPS 15 above 20 pence,

6  DE Alfano recewes a profit-share linked to the operating profits of the businesses she manages at a rate of 1% on profits between US$632 000 and US$957 000 and
a rate of 6 5% on profits above US$957,000 Her profit share on acquisiions she manages 1s at a rate of 5%,

7 ILwilkinson receives a profit-share Iinked o the operating profits of the businesses she manages at the rate of 5% of adjusted profits above a threshold For 2013
the threshold was U$3$8,341,050 (2012 USS8 434,369} As group marketing drrector, she receves an incentive based on the growth in the group's subscrption
and delegate revenues above certain thresholds tn 2013, the rates applied were reduced by one-third to reflect Ms Wilkinson's reduced responsibilities for the
marketing group

& B AL-Rehany receives a profit-share linked 1o the operating profits of the businesses he manages at a rate of 5% of profits above a threshold This threshold increases
by 10% per annum

Non-executive directors

The remuneration of nan-executive directors 1s determined by the board based on the tme commitment required by the nan-executive, therr role,
and market conditions Each non-executive director receives a base fee for services to the board of £28,000 (2012 £28,000) with an additiona! fee
of £6,500 payable to the charrs of the remuneration and audit commuttees Effective October 1 2013, the base fee for non-executive directors was
increased to £30,000, the first increase in ten years The non-executive directors do not participate in any of the company’s incentive schemes

Information not subject to audit (pages 59 to 64)

External appointments

PR Ensor is an external member of the Finance Committee of Oxford University Press During the year he retained earrungs of £20,000 (2012 £20,000}
frorn this role This amount has not been included in his single figure of remuneration on page 58

NF QOshorn 1s a non-executive director of RBC 0JSC, a Moscow-listed media company Dunng the year he retained earmings of U$350,000 (2012
US$50,000) from this role He also serves on the management board of A&N International Media Lmited, a fellow group company, for which he
recewed fees for the year of £25,000 {2012 £25,000}, and as an adwisor to the boards of both DMG Events and dmgi, fellow group companies, for
which he receved a combined fee of US$45,000 (2012 US345,000} These amounts have not been included i his single figure of remuneration on
page 58 Effective October 1 2013, NF Osborn’s fees from DMGT related companies were reduced to U5$45,000

Directors’ Remuneration Report
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
Annual report on remuneration continued

Variable pay

Of the total remuneration of the mine executive directors who served In the year, 82% was denved from vanable profit shares, as illustrated in the
following graph

The graphs below set out, for each director, the rinimum remuneration, the remuneration expected at the beginning of the year, the actual remuneration
and an estimate of the maximum remuneration The variable element of remuneration relates to the group's profit share schemes The mimmum profit
share payable I1s zero, because the group’s profit share schemes have no ceding, the maximum remuneration was caleulated assuming that profits
achieved had been 20% higher All figures are in sterling

PR Ensor CHC Fordham
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NF Osborn DC Cohen
CR Jones DE Alfano
JL wWilkinson B AL-Rehany

The data above does not include information for PM Fallon, the provision of the information for PM Fallon being misleading and irrelevant due to his
death on October 14 2012

Capital Appreciation Plan 2010 (CAP 2010} minimum and maximum payouts

The minimum payout under the CAP 2010 vanable fong-term incentive plan 1s zero The maximum payout 1s an award of 6% of the award poo! There
1S no monetary maximurn as the payout depends upon the company share price at the time of vesting The number of options awarded to indivduals
1s determined by the growth in profits of the businesses they are responsible for from the base year of financial year 2009, relative to the growth in the
profits of the group over the same period The award only vests following satisfaction of the primary performance target and in addition for tranche 2
(which can vest at the earliest in February 2014) the additional performance target (further details of the CAP 2010 scheme are given below)

fanvarnanra
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Company share schemes
Detatls of each director’s share optrons can be
found on pages 65 to 66

Capital Appreciation Plan 2010
{CAP 2010)

CAP 2010 was approved by shareholders on
January 21 2010 as a direct replacement for
CAP 2004

Awards under CAP 2010 were granted on
March 30 2010 to approximately 200 directors
and senior employees who had direct and
significant responsibiity for the profits of
the group Each CAP 2010 award comprises
wo equal elements an option to subscribe
for ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each in the
company at an exercise price of 025 pence
per orcinary share, and a nght to receive a
cash payment No indwidual could recewe an
award over more than 6% of the award pool
In accordance wath the terms of CAP 2010, no
consideration was payable for the grant of the
awards

The value of awards received by a participant Is
directly inked to the growth i profits over the
performance period of the businesses for which
the partcipant 1s responsible Where there Is
no growth, no awards are allocated, whereas
participants whose businesses grow the most
will receive the highest proportion of the award

The award pool comprnises 3,500,992 ordinary
shares with an option value (calculated at date of
grant using an opton priang valuation model)
of £15 miihon, and cash of £15 million, hmiting
the total accounting cost of the scheme to
£30 milhon over its life Awards will vest In two
equal tranches The first becomes exerasable
on satisfaction of the primary performance
condition, but no earlier than February 2013,
and lapses to the extent unexerased by
September 30 2020 The second tranche of
awards becomes exercisable » the February
following the next finanoal year n which
the primary performance condition 15 agan
satisfied, but no earler than February 2014
The second tranche only vests on satisfaction

of the pnmary performance condition and an
addional performance condition (see below)

The primary performance condition required
the group to achieve adjusted pre-tax profits!
of £100 million, from a 2009 base profit of
£62 3 million, by no later than the financial year
ending September 30 2013, and that adjusted
pre-tax profits’ remained above this level for a
second year

The primary performance condition was first
achieved In financial year 2011, twe years earlier
than expected, when adjusted pre-tax profits’
were £101 3 millkon However, the internal rules
of the plan were modified to prevent the awards
vesting more than one year early so although
the primary conditton had been achieved the
award pool was allocated between the holders
of outstanding awards by reference to therr
contribution 1o the growth in profits of the
group from the 2009 base year to the profits
achieved in financial year 2012 These awards
became exercisable in February 2013

The pnmary performance condition for the
second tranche of the award was increased
to adjusted pre-tax profits' of £1050 milion
following the acquisiion of NDR in August
2011 This pnmary performance condition was
achieved agamn In financial year 2012 when
adjusted pre-tax profits' were £113 0 rullion,
resulting i the second tranche of CAP 2010
awards vesting and becoming exercisable
from February 2014 subject to the addittonal
performance condition being achieved n
financial year 2013

The additional performance condition,
applicable for the vesting of the second tranche
of awards, requires the profits of each business
in the subsequent vesting period be at least
75% of that achieved In the year the first
tranche of awards become exerasable As the
wital allocation of awards to participants was
calculated with reference to the profits achieved
in financiat year 2012, the earfiest the additional
performance condition can be apphed 15 by
reference to the profits achieved in financal

year 2013, the pnmary performance condition
having been met for a second time 1n financal
year 2012 Thus the CAP 2010 15 designed so
that profit growth must be sustained If awards
are to vest in full

The number of options received under the share
award of CAP 2010 15 reduced by the number
of options vesting with partcipants from the
2010 Company Share Option Plan (see below
and note 23)

In February 2013, 1,460,656* CAP 2010 options
and 311,710 CSOP options vested A maximum
of 1,750,000+ CAP 2010 and CSOP 2010
options remain unvested

The true up to the number of options estimated
to be received by the directors under the first
tranche of CAP 2010 last year to that actually
vested in February 2013 and the antiapated
number of options to be received by the
directors under the second tranche of CAP
2010 are given in the directors’ share option
table on page 65 The number of options
estimated to be received under the first tranche
of the CAP 2010 last year was provisional as it
reflected management's best estimate taking
into consideration the profits of the indmdual
profit centres for financial year 2012, the
respective weighting of these profits between
participants and the offsetting number of
options delivered under the CSOP 2010 The
remuneration committee required management
to apply true-up adjustments 10 these awards to
reflect the results dunng the three month period
to December 2012 The number of options
estimated to be receved under the second
tranche of the CAP 2010n the table on page 65
15 also provisional and it reflects management's
best estimate taking into consideration the
profits of the indwdual profit centres for
financial year 2013 and the offsetting number
of options delivered under the CSOP 2010 The
remuneration committee requires management
to apply true-up adjustments to these awards to
reflect the results dunng the three month pencd
to December 2013
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The farr value per option granted and the
assumptions used to calculate its value are set
out in note 23

Company Share Option Plan 2010
(CSOP 2010)

The shareholders approved the CSOP 2010 at
the Annual General Meeting on January 21
2010 The CSOP 2010 plan was approved by
HM Revenue and Customs on June 21 2010

Awards were granted under the CSOP 2010 on
June 28 20107 to approximately 135 directors
and senior employees of the group who have
direct and significant responstbility for the
profits of the group Each CSOP 2010 option
enables each participant to purchase up 1@
4,9727 shares in the company at a pnce of
£6 032 per share, the market value at the date
of grant No consideration was payable for
the grant of these awards The options vested
and became exercisable at the same time as
the corresponding share award under the CAP
2010 Once vested the CSOP option remained
exercisable for a pencd of one month and then
lapsed As the UK CSCP 2010 vested before the
third anniversary of the grant of CSOP options,
any unvested CSOP options from the first tranche
of the award that had not been exercised vested
again on June 28 2013, the third anniversary of
grant, and remained exercisable for one month
and then lapsed Any CSCP options that did not
fully vest in the first tranche of the CAP 2010
award vest at the same time as the second
tranche of an individual’s CAP award, but only
where the CSOP 2010 15 In the money

The CSOP 2010 has the same performance
cnteria as that of the CAP 2010 as set out
abave The number of CSOP 2010 awards that
vested proportionally reduced the number of
shares that vested under the CAP 2010 The
CSOP 15 effectively a delivery mechanism for
part of the CAP 2010 award The CSOP 2010
options have an exercise price of £6 03?2, which
will be satisfied by a funding award mechanism
which s in place and results in the net gain® on
these options being delivered in the equivalent
number of shares to partiapants as if the

same gain had been delivered using CAP 2010
options The amount of the funding award wall
depend on the company’s share price at the
date of exerase

Capital Appreciation Plan 2004
(CAP 2004)

CAP 2004 was approved by shareholders
on February 1 2005 and replaced the 1996
executive share option scheme Each CAP
2004 award compnsed an option to subscribe
for ordinary shares of 0 25 pence each In the
company for an exercise price of 0 25 pence per
ordinary share No consideration was pad for
the grant of the awards No further awards may
be granted under CAP 2004

CAP 2004 awards vest In three equal tranches
The first tranche became exercisable on
satisfaction of the primary performance
condition in 2007, and lapse to the extent
unexercised on September 30 2014 The other
two tranches of awards became exercasable
following the results achieved in financial years
2008 and 2009, but only to the extent that
the additional performance condition was also
achieved The primary performance condition,
broadly, required the company to achieve
adjusted pre-tax profits’ of £57 ¢ miilion by no
later than the finanaial year ending September
30 2008 and remain at least this level for
two further vesung pereds The addtional
performance condition required that the profits
of the respectve participants’ businesses in
the subsequent twe vesting penods be at least
75% of that achveved in the year the primary
performance condition was first met

The CAP 2004 profit target was achieved in 2007
and the option pool {a maximum of 7 5 million
shares) was allocated between the holders
of outstanding awards by reference to therr
profit contribution to the achievement of the
primary performance condition, subject to the
condition that no indwdual had an opticn over
more than 10% of the option pool One third
of the awards vested immediately The primary
performance target was achieved again in 2008
and, after applying the additional performance

condition, 2,241,269 options from the second
tranche of options vested in February 2009
The primary performance target was achieved
again in 2009 and, after applying the additional
performance condition, 1,527,152 opuons
from the third {final) tranche of options vested
in February 2010 The addmional performance
condition was applied to profits for financial
years 2010, 2011 and 2012 for those individual
participants where the additional performance
condiions had not previously been met and
303,321 options, 244,152 options and 39,907
options vested in February 2011, February 2012
and February 2013 respectively No further
optons can vest under this scheme and 644,199
unvested CAP 2004 options lapsed

For the executive directors, the value of the
second and third tranches of the CAP 2004
award that vested in February 2013 1s set out in
the drrectors’ share option table on page 65 and
has been trued-up from the estimates provided
In last year's annual report
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Annual report on remuneration continued

1996 executive share option
scheme

Some of the executive directors had options
from a previous executive share option scheme
approved by shareholders in 1996 This scheme
expired In 2006 and no share options have been
issued under it since February 2004 although
options granted may be exercsed before
February 2014 These options were exercisable
following satisfaction of the performance
condition that the Total Shareholder Return
{TSR) of the company exceeds the average TSR
for the FTSE 250 index for the same penod For
the performance condition to be satisfied, the
TSR of the company must exceed that of the
FTSE 250 on a cumulative basis, measured from
the date of grant of the option, In any four out
of six consecutive months starting 30 months
after the option grant date

All of the executive director’s options outstanding
under this scheme were exercised durnng the year
as set out on pages 65 to 67 of this report The
fair value per option granted and the assumptrons
used to calculate its value are set out in note 23

SAYE

The group operates an all employee save as you
earn scheme in which all employees, including
directors, employed 1n the UK are elgible to
participate  Participants save a fixed monthly
amount of up to £250 for three years and are
then able to buy shares in the company at a
price set at a3 20% discount to the market value
at the start of the savings penod In hne with
market practice, no performance conditions
attach to options granted under this plan The
executrve directors who particpated in this
scheme during the year were PR Ensor, CHC
Fordham, NF Osborn and DC Cohen detarls of
which can be found on page 65 of this report

DMGT siP

DMGT, the group's parent company, cperates
a share incentive plan in which all UK-based
ermployees of the Euromeney group can
particpate Employees can contrbute up to
£125 a month from their gross pay to purchase
DMGT 'A' shares These shares are received
tax free by the employee after five years The
executive directors who participated in this
scheme during the year were PM Fallon, PR
Ensor and CR Jones, details of which can be
found on page 68 of this report

1 Adusted pre-tax profits are before acquired
intangible  amortisaticn,  exceptional  items,
movements 1N acquisition commitment values,
imputed interest on acquisition  commitments,
foreign exchange loss interest charge on tax
equalisation contracts, foreign exchange on
restructured hedging arrangements, and the cost
of the CAP itself

2 The Canadian version of the CSOP 2010 has a
grant date of March 30 2010 and an exercise price
of £5 01, the market vafue of the companys shares
at the date of grant, and enables each Canadian
participant to purchase up to 19,960 shares in the
company

3 The net gan on the CSOP options 15 the market
price of the company’s shares at the date of
exercise less the exercise price (£6 037} multplhed
by the number of optigns exercised

+ The number of options vested and left to vest
excludes the options required for the funding
award element of the CSOP 2010
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Directors’ share options
Granted/ Date
At start trued up Exerased At end Exerase  from which Expiry
of year duringyear during year of year price  exercisable date
PR Ensor 1,810 - = 1,810 * £497 Feb 0115 Aug 0115
1,810 - - 1,810
CHC Fordham 621 - (621) - % £0 0025 exercised Sep 3014
24,950 8,225 (33,175) - A £0 0025 exercised Sep 3020
4,972 - (4,972) -t £6 03 exercised Feb 14 20
29,921 5,007 - 34,928 A £0 0025 Feb 13 14 Sep 30 20
- 1,408 - 1,408 & £6 39 Feb 0116 Aug 0116
60,464 14,640 (38,768) 36,336
NF Osborn 4,299 (4,272) 2n -t £6 03 exercised Feb 14 20
- 18 (18) - A £0 0025 exercised Sep 3020
673 {646) - 27 t £603 Feb 13 14 Feb 14 20
3,626 (3,608) - 8 A £0 0025 Feb 1314 Sep 30 20
1,810 - — 1,810 * £497 Feb 0115 Aug 0115
10,408 (8,508) {45) 1,855
DC Cohen 5,000 - (5,000 - £419 exercised Jan 2814
15,896 (13,956) (1,940) - % £0 0025 exercised Sep 30 14
7,186 2,191 (9,377} - A £0 0025 exercised Sep 30 20
3,454 - (3,454) -t £6 03 exercised Feb 14 20
10,639 (44) - 10,595 A £0 0025 Feb 13 14 Sep 30 20
1,810 - - 1,810 * £497 Feb 01 15 Aug 0115
43,985 {11,809) (19,771) 12,405
CR Jones 15,000 - (15,000} - £4 19 exercised Jan 28 14
21,533 3,842 (25,375) - A £0 0025 exercised Sep 30 20
4,972 - (4,972) - 1 £603 exercised Feb 14 20
26,504 624 — 27,128 A £0 0025 Feb 1314 Sep 30 20
68,009 4,466 (45,347} 27,128
DE Alfano 9,798 999 {10,797) - A £0 0025 exercised Sep 30 20
5,798 999 - 10,797 A £0 0025 Feb 13 14 Sep 30 20
19,596 1,998 {10,797} 10,797
IL Wilkinson 12,415 3,698 (16,113) - A £0 0025 exerased Sep 30 20
4,972 (531) (4,441) -t £6 03 exercised Feb 14 20
17,387 292 - 17679 A £0 0025 Feb 1314 Sep 30 20
34,774 3,459 {20,554) 17,679
B AL-Rehany 14,258 1,984 (16,242) - A £0 0025 exerased Sep 3020
19,960 - (19,960} - % £501 exercised feb 14 20
34,217 1,985 - 36,202 A £0 0025 Feb 1314 Sep 30 20
68,435 3,969 {36,202) 36,202
Total 307,481 8,215 {171,484) 144,212
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Directors’ cash settled options
Under the terms of CAP 2010, the directors have been granted the following cash awards

Granted/

At start trued up Exercised At end Date from

of year durning year during year of year which

£ £ £ £ entitled

CHC Fordham 128,199 21,451 {149,650) - A exercised
CHC Fordham 128,199 21,451 - 149,650 [ Feb 1314
NF Qsborn 18,420 {18,304} {116} - A exercised
NF Qsbaorn 18,419 (18,303} - 116 A Feb 1314
DC Cohen 45,586 {190) (45,396) - A exercised
DC Cohen 45,586 (190) - 45,396 A Feb 1314
CR Jones 113,558 2,672 {116,230} - A exercised
CR Jones 113,558 2,672 - 116,230 A Feb 1314
DE Alfano 41,979 4,280 {46,259) - A exercised
DE Alfano 41,979 4,280 - 46,259 A feb 1314
JL Wilkinson 74,434 1,253 (75,747 - A exercised
JL Witkinson 74,493 1,254 - 75,747 A Feb 1314
B AL-Rehany 146,605 8,504 {155,109) - A exercised
B AlL-Rehany 146,605 8,504 - 155,109 A Feb 13 14

1,137,680 39,334 (588,507) 588,507

The cash settled options tapse four months after the preliminary announcement of the group’s results for the financial year in which the performance
conditions are met {note 23}

Issued under the Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC SAYE scheme 2011

Issued under the Eurornoney Institutional Investor PLC SAYE scheme 2012

Options granted relate to the true-up to the awards outstanding from either tranche 2 or tranche 3 of CAP 2004 which vested on February
14 2013 following the satisfaction of the additional performance test (see page 63) The number of such options granted to each director was
provisional last year and was trued-up to reflect adjustments to the respective director’s individual business profits between year end and December
312012

Options granted relate 1o the true-up to the estimate made last year of the furst tranche of CAP 2010 together with the estimated number of shares
that are expected to be issued under tranche 2 of CAP 2010 following the satisfaction of the addiional performance test (see page 62) Tranche
2 vests on February 13 2014, three months following the announcement of the company’s results The number of such options granted to each
director under tranche 2 of CAP 201015 provisional and will require a true-up to reflect adjustments to the respective director’s individual business
profits between year end and December 31 2013 As such the actual number of options granted could vary from that disclosed

Similarly, the number of options granted under CSOP 2010 relates to the true-up to the estimate made last year to the number of CSOP options
expected to vest together with an estimate of the number of CSOP 2010 options expected to vest under the second tranche The number of
options vesting under the second tranche is prowisional and dependent on satisfaction of the additional performance test and providing the CSOP
1510 the monay at the time of the vesting Once vested the option remains exercisable far a period of one month and then lapses The remuneration
committee requires management to apply true-up adjustments to these awards to reflect the results duning the three month period 1o December
2013 Where the option does not vest, the option continues to subsist and becomes exercisable at the same time as the second tranche of the
respective CAP 2010 share award {note 23)

The market price of the company’s shares on September 30 2013 was £11 60 The high and low share prices during the year were £12 09 and £7 48
respectively There were 8,215 options granted durning the year (2012 23,757)
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Directors’ options exercised during the year
The aggregate gain made by the directors an the exercise of share options in the year was £1,441,411 (2012 £387,800) as follows
Market

Number price on Number
of options Date of date of Gain on of shares
exercised exerase  exercise (£)  exercse (£) retaned
CHC Fordham 33,796 feb 1413 £932 314,894 16,164
CHC Fordham 4,972 Jun 2813 £1039 21,661 4,972
DC Cohen 11,317 Feb 14 13 £932 105,446 -
DC Cohen 5,000 May 3013 £9 30 25,542 -
DC Cohen 3,454 Jun 2813 £1039 15,048 -
NF Osborn 27 Jun 28 13 £1039 280 -
NF Osborn 18 Jun 28 13 £1039 78 -
CR Jones 25,375 Feb 14 13 £932 236,432 12,136
CR Jones 15.000 Jun 28 13 £1039 92,975 4,000
CR Jones 4972 Jun 2813 £1039 21,661 4,972
Dt Alfanc 10,797 Feb 14 13 £932 100,601 -
JL Wilkinson 16,113 Feb 14 13 £9 32 150,133 -
L Wilkinson 4,441 Jun 2813 £10 39 19,348 -
B AL-Rehany 36,202 Feb 14 13 £832 337,312 22,485
171,484 1,441,411 64,729

Information not subject to audit {pages 67 and 68).

Directors’ interests in the company

PM Fallon (died October 14 2(12)

PR Ensor

CHC Fordham

NF Qsborn

DC Cohen

CR Jones

DE Alfano

JL wWilkinson

B AL-Rehany

The Viscount Rothermere

Sir Patnck Sergeant

JC Botts

JC Gonzalez (resigned January 31 2013)
MWH Morgan

DP Pritchard

ART Ballingal (appointed December 12 2012)
TP Hillgarth (appointed December 12 2012)

Non-beneficial
Sir Patrick Sergeant

Crdinary shares of 0 25p each

2013 2012
- 630,383
194,529 194,529
161,513 140,377
31,354 45,354
39,490 74,480
190,380 169,272
99,256 99,256
77.275 77,275
37,276 14,791
24,248 24,248
165,304 165,304
15,503 15,503
7.532 7,532
1,043,660 1,658,314
20,000 20,000

Directors’ Remuneration Report
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Directors’ interests in Daily Mail and General Trust plc
The interests of the directors, to be disclosed under chapter 9 8 6 of the UKLA Listing Rules, in the shares of Dally Mail and Genera! Trust plc as at
September 30 were as follows

Ordinary shares of ‘A’ Ordinary non-voting
12 5p each shares of 12 5p each
2013 2012 2013 2012
The Viscount Rothermere*2 17,738,163 11,903,132 68,570,098 75,134,502
PM Fallon {died October 14 2012} - 4,000 - 42,234
PR Ensor - - 1,124 866
CR Jones - - 1,077 821
Sir Patrick Sergeant - - - 36,000
MWH Morgan'? 764 764 1,049,826 978,104

1 The figures in the table above include “A shares commutted by executives under a long-term incentive plan, detads of which are set out in the Dailly Maill and General
Trust plc annual report

2 The figures in the table above include ‘A’ shares awarded 1o executves under the DMGT Executive Bonus Scheme For MWH Morgan and The Viscount Rothermere
respectively, 17,500 and 43,926 of these shares were subject to restrictions as explained in the Daily Mail and General Trust plc annual report

The Viscount Rothermere had non-beneficial imterests as a trustee at September 30 2013 1n 5,540,000 “A’ ordinary nen-voung shares of 12 5 pence
each (2012 5,540,000 shares)

Daly Mail and General Trust plc has been notified that, under section 824 of the Companies Act 2006 and including the interests shown in the table
above, The Viscount Rothermere 1s deemed to have been interested in 17,738,163 ordinary shares of 12 5 pence each (2012 11,903,132 shares)

At Septermber 30 2013 and September 30 2012, The Viscount Rothermere was beneficially interested in 756,700 ordinary shares of Rothermere
Continuation Limited, the company's ulimate parent company

The Viscount Rothermere and MWH Morgan had options over 632,986 and 183,047 respectively ‘A’ ordinary non-voting shares in Daily Mail and
General Trust plc at September 30 2013 (2012 553,351 and 333,187 options respectively) The exerase price of these options ranges from £nil to
£7 24 Further details of these options are hsted in the Dally Mall and General Trust plc annual report

Since Septerber 30 2013, PR Ensor and CR Jones purchased, through the DMGT SIP scheme, 31 and 32 additional ‘A’ ordinary non-voting shares in
Darly Mail and General Trust plc respectively There have been no other changes in the directors” interests since September 30 2013
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Information subject to audit (pages 69 to 70)
Directors’ pensions

Executive directors can participate mn the Harmsworth Pension Scheme (a defined benefit scheme), the Euromoney Pension Plan {a money purchase
plan) or their own private pension scheme Further details of these schemes are set out tn note 26 to the accounts Pension contributions paid by the
company on behalf of executive directors dunng the year were as follows

Cash

alternative

Harmsworth to pension

Pension scheme  Euromoney Private

Sceme contnbution Pension Plan Schemes Total Total
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2012
£ £ £ £ £ £
PM Fallon (died October 14 2012} - - - - - -
PR Ensor - 22,918 - - 22,918 22,918
CHC Fordham - - 37,500 - 37,500 15,130
NF Qsborn - - 9,399 - 9,399 9,399
DC Cohen' - 15,855 - - 15,855 7.928
CR Jones' - 37,875 - - 37,875 12,375
DE Aifano - - - 4,101 4,101 3,938
JLWikinson - - 18,657 - 18,657 14,982
B AL-Rehary - - - 7.447 7.447 7.173
- 76,648 65,556 11,548 153,752 93,843

The Harmswarth scheme s cJosed 1o new entranits, existing members stil in employment can continue to accrue benefits in the scheme on a cash bass,
with members using this cash account to purchase an annuity at retirement Under the Harmsworth Penston Scheme, the following pension benefits

were earned by the directors

Accrued
annual
pension at
Sept 30
2013
£

Director
PM Fallon (died October 14 2012) -
DC Cohen' 32,390
CR Jones' 44,788

Pension
cash
accrual at
Sept 30
2013

£

50,200

65,200

Transfer
value at
Sept 30 Normal
2013 retirement
£ date

- nfa

631,000 Oct 262019

807,000 Aug 112022

Harmsworth Pension Scheme

Additional
value of
henefits

if early
retirement
taken

none
none

none

Weighting
of pension
benefit value
as shown in
single figure
table

none
Cash allowance
100%
Cash allowance
100%

The accrued annual pension entitlement is that which would be paid annually on retirernent based on service to September 30 2013 and ignores any
ncrease for future inflation The pension cash accrual represents the sum which would be available on retirement based on service to September 30
2013 to secure retirement benefits, ignonng any increase for future inflation All transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuanal advice
in accordance with ‘Retirement Benefit — Transfer Values (GN11) published by the Board for Actuanal Standards The transfer values of the accrued
entitlement include the pension cash accrual and represent the value of assets that the pension scheme would need to transfer to another pension
provider on transfernng the scheme’s lability in respect of the directors' pension benefits They do not represent a sum paid or payable to indwidual

Directors’ Remuneration Report

fRnuvarnanra



Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC
70 www euromoneyplc com

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued
Annual report on remuneration continued

directors and, therefore, cannot be added meaningfully to annual remuneration The pension cash accrua! has been included in the increase in transfer
value (net of directors” contributions) Members of the scheme have the option of paying additonal voluntary contributions Nesther the contributions
nor the resulting benefits are included in the above table The normal retirement age for the pension cash accrual element of the scheme 1s 65 The
normal retirement age for the accrued benefits under the now closed element of the Harmsworth Penston Scheme 1s 62

1 Company contributions to the Harmsworth Pension Scheme on behalf of DC Cohen and CR Jones were made until March 31 2012 from Apnl 1 2012, these direclors
received a cash allowance in lieu of company pension contributions

Information not subject to audit (pages 70 to 73)

Comparison of overall performance and remuneration of the managing director

The chart below compares the company’s TSR with the FTSE250 over the past five financial years The company 15 a constituent of the FTSE250 and,
accordingly, this 1s considered to be an appropriate benchmark

Managing director - single figure of remuneration
CHC Fordham replaced PR Ensor as managing director on Qctober 15 2012 The single figure of total remuneration for the managing director set out
below includes salary, benefits, company pension contributions and long-term incentives as set out on page 58 of this report

Annual Value of
variable long-term Long-term
element Incentive incentive
Managing Annual  (profit share) (share vesting rates
director single vaniable payout against options} against
Year on year figure of total element maximum vesting in Maximum maximum
% change remuneration (profit share) opportunity penod opportumty opportunity
% £ £ % £ £ %
2013 CHC Fordham (67%) 1,598,716 648,025 58 5% 536,917 536,917 100%
2012 PR Ensor 10% 4,856,723 4,630,646 81 9% 26,640 26,640 100%
201 PR Ensor 1% 4,396,681 4,201,414 81 8% - - -
2010 PR Ensor 36% 3,976,660 3,787,355 81 6% - - -
2009 PR Ensor 0% 2,916,771 2,508,665 81 0% 218,983 218,983 100%

The group's profit share scheme has no ceiling, hence the maximum annual vanable element of remuneration was calculated assuming that profits
achieved had been 20% higher The maximum long-term incentive award vesting under the CAP 15 restricted to 6% of the award pool as set out in
the rules of those schemes
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Percentage change in remuneration of the managing director

The table below illustrates the change in remuneration for the managing directer, previously PR Ensar and now CHC Fordham 1t 1s also compared
with the change in remuneration of all other employees across the group The directors feel that this group of peaple 1s the most appropriate as a
comparator because employees pay 1s determined annually by the remuneration commuittee at the same time as that of the managing director and
under the same economic arcumstances The directors believe this demonstrates the best link between the increase in average remuneration compared
1o the managing director

Total remuneration

% increase/

2013 2012 (decrease)

£ £ £
Managing director remuneration (excluding LTIP and pension} 1,024,299 4,807,165 (78 7%)
Total employee remuneration {excluding managing director remuneration) 138,841,988 135,395,699 25%
Average number of employees (excluding managing director} 2,323 2,262 27%
Average employee remuneration 59,768 59,857 (D 1%)

Remuneration in the above table excludes long-term incentive payments and pension benefits Employees exclude temporary staff

The remuneration of the managing director fell by 78 7% this year This reflects CHC Fordham’s appointment as managing director and PR Ensor's
appointment as chairman under the management succession plan implemented in October 2012 The majonty of Mr Ensor's remuneration was profit
share which was calculated from a low base threshold set in 1978 when the company was in its infancy Trus profit share was in lieu of equity at the
tirme  As the group's profit has grown sigmificantly from this date, so Mr Ensor’s remuneration has grown with it Mr Fordham’s remuneration was
structured to include a hugher proportion from his salary and his profit share threshold was based on the profits achieved in 2012

Directors’ Remuneration Report
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Relative importance of spend on pay

The first chart below demonstrates how the group’s revenue covers its cost base, employee costs at 38% of revenue (2012 38 8%} After covering
the costs the revenue remaining equates to adjusied profit before tax, the adjusted profit before tax margin at 28 8% (2012 27 1%), (see Appendix
to the Chairman’s Statement)

The second chart takes the adjusted profit before tax above and shows how these profits are utilised, for instance, local tax authorities with 21 7% of
adjusted profit before tax (2012 21 9%) The notional CAP charge refates to the notional reversal of the £6 6 million addiuonal accelerated CAP charge
onginally recognised in 2011 The directors agreed to exclude the impact of the distorted charge in 2011 and its subsequent reversal in later years when
setting the dividend The resultant balance of 74 6% (2012 77%] represents the proportion of adjusted profit before tax available for distribution to
shareholders The group’s dividend policy 15 to distnbute a third of these adjusted distributable profits to shareholders

Costs and resultant profit as a percentage of revenue

Employee costs reflects remuneration paid to all employees of the group
including temparary staff, and include salary, benefits, soQal secunty costs
and pension costs (see note &)

Proportion of adjusted profit before tax
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Annual General Meeting - shareholder vote outcome
The table below shows the adwvisory shareholder vote on the 2012 Remuneration Report at the January 2013 AGM

The committee believes the 93 70% votes in favour of the remuneration report shaws strong sharehclder support for the company's remuneration
arrangements The committee consults with key investors prior to any major changes in its remuneration arrangements

Votes for % Votes against % Abstentions %
106,242,920 93 7% 7,121,791 63% 395 0 00%

Payments to past directors
There were no payments made to past directors during the year other than to PM Fallon who died on October 14 2012 and whose estate was pad his
profit share and salary earned up to his date of death

Appointments and re-clection
Al directors will be standing for re-election at the forthcoming AGM

Other related party transactions

NF Osborn serves on the management board of A&N International Media Limited and as an advisor to the boards of both DMG Events and dmgi, all
fellow group companies, for which he received fees for the year to September 30 2013 of £25,000 and US$45,000 respectively (2012 £25,000 and
US5540,000 respectively)

Implementation of the remuneration policy

For the year ending September 30 2014 the group intends to apply the reruneration policy as follows

® Dwectors' salaries from October 1 2013 will be as set out on page 58 These salanes will be reviewed (and may be increased) 1n April 2014 1n line
with the group’s policy

e Benefits will also be reviewed during the year although it 1s not anticipated that any significant changes will be made other than possibly the
provision of a UK or group wide life assurance scheme

e The profit share arrangement for each director will be as described on page 54 Profit share thresholds are subject to review dunng the year
Changes to thresholds are made only where considered appropriate by the remuneration committee, taking into account the businesses that the
respective director 15 responsible for and any acquisiions and disposals, as well, where applicable, the other faciors stated in the group's policy
The thresholds for the year ending September 30 2014 wall be disclosed in the 2014 Annual Report and Accounts
Directors will continue to be able to participate in the pension schemes operated in the country they reside on an unchanged basis

® Subject to approval of the CAP 2014 and CSCP 2014 by the company’s shareholders at the AGM in January 2014 the directors will be granted
CAP 2014 and CSOP 2014 options The actual number of options awarded will be directly linked to the profit growth delivered by the directors
from the base year (September 30 2013) to the year the performance condition i5 achieved (expected to be September 30 2017} A summary of
this new plan I1s provided on page 55

Joh tts
Charrtan of the remuneration committee
November 13 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the members of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Opinion on financial statements of Euromoney
Institutional Investor PLC

In our opinion

¢ the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the
group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at September 30 2013
and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

¢ the group financal statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with Internatonal Financal Reporting Standards {IFRSs)
as adopted by the European Union,

¢ the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, and

® the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group
financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

The group financial statements comprise the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Consalidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the
related notes 1 to 30 The parent company financial statements comprise
the company Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to 19 The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
group financial statements 15 apphicable law and IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union The financial reperting framework that has been
applied in the preparation of the parent company financal statements
15 applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice}

Going concern

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors’ statement

contained within the Directors’ Report that the group 15 a going concern

We confirm that

e we have not identified materal uncertainties related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the groups abidity
to continue as a gong concern which we believe would need to
be disclosed in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, and

® we have concluded that the directors’ use of the gong concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements s
appropnate

However, because not all future events or canditions can be predicted,
this statement s not a guarantee as to the group’s abiity to continue as
a going concern

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement

The assessed risks of matenal misstatement described below are those that
had the greatest effect on our audit strategy, the allocation of resources in
the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team

¢ acquisition accounting for the new businesses acquired, being TTV
Vanguard, Insider Publishing, Quantitative Techniques and CIE, as
well as the ongoing accounting for acquisition commitments on
previous acquisitions including NDR  Each acquisition 1s typically
structured in a different manner, resulung in judgement over the
accounting as well as over the assumptions used in the farr value
acquisition accounting assessment, Including the identification of
intangible assets,

® the assessment of the carrying value of goodwill and intangible
assets Management 15 required to carry out an annual impairment
test which incorporates judgements based on assumptions about the
future cash flows of the businesses and discount rates applied to
those cash flows,

& revenue recogmition, including deferred income on subscription and
delegate revenue,

® the continued requirerment for significant provisions and accruals
including the prowision for imparrment of trade recewables,

¢ the presentation of adjusting items, in particular the guantum and
consistency of the items included n the reconciiation from statutory
profit to the non-statutory adjusted profit,

e the appropriateness of captalisation of intemally-generated
intangible assets, in particular in relation to the global content
management system, and

® the group’s exposure to tax risks through open items with tax
authorities accrued for in several jurisdictions, in particular in the US,
and the recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets

Qur audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and not to
express an opinion on individual accounts or disclosures Our opinion on
the financial statements 1s not modified with respect to any of the nisks
described above, and we do not express an opinion on these individual
matters

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of matenality both in planming and perforrmung our
audit, and 1n evaluating the effect of misstatements on our audit and
on the financral statements For the purposes of determining whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement we define
matenality as the magnitude of misstatement that makes 1t probable that
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person, relying on
the financial statements, would be changed or infiuenced
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When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude
of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be matenal for the
financial statements as a whole We determined planning matenality for
the group to be £5 7 milion, which 15 approximately 5% of adjusted
operating profit before acquired intangible amortsation, long-term
incentive expense and exceptional items We use this profit measure as it
15 a key measure of business performance for the group

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them
all audit differences tn excess of £114,000, based on 2% of planning
matenality, as well as differences below that threshold that, In our view,
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds

An overview of the scope of our audit

Cur group audit scope focused primarly on the audit work at ten
components Six of these were subject to a full scope audit A further
four components were subject to specified audit procedures where the
extent of our testing was based on our assessment of the risks of material
misstaternent and of the mateniality of the group's business operations at
those locations Together with the central functions which were also subject
to a full scope audit, these components represent the principal business
units of the group and account for 79% of revenue and 85% of adjusted
operating profit They were also selected to prowde an appropriate basis
for undertaking audit work to address the risks of matenal misstatement
identified above The work at these ten components was executed at
levels of materiality apphcable to each individual entity which were much
lower than group materiality The remaining components were subject to
analytical review procedures designed to confirm that no further nisks of
misstatement existed that were matenal 10 the group financial statements

The group audit team continued to follow a programme of planned visits
that has been designed so that the Semior Statutory Auditor or another
senior member of the group audit team wisits the nine larger locations
where the group audit scope was focused at least once a year

The way in which we scoped our response to the nsks identified above

was as follows

® we carmed out testing on the acquisitions made in the year We have
tested the valuation of intangible assets identified by management
on acquisitions, challenging key assumptions relating to royalty rates,
shont and long term growth rates and discount rates We have also
challenged management’s assumptions used in the valuation of
the deferred consideration and put option Liabiities, predominantly
relating to the profit forecasts of the acquired businesses,

o we challenged management's assumptions used m the impairment
model for goodwill and intangible assets, descnbed in note 11 to the
financial statements, including specifically the cash flow projections,
discount rates and sensitvities used,

& we carned out testing in relation to revenue using a combtnation of
analytical procedures and substantive testing, focusing in particular
on the reconcliation of deferred subscription Income to subscnption/
fulfillment reports and the treatment of income and costs on events
spanning the period end,

e we challenged managements assumptions around prowisions,
induding specifically US sales tax prowsions, onerous lease
commitments and employee tax exposures on share option hiabilities
as well challenging the continued requirement for the provision for
impairment of trade receivables,

® we considered the appropriateness, consistency and completeness of
the items classified as adjusting iterns and the related disclosures n
the financial statements,

® we have tested the costs capitalised in respect of the global content
management system as set out in note 11, assessing whether the
nature of those costs met the critenia for capitalisation under the
group’s accounting policy and whether they were directly attributable
to the development of the content management system, and

® we assessed the adequacy of accruals made in respact of items under
discussion with the tax authorties and the antapated resolution of
those 1tems We challenged the recognition of deferred tax assets
and whether sufficient taxable profits were expected to be generated
n the relevant jurisdictions in which they anse

The audit committee’s consideration of these risks is set out on page 40

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the

Companies Act 2006

In our opinion

e the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accerdance with the Companies Act 2006,
and

® the information gwen 1n the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by

exception

Adequacy of explanations recewved and accounting records

Under the Comparues Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in

our opinion

® we have not received all the information and explanations we require
for our audit, or

® adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not wisited by us, or

® the parent company financal statements are not 1n agreement with
the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our
opinton certain disciosures of directors’ remuneration have not been
made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
Is not in agreement with the accounting records and returns Under the
Listing Rules we are required to review certamn elements of the Directors’
Remuneration Report We have nothing to report ansing from these
matters or our review

Corporate Governance Staternent

Under the Listing Rules we are also reguired to review the part of the
Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s compliance
with ruine provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code We have
nothing to report ansing from our review

Qur duty to read other information i the Annual Report

Under the ISAs (UK and Ireland}, we are required 1o report to you if, in our

opnion, information in the annual report Is

e  matenally inconsistent with the informatyon in the audited financial
statements, or

e apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent
with, our knowledge of the group acquired in the course of
performing our audit, or

& |5 otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have dentified any
inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired durng the audit and the
directors’ statement that they consider the annual report 1s fawr, balanced
and understandable and whether the annual report approprately
discloses those matters that we communicated to the audit committee
which we consider should have been disclosed We confirm that we have
not identified any such inconsistencies or misleading statements

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responstbilities Statement, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 1
to audit and express an opirion on the financial staterments in accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report 15 made solely to the company’s members, as a body, i
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Qur
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose 7o the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves abtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements sufficient to give reasenable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting
polices are appropnate to the groups and the parent company's
arcumstances and have been consistently appled and adequately
disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements
In addiion, we read all the financial and non-financial information 1n the
annual report to identify matenial inconsistencies with the audited finanoal
statements and to identify any information that 15 apparently matenalty
incorrect based on, or matenafly inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we become aware
of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Le(F N bt Ton S —

Robert Matthews (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

November 13 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement
for the year ended September 30 2013
2013 2012
Notes £000 £000
Total revenue 3 404,704 394,144
Operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation, long-term
incentive expense and exceptional items 3 121,088 118,175
Acguired intangible amortisatton 11 (15,890) (14,782)
Long-term incentive expense 23 {2,100) (6,301)
Exceptional items 5 2,232 (1,617
Operating profit before associates 3,4 105,330 95,475
Share of results In associates 284 459
Operating profit 105,614 95,934
Finance income 7 1,830 4,475
Finance expense 7 (12,184) (8,041)
Net finance costs 7 (10,354) (3,566)
Profit before tax 3 95,260 92,368
Tax expense on profit 8 (22,235) {22,528}
Profit after tax 3 73,025 69,840
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 72,623 69,672
Equity non-controlling interests 402 168
73,025 69,840
Basic earmings per share 10 57 88p 56 74p
Diluted earnings per share 10 56 70p 5517p
Adjusted basic earnings per share 10 7243p 67 79p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 10 70 9%6p 65 91p
Dividend per share (including proposed dividends) 9 22 75p 2175

A detailed reconallation of the group’s statutory results to the adjusted results 1s set out in the appendix to the Chairman’s Staternent on page 7

Consolidated income Statement
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Consolidated Statement of

Comprehensive Income
for the year ended September 30 2013

2013 2012
£000 £000
Profit after tax 73,025 69,840
Itemns that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Change in farr value of cash flow hedges {3.298) 3,913
Transfer of gains on cash flow hedges from fair value reserves to Income Statement
Foreign exchange gams in total revenue 2,320 3,382
Foreign exchange (lossesygains in operating profit (176} 184
Interest rate swap gains In interest payable on committed borrowings 226 1,251
Net exchange differences on translation of net investments in overseas subsidiary undertakings (7.167) {13,650)
Net exchange differences on foreign currency loans 4,317 5,886
Tax on items that may be reclassified 90 (1,509)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuanal gaing/fiosses) on defined benefit pension schemes 1,433 (3,398)
Tax (charge)credit on actuanal gainsflosses on defined benefit pension schemes (287) 782
Other comprehensive expense for the year (2,542) (3,159)
Total comprehensive income for the year 70,483 66,681
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 69,774 65,675
Equity non-centrolling interests 709 1,006
70,483 66,681
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at September 30 2013
2013 2012
Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Goodwill 3] 356,574 333,065
Cther intangible assets H 143,039 136,243
Property, plant and equipment 12 16,792 17,982
Investments 13 702 735
Deferred tax assets 21 5,015 7,344
Derwvative finanoal instruments 18 746 296
538 BGS 495 665
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 15 79,245 65,952
Current income tax assets 5,436 2,678
Cash at bank and 1in hand 11,268 13,544
Derwvative finangal instruments 18 1,736 2,715
97,685 84,889
Current habilities
Acquisition commutments 24 (539) (4,273)
Deferred consideration 24 (7,040) 77
Trade and other payables 16 (26.841) (27.623)
Liability for cash-settled options 23 (7,435) (7,768)
Current income tax habilities (12,653) {9,076)
Group relief payable {473} -
Accruals (48,381) {54,170}
Deferred Income 17 {117,296) (105,106}
Committed loan facility 19 (20,177) -
Loan notes 19 {1.028) {1,228}
Dervative finanaal nstruments 18 (909) (656)
Provisions 20 (3,974) (2,037)
(246,746) (212.014)
Net current habilities (149,061) {127.125)
Total assets less current habilities * 379,807 368,540
Non-current habilities
Acquisition comrmitments 24 (14,498) (3,595)
Deferred consideration 24 (9,085) -
Lrability for cash-settled options and other non-current habilities 23 (498) (6,966)
Preference shares (10} (10}
Committed loan faciity 19 - (43,154)
Deferred tax kabilities 21 (16,838) {16,975)
Net pension defiat 26 (2,883) (4,757}
Dervative financial instruments 18 - (241)
Provisions 20 (2,236) (4,918)
{46,048) {80,616)
Net assets 333,759 287924
Shareholders’ equity
Called up share capital 22 316 n
Share prem:um account 101,709 99,485
Other reserve - 64,981 64,981
Capital redemption reserve 8 8
Own shares (74) (74}
Reserve for share-based payments 37,122 36,055
Fair value reserve (20,216) {18,152)
Translation reserve 38,707 40,728
Retained earnings 102,959 58,033
Equity shareholders® surplus 325,512 281,375
Equity non-controlling interests 8,247 6,549
Total equity 333,759 287,924

The accounts were approved by the board of directors on Novernber 13 2013

Christopher Fordham . -

Colin Jones { ‘Z /C/\/’

Directors ANt J/UPV '
\_/ L]

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended September 30 2013

Reserve
for Equity
Capital share- non-
Share redemp- based Farr Trans- control-
Share premium  Other tlon Own pay- value lation Retained ling

capital account reserve reserve shares ments reserve reserve earnings Total interests Total
£000 £000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At September 30 2012 311 99,485 64,981 8 (74) 36,055 (18,152) 40,728 58,033 281,375 6,549 287,924
Retained profit for the year - - - - - - - - 72,623 72,623 402 73,025
Change in fair value of cash

fiow hedges - - - - - - (3,298) - - (3,298) - (3.298)

Transfer of gains on cash
flow hedges from farr
value reserves to Income

Statement
Foreign exchange gains in
total revenue - - - - - - 2,320 - - 2,320 - 2320
Foreign exchange losses
n operating profit - - - - - - (176) - - (176) - (176}

Interest rate swap qains

In (nterest payable on

commutted borrowings - - - - - - 226 - - 226 - 226
Net exchange differences
on translation of net
Investments In overseas

subsidiary undertakings - - - - - - - (7.474) - (7,474) 307 (7,167}
Net exchange differences on

foreign currency loans - - - - - - (1,136) 5,453 - 4,317 - 4317

Actuarial gains on defined

benefit pension schemes - - - - - - - - 1,433 1,433 - 1,433

Tax relating to components

of other comprehensive

income - - - - - - - - (197) (197) - {197)
Total comprehensive

income for the year - - - - - - (2,064) (2,021) 73859 69,774 709 70483

Exercise of acquisition

commitments - - - - - - - - 18 18 (18) -

Recognition of acquisition

commitments - - - - - - - - (4,404) (4,404) - ({4,404)
Non-controlling interest

recognised on acquisiion - - - - - - - - - - 1,402 1,402

Credit for share-based

payments - - - - - 1,067 - - - 1,067 - 1,067

Cash dwidend pad - - - - - - - - (27,156) (27.156) (413) (27,569)
Exercise of share options 5 2,224 - - - - - - - 2,229 18 2,247

Tax relating to tems taken

directly to equity - - - - - - - - 2,609 2,609 - 2609

At September 30 2013 316 101,709 64,981 8 (74) 37,122 (20,216) 38,707 102,959 325,512 8,247 333,759

The Investment in own shares is held by the Euromoney Employees’ Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) At September 30 2013 the ESOT held 58,976 shares
(2012 58,976 shares) carried at a historic cost of £1 25 per share with a market value of £684,000 {2012 £454,000) The trust waived the nights to
recewe dvidends Interest and administrative costs are charged to the profit and loss account of the ESOT as incurred

The other reserve represents the share premium anstng on the shares 1ssued for the purchase of Metal Bulletin pic in October 2006
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended September 30 2012
Reserve
for Equity
Capital share- nen-
Share redemp- hased Far  Trans- control-
Share premwm  Other tton  Own pay- value Jlaton Retaned ling
capital  account reserve  reserve shares  ments reserve reserve  eamings Total interests Total

£000 £000  £000 £000  £000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At September 30 2011 303 82,124 64,981 8 (74) 33,725 (32,768) 55,216 16218 219,733 5,842 225,575
Retained profit for the year - - - - - - - - 69,672 69672 168 69,840
Change in fair value of cash
flow hedges - - - - -
Transfer of gains on cash
flow hedges from farr
value reserves to Income
Statement
Foreign exchange gains in
total revenue - - - - - - 31382 -
Foreign exchange gains n
operating profrt - - - - - - 184 - - 184 - 184
Interest rate swap gains
In nterest payable on
committed borrowings - - - - -
Net exchange differences
on translation of net
investments in overseas
subsidiary undertakings - - - - - -
Net exchange differences on
foreign currency loans - - - - -
Actuanal losses on defined
benefit penston schemes - - - - - - - - {3.398) (3.398)
Tax relating to components
of other comprehensive
Income = = = - - - - - {727} (727}
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - -
Exercise of acquisition

393 -

3,913 3913

3,382

3,382

1,251 - 1,251 1,251

(14,488}

(14,488) 838 (13,650)

5,886 -

5,886 5,886

(3,398)

(727)

14,616 (14,488) 65547 65,675 1.006 66,681

option commitments - - - - - - - - 62 62 {62) -
Credit for share-based

paymenits - - - - - 2,330 - - - 2,330 - 2,330
scrip/cash dwvidends paid 6 16,304 - - - - - - (23.794) (7.484) {299) (7.783)

%]

Exercise of share options 1,057 - - - — - — - 1,059 62 1,121
At September 30 2012 311 99,485 64,981 8 (74) 36,055 (18,152) 40,728 58,033 281,375 6,549 287,924

Garnnn Arcnnntc

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended September 30 2013

2013 2012
£000 £000

Cash flow from operating activities
Operating profit 105,614 95,934
Share of results in associates (284) (459)
Acquired mtangible amortisation 15,890 14,782
Licences and software amortisation 301 339
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,926 3,408
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 53
Long-term incentive expense 2,100 6,301
Negative goodwall (4,449) -
(Decrease)increase (N provisions (7836) B44
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 122,312 121,202
{Increase)/decrease In recevables (4,343) 4,905
Decrease In payables (11,813) (3.932)
Cash generated from aperations 106,156 122,175
Income taxes paid (17.230) {11,065)
Group relief tax paid (1,970) (4,204)
Net cash from operating activities 86,956 106,906
Investing activities
Dmdends paid to non-controlling interests (413) (299)
Divnidends receved from associate 268 291
Interest receved 239 306
Purchase of intangible assets (6,314) {819)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,701} (1,665)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 2 2
Payment following working capital adjustment from purchase of subsidrary {1.711) (1,151)
Purchase of subsidiary undertaking, net of cash acquired (20,971) {5,099}
Purchase of assoc:ates - {567)
Receipt following working capital adjustment from purchase of associate 49 -
Net cash used 1n investing activities (31,552) (9,001)
Financing activities
Dwvidends paid {27,156) {7.484)
Interest paid (3.142) (5,218)
Interest paid on lpan notes (3) 12)
1ssue of new share capital 2,229 1,059
Payment of acquisition deferred consideration (5.329) {612)
Purchase of additional interest in subsidiary undertakings (153) (924)
Proceeds received from non-controlling interest - 1,828
Settlement of derivative assetsfiabilities - {(332)
Redemption of loan notes (199) (386}
Loan repaid to DMGT group company (196,264) (139,067)
Loan received from DMGT group company 172,488 54,700
Net cash used in financing activities (57.529) {96,448)
Net {decrease)/increase 1n cash and cash equivalents (2.125) 1,457
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 13,544 12,497
effect of foreign exchange rate movements {151) (410)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 11,268 13,544
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Note to the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows
Net Debt 2013 2012

£000 £000
Net debt at beginning of year {30,838) (119,179}
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,125} 1,457
Net decrease in amounts owed to DMGT group company 23,776 84,367
Redemption of loan notes 199 386
Interest paid on loan notes 3 12
Accrued interest on loan notes (2) (9)
Effect of foreign exchange rate movements (950} 2,128
Net debt at end of year {9.937) (30,838)
Net debt comprises
Cash and cash equivalents 11,268 13,544
Committed loan facility (20,177) (43,154)
Loan notes (1,028) (1,228)
Net debt {9,937) (30,838}

Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

firnun Arrniintc
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies

General information

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC (the ‘company’) 15 a company
incorporated in the United Kingdem (UK}

The group finangial statemenits consolidate those of the company and its
subsidianes {together referred 1o as the ‘group’} and equity-account the
group’s interest In associates The parent company financial statements
present information about the entity and not about its group

The group financal statements have been prepared and approved by
the directors In accordance wath the international Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS} adopted for use in the European Union and, therefore,
comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation The company has elected
to prepare Its parent company financial statements in accordance with
UK GAAP

Judgements made by the directors in the apphcation of those accounting
policies that have a significant effect on the financial statements, and
estirnates with a ssgnificant nsk of matenal adjustment in the next year,
are discussed In note 2

(a) Relevant new standards, amendments and interpretations 1ssued

and applied in the 2013 finanaal year

® Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income {Amendmaents
to IAS 1), effective for accounting peniods beginning on or after July
31 2012 This amends IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ to
revise the way other comprehensive income (s presented

(b} Relevant new standards, amendments and interpretations issued

but effective in the 2014 finanaal year

& |FRS 13 'Far Value Measurement’ (effective for accounting penods
beginning on or after January 1 2013) This standard aims to smprove
consistency and reduce complexity by providing a prease definition
of far value and a single source of far valug measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs The requirements,
which are largely aligned between IFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend
to the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how 1t
shoutd be applied where 1ts use 1s already required or permitted by
other standards withun IFRSs or US GAAP

® |AS 19 (revised) ‘Employee Benefits', 1ssued in June 2011 (effective
for accounting penods beginming on or after January 1 2013} The
impact on the group will be as follows to recognise all actuanal
gains and losses in Other Comprehensive Income as they occur, to
immediately recogruse all past service costs, and to replace interest
cost and expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount
that 15 calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
liabityAasset)

The directors have assessed that the impact of the adoption of these
standards will have no matenal impact on the financtal stataments of the
group except for additional disclosures

{c) Relevant new standards, amendments and interpretations 1ssued

but effective in future accounting penods

e |FRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ ssued in October 2010 {effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1 2015) This
standard 15 the first step in the process to replace 1AS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments recognition and measurement’ IFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classifying and measuning financial assets and 15
hkely to affect the group’s accounting for its financial assets This
standard has not yet been endorsed by the EU The group 15 yet to
assess IFRS 9% full mpact

& IFRS 10 ‘Conschdated Financial Statements’ (effective for accounting
penods beginruing on or after January 1 2014) This standard builds
on existing principles by identifying the concept of contrat as the
deterrmining factor in whether an entity should be included within
the conschdated financial statements of the parent company and
provides additional guidance to assist In the determination of control
where this 15 difficult to assess The group I1s yet to assess IFRS 10%
full impact

® IFRS 11 ‘loint Arangements' (effectve for accounting penods
beginming on or after January 1 2014) This standard replaces
IAS 31 ‘Interests (n Joint Ventures' and requites a party to a joint
arrangement to determine the type of joint arrangement in which 1t
15 involved by assessing its nghts and obligatrons and then account
for those nghts and obligations in accordance with that type of
joint arrangement A joint venturer applies the equity method of
accounting for 1ts investement In a Joint venture In accordance with
1AS 28 'Investments In Associates and Joint Ventures (2011Y Unlike
1AS 31 the use of 'proportionate consolidation’ to account for joint
ventures Is not permitted

® IFRS 12 'Disciosure of interests in Other Entities' (effective for
accounting periods beginming on or after January 1 2014) This
standard includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of
interests in other entittes, including jomnt arrangements, assocates,
special purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles The
group s yet to assess IFRS 125 full impact

® |AS 12 ‘Income Taxes' on deferred tax recovery of underlying assets
{effecuve for accounting perieds beginning on or after January 1
2013) This amendment provides a presumption that recovery of the
carrying value of an asset measured using the farr value model in
IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’ will, narmally, be through sale
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1 Accounting policies continued

IAS 27 ‘Separate Financial Statements (2011)° (effective for
accounting penods beginning on or after January 1 2014) The
standard requires that when an entty prepares separate financial
statements, nvestments N subsidiaries, assccates, and jointly
controlled entities are accounted for either at ¢ost, or in accordance
with IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ 1t also deals with the recognition
of dividends, certain group recrganisations and includes a number of
disclosure requirements
IAS 28 ‘Investments In Associates and Joint Ventures {2011
(effective for accounting perods beginning on or after January 1
2014) This standard supersedes 1AS 28, ‘Investments In AssoCiates’,
and prescribes the accounting for investrments in associates and
sets out the requirements for the application of the equity method
when accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures
The standard defines ‘sigrificant influence’ and provides guidance
on how the equity method of accounting 1s to be applied (including
exemptions from applying the equity method in some cases) 1t also
prescribes how Investments in associates and joint ventures should
be tested for impairment
Disclosures — Offsetung Financial Assets and Financial Labilities
{(Amendments to IFRS 7), effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after January 1 2013 This amends the disclosure requirements
in IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments Disclosures’ to require information
about all recognised finanoa! wmstruments that are set off in
accordance with paragraph 42 of 1AS 32 ‘Financial tnstruments
Presentation
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to
IAS 32), effective for accounting penods beginning on or after January
1 2014 This amends IAS 32 'Financal Instruments Presentation’
to clanfy certain aspects because of diversity in application of the
requirements on offsetting, focused on four main areas
— the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable nght of
set-off’
— the application of simultaneous reahsaton and settlement
— the offsetuing of collateral amounts
— the unit of account for applying the offsetung requirements
Annual Improvernents 2009-2011 Cyde In May 2012 the IASB 1ssued
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle incorporating six
amendments to five standards Most of the proposed amendmentis
clanfy existing guidance One very useful dlanfication relates to the
‘third balance sheet’ requirements in IAS 1 under the proposals,
additional related notes are not required to accompany that
addrtional balance sheet Effective for accounting penod beginning
on or after January 1 2014
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entties Transiion Guidance
amends IFRS 10 ‘Consohdated Finanaal Statements’, IFRS 11 “Joint
Arrangements’ and IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’

to provide additional transition relef m by imiting the requirement
to provide adjusted comparative information to only the preceding
comparative period Effective for accounting penods beginning on or
after January 1 2014

® Investment Entiies (Amendments to IFRS 10, iFRS 12 and IAS
27), effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
January 1 2014 This amends IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial
Statements’, IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” and
IAS 27 ‘Separate Financial Statements’ to prowvide investment
entites an exempton from the consohdation of particular
subsichanes and instead require that an investment entity measure
the invesiment 1n each eligible substdiary at farr value through
profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9 *Financial Instruments’ or
IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement’,
require additional disclosure about why the entity 1s considered an
investment entity, details of the entity’s unconsohdated subsidiaries,
and the nature of relationship and certain transactions between
the investment entty and its subsicharies, require an investment
entity to account for 1its wvestment In 4 relevant subsdiary in the
same way n Its consolidated and separate financial statements
(or to only provide separate financial statements if all subsidianes are
unconsolidated)

® Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial  Assets
{Amendments to IAS 36), effective for accounting penods beginning
on or after January 1 2014 This amends 1AS 36 ‘Impairment of
Assets’ to reduce the circumstances in which the recoverable amount
of assets or cash-generating units 1s required to be disclosed, clarify
the disclosures required, and to ntroduce an explicst requirement
to disclose the discount rate used in determining impairment {(or
reversals) where the recoverable amount (based on fair value less
costs of disposal) 1s determined using present value techniques

® Novation of Denvatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
{(Amendments to IAS 39), effective for accounting periods beginning
onor after January 1 2014 Thisamends IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurement’ to make 1t clear that there is no need
to discontinue hedge accounting If a hedging denvative 1s novated,
provided certain critena are met

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these standards in future
periods wall have no matenal impact on the financial statements of the
group except for additional disclosures

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

farnann Arronnte
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

1 Accounting pohices continued

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain financial instruments which have been measured
at farr value The accounting policies set out below have been apphed
consistently to all penods presented in these group financial statements
The directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng this
report as explamned in detall on page 30

Basis of consolidation

(a) Subsidianes

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the company and
entities controlled by the company {its ‘subsidiaries’} Control 1s achieved
where the company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on
transactions between group companes are elminated

The group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account for
business combinations The amount recognised as consideration by
the group equates to the fair value of the assets, labiities and equity
acquired by the group plus contingent consideration {should there be any
such arrangement) Acquisiion related costs are expensed as incurred
ldentifiable assets acquired and labiites and contingent habilities
assumed n a business combination are measured witially at thewr far
values at acguisihon On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the group
recogmises any nan-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the acquiree’
net assets

To the extent the consideration {including the assumed contingent
consideration} provided by the acquirer 1s greater than the fair value of the
assets and habilities, this amount 1s recognised as goodwall Goodwill also
incorporates the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition date far value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the group’s share of the Wdentfiable net
assets acquired If this consideration 15 lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidhary acquired, the difference 1s recogrised as ‘negative
goodwill’ directly in the Income Statement

iIf the initial accounting for a business combination 1s iIncomplete by the end
of the reporting penod in which the combination occurs, the group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting 1s ncomplete
Those prowsional amounts are adjusted during the measurement penod,
or additional asset and habilities are recognised to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that exsted as of the date of the
acquisition that, If known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date

The measurement penod is the perod from the date of acquisition to
the date the group abtans complete information about facts and
arcumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and 15 a maximum
of one year

Partial acquisttions — control unaffected

Where the group acquires an additional interest in an entity in which
a controlling interest 1s already held, the consideration paid for the
additional interest is reflected within movements In equity as a reduction
In non-controlling interests No goodwill 1s recogrised

Step acquisrtions — controf passes to the group

Where a business combination 1s achieved in stages, at the stage at which
control passes to the group, the previously held interest 1s treated as if 1t
had been disposed of, along with the consideratton paid for the controlling
interest in the subsidiary The fair value of the previpusly held interest then
forms one of the components that 1s used to calculate goodwill, along
with the consideration and the non-controlling interest less the fair value
ot identifiable net assets

The consideration paid for the earlier stages of a step acquisition, before
control passes to the group, Is treated as an investment In an associate

{b} Transactions and non-controling interests

Transactions with non-controlling interests tn the net assets of consolidated
subsicharies are identified separately and included in the group’s equity
Nan-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the
date of the onginal business combination and 1ts share of changes in
equity since the date of the combinatton Total comprehensive income
15 attrbuted to non-controlling mterests even if this results In the non-
controling interests having a deficit balance

Where the group owns a non-controlling interest in the equity share capital
of a non-quoted company and does not exercise significant influence, 1tis
held as an investment and stated in the balance sheet at the lower of cost
and net realisable value

{c) Assoaates

An associate 1s an entity over which the group is In a position to exercise
significant influence, but not control or joint control, through partiaipation
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee The results
and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated i these finangal
statemnents ustng the equity method of accounting and are mitally
recognised at cost The group's investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss
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1 Accounting policies continued

The group’s share of associate post-acquisition profit or losses 1s
recogrised in the Income Statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income 1s recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment When the
graup’s share of losses in an associate equals its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the group does not recognise
further losses, unless 1t has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates
are eliminated 1o the extent of the group’s interest in the associates
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction prowides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary 1o ensure consistency with
the polices adopted by the group )

Dilution gains and losses ansing In Investments 1n associates are recognised
In the Income Statement

Fareign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

The functional and presentation currency of Euromoney Institutional
Investor PLC and its UK subsidianes, other than Fantfoot Limited and
Centre for Investor Education (UK) Limited, 15 sterhng The functional
currency of other subsicharies and associates 15 the currency of the pnmary
economic environment in which they operate

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange
rulng at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and habitities
denominated In foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the
rates ruling at the balance sheet date Gains and losses arising on foreign
currency borrowings and derivative instruments, to the extent that they
are used to provide a hedge agawnst the group’s equity investments in
overseas undertakings, are taken to eguity together with the exchange
difference anising on the net investment in those undertakings All other
exchange differences are taken to the Income Statement

Group companes

The Income Statements of overseas operations are translated into sterling
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year and therr balance
sheets are translated into sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date All exchange differences ansing on consolidation are
taken to equity In the event of the disposal of an operation, the refated
cumulative transtation differences are recogrused in the Income Statement
in the peniod of disposal

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equpment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairment loss

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 15 prowvided on a straight-
hine basis over therr expected useful iives at the following rates per year

Freehold land do not depreciate
Freehold builldings 2%

Long-term leasehald premises over term of lease
Short-term [easehold premises over term of lease
Office equipment 11% - 33%

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase consideration
over the net far value of identifiable assets and habilitres acquired

Goodwill 1s recogrised as an asset at cost and subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated impairment For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill 15 allocated to those cash generating urits that have benefited
from the acquisition Assets are grouped at the fowest level for which
there are separately 1dentifiable cash flows The carrying value of goodwill
s reviewed for impairment at least annually or where there s an indication
that goodwill may be impaired If the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit 1s less than 1ts carrying amount, then the imparrment loss
1 allocated first 1o reduce the carrying amount of the goodwill aliocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the urit on a pro rata basis Any
impairment 15 recogrised immediately in the Income Statement and may
not subsequently be reversed On disposal of a subsichary undertaking,
the attributable amount of goodwill 15 included In the determination of
the profit and loss on disposal

Goodwill ansing on foreign subsidiary iInvestments held in the consolidated
balance sheet are retranslated into sterling at the applicable pericd end
exchange rates Any exchange differences ansing are taken directly to
equity as par of the retranslation of the net assets of the subsidiary

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS has
been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts having been tested for
impairment at that date Goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP
before October 1 1998 has not been reinstated and 15 not included in
determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Internally generated intangible assets

An internally generated intangible asset ansing from the group's software
and systems development 1s recognised only if all of the following
conditions are met

® An asset 1s created that can be identified (such as software or a
website),

& It 15 probable that the asset created wilt generate future economic
benefits, and

®  The development cost of the asset can be measured reliably

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost and amortised on
a straight-line basis over the useful hves from the date the asset becomes
usable Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure 1s recognised as an expense in the period In
which 1t 15 incurred

Other intangible assets

For all other intangible assets, the group witially makes an assessment
of ther far value at acquisition An intangible asset will be recognised
as long as the asset 1s separable or anses from contractual or other legal
nghts, and 1ts fair value can be measured reliably

Subsequent to acquisiion, amortisation 1s charged so as to wnte off the
costs of other intangible assets over their estmated useful lives, using
a straight-line or reducing balance method These ntangible assets are
reviewed for impairment as described below

These intangibles are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses

Amortisation

Amortisation of intangible assets s provided on a reducing balance basis
or straight-line basis as appropriate over their expected useful lives at the
following rates per year

Trademarks and brands 5 — 30 years
Customer relationships 1 =16 years
Databases 1 - 22 years
Licences and software 3 -5 years

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefimte useful hfe — for example, gocdwill or
Intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes In crcumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An impairment
loss 1s recogmsed for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds Its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 15 the higher

of an asset’s fair value fess costs 1o sell or value in use For the purposes
of assessing Imparment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units)
Non-financial assets, other than goodwill, that suffered iImpairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the mpairment at each reporting date

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at onginal invoice amount,
less provision for impairment A provision 15 made and charged to the
Income Statement when there 1s objective evidence that the group wall
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms
More infermation on impairment s included in the impairment of financial
assets section below

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash, short-term deposits and other
short-term highly iquid investments wath an onginal matunty of three
months or less

For the purpose of the group cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents are as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts

Financial assets

The group dassifies 1ts financial assets in the following categores
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and recewvables,
and avallable-for-sale financial assets The dassification depends on the
purpose for which the assets were acquired Management determines
the dlassification of 1ts assets at initial recogrution and re-evaluates this
designation at every reportng date

Classtfication

Financral assets at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets at farr value through profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading A financal asset s classified in this category If acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or 1f so designated
by management Dervatives are also categonsed as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges Assets in this category are classified
as current assets If expected to be settled within 12 months, othermse,
they are classified as non-current

Loans and recevables

Loans and recewvables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market They are
included In current assets, except for those with matunities greater than
12 months after the end of the reporting pertod which are dassified as
non-current assets The group’s loans and receivables compnse trade and
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet
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1 Accounting pohaes continued

Avaifable-for-sale financial assets

Avalable-for-sale financial assets are non-denvatives that are either
designated 1n this category or not classified in any of the other categornes
They are included in non-current assets unless the investrent matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting penod

Recognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the date
on which the group commits to purchase or sell the asset All financial
assets, other than those carnied at fair value through profit or loss, are
initially recogrised at fair value plus transaction costs

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets carned at farr value through profit or loss are ininially
recogmised at farr value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit
and loss component of the Statement of Comprehensive Income Gains
and losses ansing from changes in the farr value of the "financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss category’ are included in the profit and
loss component of the Statement of Comprehensive Income In the perod
in which they anse Divdend income from assets, categorised as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, I1s recognised in the profit and
loss component of the Statement of Comprehensive Income as part of
other income when the group's right to receive payments 1s established

Loans and recenvables
Loans and recevables are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method

Avaiable-for-sale financial assets
Avallable-for-sate finanaial assets are subsequently measured at fair value

Offsetting finanuial instruments

Financial assets and labilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there 15 a legally enforceable nght to offset the
recogrised amounts and there 1s an intention to settle on a net basis, or
reahse the asset and settle the liability smultaneously

Impairment of finanaal assets

The group assesses at each reporting period whether there 1s objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets 1s impared A
financial asset ar a group of financial assets 1s impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there 15 objective evidence of imparrment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recogrition of
the asset {a ‘loss event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the eshmated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated

The cntena that the group uses to determine that there 15 objective
ewvidence of an impatrment loss include

¢ Signmficant financial difficulty of the 1ssuer or obligor,

® A breach of contraqt, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal paymendts,

e  The group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider,

® It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation,

@ The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financal difficulties, or

# Observable data indicating that there 1s a measurable decrease In
the astimate of future cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets
since the intial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the indwvidual financial assets In the
portfolio, including

{1t Adverse changes in the payment status of barrowers in the portfolio,
and

{n) National or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the portfolio

The group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists

The amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
{excluding future credit losses that have not heen incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s onginal effective interest rate The asset’s carrying
amount 15 reduced and the amount of the loss Is recogrised in the profit
and loss component of the Statement of Comprehensive Income If
a loan has a vanable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate deterrned under the
contract As a practical expedient, the group may measure iImpairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price

If the asset's carrying amount is reduced, the amount of the loss 15
recognised in the profit and joss component of the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

If in a subsequent pertod, the amount of the imparment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurnng after
the imparrment was recogrused {such as an improvement in the debtor's
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss
is recogrsed In the profit and loss component of the Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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1 Accounting policies continued

Financial liabilities

Commutted borrowings and bank overdrafts

Interest-beanng loans and overdrafts are recorded at the amounts
recewved, net of direct 1Issue costs Directissue costs are amortised over the
period of the loans and overdrafts to which they relate Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement or redemption are charged to
the Income Statement as incurred using the effective interest rate method
and are added to the carrying value of the borrowings or overdraft to the
extent they are not settled in the period which they anse

Trade payables and accruals
Trade payables and accruals are not interest-bearing and are stated at
therr fair value

Denvative finanaal instruments

The group uses vanous denvative financial instruments to manage its
exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate nsks, induding forward
foreign currency contracts and nterest rate swaps

All dervative mstruments are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value
The recogrition of gains or losses on dernvative instruments depends on
whether the instrument 1s designated as a hedge and the type of exposure
it 15 designed to hedge The group designates certain dernivatives as erther

{a) hedges of the far value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm
commitment (far value hedge),

(b) hedges of a particular nsk associated with a recognised asset or
lability or a highly probable forecast transaction {cash flow hedge),
or

{0 hedges of a net investment In a foreign operation (net snvestment
hedge)

The full farr value of a hedging dervative 15 classified as a non-current
asset ar liabiity when the derivative matures in more than 12 months,
and as a current asset or hability when the denvative matures in less than
12 months Trading derivatives are classified as a current asset or hability

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualify
as far value hedges are recorded in the Income Statement, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or hatility that are
attributable to the hedged nsk The group only applies fair value hedge
accounting for hedging fixed asset nsk on borrowtngs The gain or loss
relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps hedging fixed rate
borrowings 15 recognised in the Income Statement within ‘finance costs’
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recognised in the
Income Staterment within operating profit Changes in the far value
of the hedge fixed rate borrowings attnibutable to interest rate nsk are
recogmsed in the Income Statement within ‘finance costs’

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of gains or losses on derivatives that are designated
and qualify as cash flow hedges 15 recognised 1n other comprehensive
income within the Statement of Comprehensive Income The ineffective
portion of such gains and losses 15 recognised in the Income Statement
immediately

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the Income Statement in
the penods when the hedged 1item s recognised in the Income Statement
{for example, when the forecast transaction that 1s hedged takes place)

The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of interest rate swaps
hedging vanable rate borrowings is recognised 1n the Income Statement
accordingly, the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recogrised
In the Income Statement immediately However, whenever the forecast
transaction that s hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset (for example fixed assets), the gains and losses previously deferred in
equity are transferred from equity and included in the inibal measurement
of the cost of the asset The deferred amounts are ultimately recogrused
in depreciation in the case of fixed assets

When a hedging instrument expires or 13 sold, or when a hedge no longer
meets the critena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
existing in equity at that time remains i equity and 1s recognised when
the forecast transaction is ulimately recogmised 1n the Income Statement
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss that was reported In equity 1s immediately transferred to the
Income Statement

The premium or discount on interest rate instruments is recogrused as part
of net interest payable over the period of the contract Interest rate swaps
are accounted for on an accruals basis

Net investment hedge
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounited for in the
same way as cash flow hedges

Gains or losses on the qualifying part of net investment hedges are
recognised in other comprehensive income tegether with the gains and
losses on the underlying net investment The tneffective portion of such
gains and losses Is recognised 1n the Income Statement immediately

Changes in the fair value of the denvative finanaal instruments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the Income Statement
as they arise

Gains and losses accumulated in equity are transferred to the Income
Statement when the foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold
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1 Accounting policies continued

Liabilities in respect of acquisition commitments

Liabilittes for acquisition commitments over the remaming mmonty
interests in subsidianes are recorded In the Statement of Financial Position
at their estimated discounted present value These discounts are unwound
and charged to the Income Staternent as notional interest over the peniod
up to the date of the potential future payment

Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax Tax 1s
recognised In the Income Statement, except to the extent that it relates
to itemns recogrused in other comprehensive income or directly In equity

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 15 provided at
amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantvely enacted by the balance sheet
date

Deferred taxation 15 calculated under the provisions of 1AS 12 ‘Income
tax’ and 15 recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and labihties in the accounts and the corresponding tax bases
used In the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using
the balance sheet habiity method Deferred tax liabifities are generally
recogmsed for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recogmised to the extent that 1t s probable that taxable profits will be
avallable against which deductible temporary differences can be utlised
No prowision 15 made for temporary differences on unremitted earnings
of forergn subsidiaries or associates where the group has control and the
reversal of the temporary difference 15 not foreseeable

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 15 no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply In the perniod when the hability is settled or the asset i realised
based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax is charged or credited
the Income Statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there 15 a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax habihties
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
autharity and the group intends to settle its current assets and habihties
on a net basis

Provisions

A provision 15 recogrised i the balance sheet when the group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and 1t 15
probable that economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
If matenal, prowisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, where appropnate, the nisks speafic to the
lability

Pensions

Contributions to pension schemes In respect of current and past service,
ex gratia penstons, and cost of Imng adjustments to existing pensions are
based on the advice of independent actuares

Defined contnbution plans

A defined contnibution plan 1s 3 pension plan under which the group pays
fixed contnbutions into a separate non-group related entity Payments
to the Euromoney Pension Plan and the Metal Bulletin Group Personal
Pension Plan, both defined contnbution pension schemes, are charged as
an expense as they fall due

Multi-employer scheme

The group also participates in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme, a defined
benefit pension scheme which 1s operated by Dally Mail and General Trust
plc As there is no contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the
net defined benefit cost for the plan as a whole to the mdwidual entities,
the group recognises an expense equal to its contnbutions payable In
the period and does not recognise any unfunded lability of this pension
scheme on its balance sheet In other words, this scheme 1s treated as a
defined contribution plan

Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more
factors such as age, years of service and compensaton

The group operates the Metal Bulletn Pension Scheme, a defined benefit
scheme The present value of providing benefits 1s determined by triennial
valuations using the attained age method, with actuanial valuations being
carned out at each balance sheet date Actuanal gains and losses are
recogmised in full in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the
period In which they occur The retirement benefit obligation recognised
in the Statement of Finanaal Position represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adyusted for unrecogrised past service cost,
and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Share-based payments

The group makes share-based payments to certain employees which are
equity and cash-settled These payments are measured at their estimated
fair value at the date of grant, calculated using an appropriate option
pricing model The fair value determined at the grant date 1s expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the estimate of the
number of shares that will eventually vest At the penod end the vesting
assumpttons are revisited and the charge associated with the fair value of
these options updated For cash-settled share-based payments a hability
equal to the portion of the services receved 15 recognised at the current
farr value as determined at each balance sheet date

Revenue
Revenue represents income from advertising, subscriptions, sponsorship
and delegate fees, net of value added tax

®  Advertising revenues are recogrused in the Income Statement on the
date of publication

® Subscription revenues are recognised in the Income Statement on a
straight-hne basis over the period of the subscription

® Sponsorship and delegate revenues are recogrised in the Income
Statement over the period the event s run

Revenues invoiced but relating to future periods are deferred and treated
as deferred income In the Statement of Financial Position

Leased assets

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases Operating
lease rentals are charged to the Income Statement on a straight-line basis
as allowed by 1AS 17 'Leases’

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a hability in the penod i which they are
approved by the company's shareholders Intenm dividends are recorded
in the penod in which they are paid

Own shares held by Employees’ Share Ownership Trust
Transactions of the group-sponsored trust are included i the group
financial statements In particular, the trust's holdings of shares in the
company are debited direct to equity

Earmings per share

The earnings per share and diluted earnings per share calculations follow
the provisions of IAS 33 ‘Earnings per share’ The diluted earnings per
share figure 15 calculated by adjusting for the dilution effect of the exeraise
of all ordinary share options, SAYE options and the Capital Appreciation
Plan options granted by the company, but excluding the ordinary shares
held by the Euromoney Employees’ Share Ownership Trust

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are items of income or expense considered by the
directors, erther mdmdually or f of a similar type i aggregate, as being
either matenal or significant and which require additional disclosure in
arder to provide an indication of the underlying trading performance of
the group

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporung provided 1o the board and executive commuttee members who
are responsible for strategic decisions, allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments

2 Key judgemental areas adopted in prepanng these
financial statements

The group prepares its group financial statements In accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the application of which
often requires judgements to be made by management when formulating
the group's financia! positon and results Under IFRS, the directors are
required to adopt those accounting policies most appropriate to the
group’s crcumstances for the purpose of presenting fairly the group's
financial position, financial performance and cash flows

In determiring and applying accounting policies, Judgement 15 often
required tn respect of items where the choice of speaific policy, accounting
estimate or assumption to be followed could matenally affect the reported
results or net asset position of the group should it later be determined that
a different choice would have been more appropriate

Management considers the accounting estmates and assumptions
discussed below to be its key judgemental areas and, accordingly, provides
an explanation of each below Management has discussed its cntical
accounting estimates and associated disclosures with the group’s audit
committee

The discussion below should also be read in conjunction with the group’s
disclosure of IFRS accounting policies, which 15 provided in note 1
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2 Key judgemental areas adopted in preparing these
financial statements continued

Acquisitions

The purchase constderation for the acquisition of a subsidiary or business
15 allocated over the net farr value of identfiable assets, liabdies and
contingent liabilities acquired

Fair value

Determining the fair value of assets, habilites and contingent habilities
acquired requires management's judgement and often involves the use of
significant estimates and assumptions, including assumptions with respect
to future cash flows, recoverability of assets, and unprowided habilities and
commitments particularly in relation to tax and VAT

intangible assets

The group makes an assessment of the far value of intangible assets
anising on acquisitions An intangible asset will be recognised as long as
the asset 15 separable or anses from contractual or other legal nghts, and
its fair value can be measured reliably

The measurement of the farr value of intangible assets acquired requires
significant management judgement particularly in relation to the expected
future cash flows from the acguired marketing databases (which are
generally based on management’s estimate of marketing response rates),
customer relationstups, trademarks, brands, intellectual property, repeat
and well established events At September 30 2013 the net book value of
wntangible assets was £142 0 million {2012 £135 2 million})

Goodwill

Goodwill 1s imparred where the carrying value of goodwill 1s higher than
the net present value of future cash flows of those cash generating units to
which itrefates Key areas of jJudgement in calculating the net present value
are the forecast cash flows, the long-term growth rate of the applicable
businesses and the discount rate applied to those cash flows Goodwill
held on the Statement of Financial Position at September 30 2013 was
£356 6 million {2012 £333 1 milhon)

Deferred consideration

The group often pays for a portion of the equity acquired at a future
date This deferred consideration 15 contingent on the future results of the
entity acquired and apphcable payment muitipliers dependent on those
results The mital amount of the deferred consideration 1s recogrised
as a hability in the Statement of Finanaal Position At each penod end
management reassesses the amount expected to be paid and any changes
to the mnitral amount are recognised as a finance income or expense I
the Income Statement Significant management judgement 15 required
to determine the amount of deferred consideration that 15 ikely to be
paid, particularly in relation to the future profitability of the acquired
business At September 30 2013 the discounted present value of deferred
consideration was £11 6 miion (2012 £0 1 million)

Acquisition commitments

The group is party to a number of put and call options over the remaining
non-controlling interests in some of its subsidiaries 1AS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments Recogmitton and Measurement’ requires the discounted
present value of these acquisition commitments to be recognised as
a labiity on the Statement of Financial Position with a corresponding
decrease in reserves The discounts are unwound as a notional interest
charge to the Income Statement Key areas of judgement in calculating
the discounted present value of the commitments are the expected future
cash flows and earnings of the business, the penod remaining until the
option 1s exercised and the discount rate At September 30 2013 the
discounted present value of these acquistion commitments was £15 0
millon (2012 £7 9 million)

Share-based payments

The group makes long-term incentive payments to certain employees
These payments are measured at their estmated fair value at the date of
grant, calculated using an appropriate option pricing model The fair value
determined at the grant date 15 expensed on a straight-line basis over the
expected vesting peniod, based on the estimate of the number of shares
that will eventually vest The key assumptions used In calculating the fair
value of the options are the discount rate, the group’s share price volatility,
dividend yield, nsk free rate of return, and expected option lives

These assumptions are set out in note 23 Management regularly performs
a true-up of the estimate of the number of shares that are expected to
vest, which 1s dependent on the anticipated number of leavers

The directors regularly reassess the expected vesting period A plan that
vests earlier than onginally estmated results in an acceleration of the
fair value expense of the plan recognised in the Income Statement at
the time the reassessment occurs Equally, a plan that vests later than
previously estimated results in a credit to the Income Statement at the
date of reassessment

The charge for long-term incentive payments for the year ended
September 30 2013 15 £2 1 mullion {2012 £6 3 million)

Defined benefit pension scheme

The surplus or defiat in the defined benefit penston scheme that 1s
recognised through the Statement of Comprehensive Income 15 subject
to a number of assumptions and uncertainties The calculated liabilities of
the scheme are based on assumptions regarding salary increases, inflation
rates, discount rates, the long-term expected return on the scheme’s assets
and member longevity Details of the assumptions used are shown in note
26 Such assumptions are based on actuanal advice and are benchmarked
against similar penston schemes
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continued

2 Key judgemental areas adopted in preparnng these
finanaal statements continued

Taxation

The group’s tax charge on ordinary actvities 15 the sum of the total
current and deferred tax charges The calculation of the group's total
tax charge necessarily involves a degree of estmaticn and judgement in
respect of certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined
until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authorty or, as
appropriate, through a formal legal process The final resolution of some
of these items may give nse to material profit and loss and/or cash flow
variances

The group 15 a multinational group with tax affairs in many geographscal
locations This inherently leads to a higher than usual complexity to the
group’s tax structure and makes the degree of estimation and judgement
more challenging The resolution of tssues 1s not always within the control
of the group and 1t 1s often dependent on the effiaency of the legislative
processes in the relevant taxing junsdictions in which the group operates
Issues can, and often do, take many years to resolve Payments in respect
of tax liabilities for an accounting period result from payments on account
and on the final resolution of open rtems As a result, there can be
substantial differences between the tax charge in the Income Statement
and tax payments

The group has certain significant open items In several tax junsdictions
and as a result the amounts recogmised in the group financial statements
in respect of these items are derived from the group’s best estimation
and judgement, as described above However, the inherent uncertainty
regarding the outcome of these items means eventual resolution could
differ from the accounting estmates and therefore affect the group's
results and cash flows

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The recogrition of net deferred tax assets s based upon whether it 1
orobable that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be avarlable in
the future, against which the reversal of temporary differences can be
deducted Recognition, therefore, involves judgement regarding the
future financial performance of the particular legal entity or tax group In
which the deferred tax asset has been recognised

Historical differences between forecast and actual taxable profits have not
resulted in matenal adjustments to the recogrition of deferred tax assets
At Septernber 30 2013, the group had a deferred tax asset of £5 0 million
(2012 £7 3 million)

Treasury

Forward contracts

The group s exposed to forergn exchange nisk in the form of transactions in
foreign currencies entered into by group companies and by the translation
of the results of foreign subsidiaries into sterling for reporting purposes

The group does not hedge the translaton of the results of foreign
subsidianes consequently, fluctuations in the value of sterling versus
foreign currencies could materially affect the amount of these tems in the
consolidated financial statements, even If their values have not changed
in therr original currency The group does endeavour to match foreign
currency borrowings to investments in order to prowide a natural hedge
for the translation of the net assets of overseas subsidiaries

Subsidianies normally do not hedge transactions in foreign currencies into
the functional currency of their own operations However, at a group level
a series of US dollar and euro forward contracts 15 put in place up to 18
months forward partially to hedge its US dollar and euro denominated
revenues into sterling The tming and value of these forward contracts is
based on management’s estimate of its future US dollar and euro revenues
over an 18 month peniod If management maternially underestmates the
group’s future US dollar or euro revenues this would lead to too few
forward contracts being in place and the group being more exposed to
swings th US dollar and euro to stering exchange rates An overestimate
of the group’s US dollar or euro revenues would lead to associated costs
in unwinding the excess forward contracts At September 30 2013, the
faw value of the group’s forward contracts was a net asset of £1 6 million
(2012 £2 8 million)

Details of the financial instruments used are set out in note 18 to the
aceounts
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3 Segmental analysis

Segmental information 1s presented in respect of the group’s business divisions and reflects the group's management and internal reportng structure
The group I1s organised Into five business divisions Financial publishing, Business publishing, Training, Conferences and seminars, and Research and
data Fimancial pubhshing and Business publishing consist primarily of advertising and subscnption revenue The Training division consists primarily of
delegate revenue Conferences and seminars consist of both sponsorship income and delegate revenue Research and data consists of subscripton
reverwe A breakdown of the group’s revenue by type 1s set out below

Analysis of the group's three main geographical areas 15 also set out to provide additional information on the trading performance of the businesses

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates and shown in the eliminations columns below

United Kingdom  North Amenca Rest of World Elimmmations Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue
by division and source
Financial publishing 46,609 45,345 32,170 31,953 2,444 2,487 (5,576) (5,400) 75,647 74,385
Business publishing 48,621 46,027 21,137 18,924 1,766 1,879 (2,653) (2,185) 68,871 64,645
Conferences and seminars 44,717 41150 45,720 42,778 9,633 11,181 (686) (76) 99,384 95033
Training 19,565 20,492 7,355 7,584 3,397 3,317 (175) {181y 30,142 31212
Research and data 17,571 17,084 87,993 87,554 25846 25772 {90) (125) 131,320 130,285
Closed businesses - - - (28) - - - - - (28)
Foreign exchange losses on
forward contracts (660) (1,388) - — - - - -~ (660) (1,388)
Total revenue 176,423 168,710 194,375 188,765 43,086 44,636 (9,480) (7,967) 404,704 394,144
Investrment income (note 7} 3 3 2 4 228 146 - - 233 153
Total revenue and investment income 176,426 168,713 194,377 188,768 43,314 44,782 (9,180} (7.967) 404,937 394,297
United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue
by type and destination
Subscriptions 33,519 33,685 99,306 99455 73,421 66,588 206,246 199,728
Advertising 6,686 8,303 24,467 22,951 26476 27,091 57,629 58385
Sponsorship 7,537 6,605 21,741 19,833 22,085 21,160 51,363 47598
Delegates 7.138 7,085 21,313 20,833 49344 52,227 77,795 80,145
Other 2,859 2,025 6,385 4,736 3,087 2,943 12,331 9,704
Closed businesses - - - (28) - - - (28)
Foreign exchange losses on forward contracts (660) {1,388) - - - - (660) (1,388}

Total revenue

57,079

56,315 173,212

167,820 174,413

170.009

404,704 394,144

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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continued

3 Segmental analysis continued

Operating profit!

by division and source

Financial publishing

Business publishing

Conferences and seminars

Training

Research and data

Closed businesses

Unallocated corporate costs

Operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation,
long-term incentive expense and exceptional rtems

Acquired intangible amortisation? {note 11}
Long-term Incentive expense

Exceptional tems {note 5)

Operating profit before associates
Share of results in assoxates

Finance income (note 7)

Finance expense (note 7)

Profit before tax

Tax expense (note 8)

Profit after tax

United Kingdom  North America Rest of World Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
17.460 16,893 5.822 6,485 514 600 23,796 23,978
16,834 16,768 9,033 7,714 27 16 25,840 24,498
13,290 13,559 14,145 13,328 1,443 3,067 28,878 29,954
3,810 5,285 1,101 1,288 4568 449 5.379 7,022
8,619 9,177 40,263 40,403 5.919 5,805 54,801 55385
- - - (34) (14) {40) (14) (74)
(15,754) (20,789) (1,292) (1,157) {546) (642) (17.592) (22,588)
44,259 40,893 69,072 68,027 1,757 9,255 121,088 118,175
(4,608) (2,986) (10,886) (11,681) (396) (115) (15,890) {14,782)
(1,017) (1,796} (880) (3,705} (203) (800) (2,100) ({6,301}
2,812 (49) (394) (905) (186) (663) 2,232  {1,617)
41,446 36,062 56,912 51,736 6,972 7,677 105,330 95475
284 459

1,830 4,475

(12,184) (8.041)

95,260 92,368

(22,235) (22.528)

73,025 69,840

1 Operating profit before acquired intangible amorusation, ong-term incentive expense and exceptional items (refer to the appendix to the Chairman’s Statement)

2 Acquired intangible amortisation represents amortisation of acquisition related non-goodwill assets such as trademarks and brands, customer relationships and databases

(note 1)

Other segmental information
by division

Financial publishing

Bustness publshing
Conferences and serminars
Trairng

Research and data

Unallocated corporate costs

Acquired
intangible Long-term Depreciation and
amortisation incentive expense Exceptional items amortisation
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(1,672) - (238) (797) 331 18 (13) (10}
(2,507) (2,663) (298) (940) (18) - (21) (15}
(1,224) (461) (84) (1,452) (533) (94} (57) (52}
- - (493) (295) (115) - (19) (16)
(10,373) (11,537) {655) ({1,742} (213) (1,541) (1,256) (1.491)
(114) (121) {332) (1,035) (212) — (2.866) (2,163)
{15,890) (14,782} (2,100) (6301) 2,232 (1,617) (4,227) (3,747)
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3 Segmental analysis continued
United Kingdom  North America Rest of World Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets (excluding denvative financial
instruments and deferred tax assets)
by location
Goodwill 106,837 91,555 239,175 237,005 10,562 4,505 356,574 333,065
Other intangible assets 52,650 32,688 95,256 102,223 1,133 1,332 149,039 136,243
Property, plant and equipment 13,673 13,716 2,486 3,309 633 957 16,792 17,982
Investments 702 735 - - - - 702 735
Non-current assets 173,862 138,694 336,917 342,537 12,328 6,794 523,107 488,025
Caprtal expenditure by location (1.618) {431) (788) (810} (295) (424) (2,701) (1,665)

The group has taken advantage of paragraph 23 of IFRS 8 ‘Operating segments’ and does not provide segmental analysis of net assets as this

information is not used by the directors in operational decision making or menitoring of the businesses performance

4 Operating profit

2013 2012

£000 £000
Revenue 404,704 394,144
Cost of sales {104,104) (98,308)
Gross profit 300,600 295,836
Distribution costs (4,320) (4,280)
Administrative expenses (190,950) (196,081)
Operating profit before assoviates 105,330 95,475

Administrative expenses include an acquisition cost of £822,000 (2012 acquisition credit of £205,000), restructuning and other exceptional costs of

£1,395,000 (2012 £1,822,000) and a credit for negative goodwill of £4,449,000 (2012 £n) (note 5)

Notes to the Consalidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

4 Operating profit continued

2013 2012

Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) £000 £000
Staff costs (note 6) 155,862 159,305
Intangible amortisation

Acquired intangible amortisation 15,890 14,782

Licences and software 301 339
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3,926 3,408
Auditor's remuneration

Group audit 829 779

Assurance services 114 95

Non-audit 166 41
Property operating lease rentals 6,910 6,405
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 53
Acquisition costsAcredits) (note 5) 822 (205)
Restructuring and other exceptional costs (note 5) 1,395 1,822
Negative goodwill (note 5) (4,449) -
Foreign exchange (0ss 1,234 524
Audit and non-audit services relate to. 2013 2012

£000 £000

Group audit
Fees payable for the audit of the company’s annual accounts 458 447
Fees payable for other services to the group

Audrt of subsidianes pursuant to local legislation N 332
Audit services provided to all group companies 829 779
Assurance services

Interim review 114 95
Non-audit services

Taxation compliance services 126 28

QOther taxation advisory services 37 -

Other services 3 13

166 41

Total group auditor's remuneration 1,109 915

5 Exceptional items

Exceptional items are items of income or expense considered by the directors, ether indidually or if of a similar type in aggregate, as being either
material or significant and which require additional disclosure in order to provide an indicatien of the underlying trading performance of the group

2013 2012

£000 £000

Acquisition {(costs)/credit (822) 205
Restructuring and other exceptional costs {1,395) (1,822)
Negative goodwill 4,449 —

2,232 {1,617)
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5 Exceptional items continued

In 2013 the group recognised a net exceptional credit of £2,232,000 This compnsed an exceptional credit for negative goodwall offset by acquisiion
costs, restructuring and other exceptional costs The negative goodwill of £4,445,000 arose from the valuation of the Intangible assets of Quantitative
Techniques, acquired for zero consideration The acquisition costs of £822,000 are in connection with the acquisitions of TTYVanguard, tnsider Publishing,
Centre for Investor Education and Quantitative Techriques The exceptional restructuning and other charge of £1,395,000 includes restructuring costs
to integrate the business and assets of Quantitative Techmques before the completion date and other restructunng costs across the group The group’s

tax charge indludes a related tax charge of £372,000

For the year ended September 30 20112 the group recognised an exceptional expense of £1,617,000 This comprised an exceptional restructuring
charge of £1,822,000, and acquisition costs of £94,000 offset by a credit of £299,000 following the release of previously accrued costs in relation to

the acquistion of Ned Dawis Research The group’s tax charge included a related tax credit of £456,000

6 Staff costs
(1) Number of staff (iIncluding directors and temporary staff}

By business segment
Finanaal publishing
Business publishing
Conferences and seminars
Training

Research and data
Central

By geographical location
United Kingdom

North America

Rest of World

() Staff costs (iIncdluding directors and temporary staff)

Salaries, wages and incentives
So0al security costs

Pension contributions
Long-term incentive expense

Details of directors’ remuneration have been disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 49

2013 2012
Average Average
353 351

273 262

280 250

124 123

827 890
467 387
2,324 2,263
2013 2012
Average Average
895 BOG

767 751

662 106
2,324 2,263
2013 2012
£000 £000
139,866 140,203
11,392 10,436
2,504 2,365
2,100 6,301
155,862 159,305

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

7 Finance income and expense

2013 2012
£000 £000
Finance income
Interest income
Interest recevable from DMGT group undertakings - 18
Interest recewvable from short-term investments 233 153
Expected return on pension scheme assets (note 26) 1,235 1,329
Net movements in acquisition commutment values (note 24) - 2,940
Movement In acquisition deferred consideration (note 24) - 35
Fair value gains on financial instruments
Ineffectiveness of interest rate swaps and forward contracts 362 -
1,830 4,475
Finance expense
Interest expense
interest payable on comrtted borrowings (2,561) (4,728)
Interest payable on loan notes Q) {9
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (note 26} {1,302) (1,314)
Net movements In acquisition commitment values (note 24) (1,619) -
Imputed interest on acquisition commitments (note 24) {1,269) 977
Movements in acquisttion deferred consideration (note 24) (4,721) -
Interest on tax (710} (958)
Far value losses on financial instruments
Ineffectiveness of interest rate swaps and forward contracts - (55)
(12,184) (8,041)
Net finance costs (10,354} {3,566)
2013 2012
£000 £000
Reconciliation of net finance costs in Income Statement to adjusted net finance costs
Total net finance costs In Income Staternent {10,354) (3,566)
Add back
Net movements In acquisition commitment values 1,619 {2,540)
Imputed interest on acquisition commitments 1,269 977
Movements in acquisition deferred consideration 4,721 (35}
7.609 (1,998)
Adjusted net finance costs (2,745) (5,564)

The reconciliation of net finance costs in the Income Statement has been provided since the directors consider 1t necessary in order to provide an
indication of the adjusted net finance costs
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8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities
2013 2012
£000 £000
Current tax expense
UK corporation tax expense 9,732 8,229
Foreign tax expense 12,522 13,243
Adjustments in respect of prior years (540) 1,294
21,714 22,766
Deferred tax expense/{credit)
Current year 1,859 2,75¢
Adjustments in respect of prior years {1,338) (2,997)
521 {238)
Total tax expense in Income Statement 22,235 22,528
Effective tax rate 23% 24%
The adjusted effective tax rate for the year is set out below
2013 2012
£000 £000
Reconcihation of tax expense in Income Statement to adjusted tax expense
Total tax expense in Income Statement 22,235 22,528
Add back
Tax on intangible amortisation 5.592 5,146
Tax on exceptional items (372) 456
5.220 5,602
Tax on US goodwill amortisation (4,092) (6,474)
Tax adjustments in respect of pror years 1,878 1,703
3,006 831
Adjusted tax expense 25,241 23,359
Adjusted profit before tax {refer to the appendix to the Chairman’s Statement} 116,527 106,769
Adjusted effective tax rate 22% 22%

The group presents the above adjusted effective tax rate to help users of this report better understand 1ts tax charge In amwving at this rate, the group
removes the tax effect of items which are adjusted for 1n arnving at the adjusted profit disclosed in the appendix to the Chairman’s Statement However,
the current tax effect of goodwill and intangible items 1s not removed The group considers that the resulting adjusted effective tax rate 15 more
representative of 1ts tax payable position, as the deferred tax effect on the goodwill and intangible items 15 not expected to crystallise

The UK income tax expense 15 based on a blended rate of the UK statutory rates of corporation tax duning the year to September 30 2013 of 23 5%
(2012 25%) and reflects the reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 24% to 23% from Apnl 1 2013 and a further reduction to 20% by
April 1 2015 This change has resulted in a deferred tax credit of £510,000 (2012 £18,0300) ansing on the reduction in the carrying value of deferred
tax liabiities reflecting the anticipated rate of tax at which those habilities are expected to reverse

farann Arennnte
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities continued

The actual tax expense for the year 15 different fram 23 5% of profit before tax for the reasons set out in the following reconailiation

Profit before tax
Tax at 23 5% (2012 25%)
Factors affecting tax charge
Different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in overseas jurisdictions
Associate income reported net of tax
US state taxes
Goodwil! and intangibles
Disallowable expenditure
Other terns deductible for tax purposes
Tax impact of consortium relief
Deferred tax credit ansing from changes in tax laws
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Total tax expense for the year

In addition to the amount charged to the Income Statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been directly recognised in other comprehensive

ncorme and equity

Current tax
Deferred tax (note 21)

9 Dividends

Amounts recognisable as distnbutable to equity holders in period
Final dradend for the year ended September 30 2012 of 14 75p {2011 12 50p}
Interim dividend for year ended September 30 2013 of 7 00p (2012 7 00p)

Employees’ Share Ownership Trust dividend

Proposed final dividend for the year ended September 30
Employees’ Share Ownership Trust dividend

The proposed final dividend of 15 75p (2012 14 75p) 1s subject to appraval at the Annual General Meeting on January 30 2014 and has not been

2013 2012
£000 £000
95,260 52,368
22,386 23,092
2,914 3,767
(67) (115}
987 833
38 32
2,629 1,325
(3,607) (3.824)
{657} (861)
{510) (18)
{1.878) {1,703)
22,235 22,528

Other comprehensive mcome Equity

2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000
- (602} (2,058) -
197 1,329 (551) -
197 727 (2,609) -
2013 2012

£000 £000

18,342 15,162

8,827 8,643

27,169 23,805

(13) {11)

27,156 23,794

19,917 18,342

(9) 9
19,908 18,333

inchuded as a liability in these financial statements in accordance with IAS 10 ‘Events after the balance sheet date’
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10 Earnings per share

2013 2012

£000 £000

Basic earnings attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 72,623 69,672

Acquired intangible amoruisation 15,890 14,782

Exceptional items (2,232) 1,617

Imputed interest on acquisition commitments 1,269 977
Net movements in acquisition commitment values 1.619 (2,940)
Movements in acquisiion deferred consideration 4,71 (35)
Tax on the above adjustments (5.220) {5,602)

Tax on US goodwill amortisation 4,092 6,474
Tax adyustments In respect of prior years {1.878) {1,703)

Adjusted earmings 90,884 83,242

2013 2013 2012 2012

Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

earnings earnings earnings earnings

per share per share per share per share

Number Number Number Number

000's 000's 000% 000%s

Waerghted average number of shares 125,532 125,532 122,859 122,859
Shares held by the Employees' Share Ownership Trust (59) (59) {59) {59)

Weighted average number of shares 125,473 125,473 122,800 122,800

Effect of diutive share options 2,605 3,490

Diluted weighted average number of shares 128,078 126,290

Notes to the Cansalidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

10 Earnings per share continued

Basic Diluted Basic Diiuted
pence pence pence pence
per share per share per share per share
Basic earnings per share 5788 5788 56 74 56 74
Effect of dilutive share options (118) (157)
Diluted earnings per share 56 70 5517
Effect of acquired intangible amortisation 12 66 124 12 04 1170
Effect of exceptional items (178) {174) 132 128
Effect of imputed interest on acquisition commitments 101 099 080 077
Effect of net movement in acquisition commitment values 129 126 (2 39) (233)
Effect of movements in acquisition deferred consideration 376 369 (0 03) 0 03)
Effect of tax on the above adjustments {(415) (407) (457) (443)
Effect of tax on US goodwill amortisation 326 319 527 513
Effect of tax adjustments in respect of prior years {150) {147) {139} (1 35)
Adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share 7243 7096 67 79 65 91

The adjusted diluted earnings per share figure has been disclosed since the directors consider (t necessary in order to give an indication of the underlying
trading performance

All of the above earnings per share figures relate to continuing operations
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11 Goodwill and other intangibles
Acquired intangible assets
Total
acquired Intangible
Trademarks Customer intangible Licences & assets in
% brands relationships Databases assets  software development Goodwill Total
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
2013 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £0600 £000
Cost/carrying amount
At October 1 2012 139,259 77,103 9,171 225,533 2,365 625 362,267 591,290
Additions - - - - 216 6,098 - 6,314
Acquisitions (note 14) 10,261 13,118 - 23,379 - - 25,271 48,650
Disposals - - - - 41) - - (41)
Exchange differences (884) (362) {21) (1,267) {17) {33) {2,020) (3.337)
At September 30 2013 148,636 89.859 9,150 247,645 3,023 6,690 385,518 642,876
Amortsation and impairment
At October 1 2012 47,480 37,572 5,262 90,314 2,466 - 29,202 121,982
Amortisation charge 7,479 7,572 839 15,890 301 - - 16,191
Disposals - - - - (41} - - 4%}
Exchange differences (213} {323) (58} {594) (17) - (258) (869)
At September 30 2013 54,746 44,821 6,043 105,610 2,709 - 28,944 137,263
Net bock value/carrying
amount at September 30 2013 93,890 45,038 3,107 142,035 314 6,690 356,574 505,613
Acquired intangible assets
Total
acquired Intangible
Trademarks Customer intangible Licences & assets in
& brands  relatonships  Databases assets  software  development  Goodwaill Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost/carrying amount
At October 1 2011 142,324 78,683 9,440 230,447 2,761 - 366,395 599,603
Additions - - - - 194 625 - 819
Acquisitions 719 553 - 1,272 - - 5,248 6,520
Exchange differences (3.784) (2,133} {269) (6.186) (90) - (9,376)  (15,652)
At September 30 2012 139,259 77,103 9171 225,533 2,865 625 362,267 591,290
Amortisation and impairment
At October 1 2011 41,433 32,429 3,736 77,598 2,200 - 29,763 109,561
Amortisation charge 7,339 5,761 1,682 14,782 339 - - 15,121
Exchange differences (1,292) (618) {156) (2,066) (73} - (561) (2,700)
At September 30 2012 47,480 37.572 5,262 90,314 2,466 - 29,202 121,982
Net book value/carrying
amount at September 30 2012 91,779 39,531 3,909 135,219 399 625 333,065 469,308

Arann Arcnuantc
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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11 Goodwill and other intangibles continued

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, have a finite life and are amortised over their expected useful lives at the rates set out in the accounting pohicies
in note 1 of this report

The carrying amounts of acquired intangible assets and goodwill by business are as follows

Acquired intangible assets Goodwll

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000
CEIC 2,282 2,456 12,988 13,025
Internet Secunties - - 8,383 8,406
MIS - - 2,543 2,550
Petroleum Economist - - 236 236
Gulf Pubhshung - - 4,710 4,723
Hedgefund Inteligence - - 14,718 14,718
Information Management Network 2,872 3,199 29,160 29,243
MAR 35 44 185 185
BCA 56,558 62,780 142,780 143,187
Metal Bulletn publishing businesses 22,140 24,590 52,710 52,710
FOW - - 196 196
Total Denvatives 1,938 2,292 8,180 8,180
TelCap 2,210 2,319 10,448 10,448
Benchmark Financials 203 234 455 456
Structured Retall Products 2,607 2,801 4,794 4,794
NDR 30,030 33,346 35.848 35,951
Global Grain Geneva 930 1,098 4,247 4,048
TTiWanguard 2,407 - 2,844 -
Insider Publishing 9,068 - 15,280 -
Centre for Investor tducation 4,183 - 5.860 -
Quantitative Techniques 4,572 - - -
Other - - 9 9
Total 142,035 135,219 356,574 333,065

Goodwill acquired In a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, 10 the cash generating units (businesses) that are expected to benefit from
that business combmation

During the year the goodwill in respect of each of the above businesses was tested for iImpairment in accordance with IAS 36 ‘Impairment of assets’
The methodology applied to the value 1 use calculations, reflecting past experience and external sources of information, included

e forecasts by business based on pre-tax cash flows for the next four years denved from approved 2013 budgets Management believes these
budgets 1o be reasonably achievable,

® subsequent cash flows for one additional year increased in ine with growth expectations of the applicable business,

¢ the pre-tax discount rates between 9 5% and 11 1%, derived from the companies weighted average cost of capital (WACC) of 9 5%, adjusted
for nsks specific to the nature of CGUs and nsks included withun the cash flows themselves,

® long-term nominal growth rate of 0%
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11 Goodwill and other intangibles continued

Further disclosures in accordance with IAS 36 are provided where the group holds an indmadual goodwill itern relating to a CGU that s significant, which
the group cansiders 1o be 15% of the total net book value, n companson with the group’s total carrying value of goodwill The only significant item

of goodwilt iIncluded in the net book value above relates to BCA

Using the above methodclogy and a pre-tax discount rate of 9 5% the recoverable amount exceeded the total carrying value by £136 2 million For this
bustness the directors performed a sensitivity analysis on the total carrying value of the CGU For the recoverable amount to be equal to the carmping
value the discount rate would need to be increased by 9 3% or the long-term growth rate reduced by 24 8%

12 Property, plant and equipment

2013

Cost

At October 1 2012
Additions

Disposals

Acquisitions

Exchange differences
At September 30 2013
Depreciation

At October 1 2012
Charge for the year
Disposals

Exchange differences
At September 30 2013
Net book value at September 30 2013

Freehold Long-term  Short-term
land and leasehold leasehold Office
buildings premises premises equipment Total
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
6,447 3,072 15,576 19,286 44,381
- 6 1,054 1,641 2,701
- - 27 93) (120}
- - - 14 14
- 4 {20} {57) (73)
6,447 3,082 16,583 20,791 46,903
366 679 9,174 16,180 26,399
83 127 1,676 2,040 3,926
- - (27} (91) {118)
— 2 {42) (56) {96)
449 808 10,781 18,073 30,111
5,998 2,274 5,802 2,718 16,792

Notes to the Consalidated Financial Statements
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12 Property, plant and equipment continued

Freehold Long-term Short-term
land and leasehold leasehold Office
buildings premises premises equipment Total
2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At October 1 2011 6,447 3,251 15,539 19,603 44,840
Additions - 25 307 1,333 1,665
Disposals - - {49) {844} (893)
Acquisitions - (176) - (246} (422)
Exchange differences - (28) 221) {560} (809)
At September 30 2012 6,447 3,072 15,576 19,286 44,331
Depreciation
At Octaber 1 2011 283 561 8,309 15,297 24,450
Charge for the year 83 13 1,064 2,130 3,408
Disposals - - (49) (789) (838)
Exchange differences - {13} (150) (458) (621)
At September 30 2012 366 679 9,174 16,180 26,399
Net book value at September 30 2012 6,081 2,393 6,402 3,106 17,982
Net book value at September 30 2011 6,164 2,690 7,230 4,306 20,390
The directors do not consider the market value of freehold land and buildings to be significantly different from its book value
13 Investments
Investments Investments
in associated  in assocated
undertakings  undertakings
2013 2012
£000 £000
At October 1 735 -
Additions - 567
Farr value adjustment (49) -
Share of profits after tax retained 284 459
Dividends (268) (291)
At September 30 702 735

Assocated undertakings

The assoaated undertakings at September 30 2013 were Capital NET Limited, whose principal actvity 1s the prowision of electronic database services,
and GGA Pte Uimited whose principal actmty +s the provision of events for grain industry professionals in the Asia-Paafic region The group has a 48 4%
(2012 48 4%} interest in Capital NET Limited and a 50% (2012 50%) interest in GGA Pte Limited
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13 investments continued

Capital NET Limited does not have a caterrminous year end with the group The total assets, habiities, revenues and profit after tax generated by Capital
NET Limited from 1ts latest avallable audited accounts at December 31 are set out below

Dec 31 Dec 31
2012 2011
£000 £000
Total assets 749 603
Total habilities (249) {224)
Total revenues 2,032 2,035
Profit after tax 722 733
The to1al assets, habilities, revenues and profit after tax generated by GGA Pte Limited at September 30 are set out below
2013 2012
£000 £000
Total assets 219 172
Total habilities (59} (55)
Total revenues 282 327
Profit after tax 38 119

Assets available for sale

The group has a 50% nterest in Capital DATA Limited (Caprtal DATA) The ordinary share capital of Capital DATA 15 dvided into 50 'A’ shares and 50 ‘B’
shares with the group owning the 50 A’ shares Under the terms of the Articles of Association of Camital DATA, the *A” shares held by the group do not
carry entitlement to any share of dividends or other distnbution of profits of Capital DATA The group does not have the ability to exercise significant
influence nor 1 1t involved in the day-to-day running of Capital DATA As such the investment in Capital DATA 15 accounted for as an asset availlable-
for-sale with a carrying value of £nil (2012 £mil} Under a separate licence agreement the group 1s entitled to 28 2% of Capital DATA's revenues being
£5,361,000n the year (2012 £5,065,000) At December 31 2012, based on its latest avallable audited accounts, Capital DATA had £229,000 of issued
share capital and reserves (December 31 2011 £515,000), and its profit for the year then ended was £708,000 {December 31 2011 £1,026,000)

Grnun Arcnunte
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13 Investments continued

Details of the company and its principal subsidiary undertakings included in these consolidated financral staterents at September 30 2013 are as follows

Company
Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC
Direct Investments

Euramoney Institutional Investor (Jersey) Limited
Euromoney Institutional Investor {Ventures) Limited

Euromoney Canada LUmited
Euromoney Canada Finance Limited
Euromoney Jersey Limited

Fantfoot Limited

Indirect investments

Adhesion Group SA

BCA Research, Inc

BPR Benchmark Limitada

Carlcroft Limited

Centre for Investor Education (UK) Limited
Centre for Investor Education Pty Limited
CEIC Holdings Limited

Coaltrans Conferences LUimited

Ell Holdings, Inc

ENUS, Inc

Euromoney Canada Limited
Euromoney Charles Limited
Euromoney Consartium Limited
Euromoney Consortium 2 Limited
Euromoney Holdings US, Inc
Euromoney Partnership LLP
Euromaney {Singapore} Pie Limited
Euromaney Trading Limited
Euromoney Training, Inc
Euromoney, Inc

EIMN, LLC

Glenprint Limited

Global Commodities Group Sarl
GSCS Benchmarks Limited

Gulf Publishing Company, Inc
HedgeFund Intelhgence Lirnited
Insider Publishing Limited
Institutional Investor LLC

Internet Secunties, Inc

Latin Amencan Financial Publications, Inc
Metal Bulletin Holdings LLC

Metal Bulletin Limited

MIS Trairung (UK) Lirited

Ned Davis Research inc

Structured Retail Products Limited
TelCap Limited

The Petraleurm Economist Limited
Tipall Limited

Total Denvatwes Limited

TT1 Technelogies LLC

Associates

Capital NET Limited

GGA Pte Limited

All holdings are of ordinary shares In addition to the above, the group has a small number of branches outside the United Kingdom

* 1009 preference shares held in addition

Proportion

held
na

100%t
100%
57 2%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
99 7%
75%
75%
100%
99 7%
100%™
100%
42 8%
100%
99 7%
99 7%
100%
100%
100%
99 7%
100%
100%
100%
99 7%
100%
99 7%
100%
99 7%
99 7%
100%
100%
100%
100%
99 7%
100%
84 5%
98 9%
99 7%
99 7%
100%
93 7%
87 2%

48 4%
50%

t  Euromoney Institutional Investor (Jersey) Limited’s prinaipal country of operation 1s Hong Kong

Principal activity
and operation

Investment holding company

Publishing

Investment holding company
Investrment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company

Events

Research and data services
Information services
Publishing

Investment holding company
Events

Information services

Events

Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Events

Publishing, traiming and events
Training

Training and events

Events

Publishing

Events

Publishing

Publishing

Publishing

Publishing

Publishing and events
Information services
Pubhshing

Investment holding company
Publishing and events
Training and events

Research and data services
Information services
Publishing

Publishing

Property holding

Publishing

Events

Databases
Events

Country of
INcorporation

United Kingdom

Jersey
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Jersey
United Kingdom

France

Canada
Colombia
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Australia

Hong Kong
United Kingdom
us

Us

United Kingdom
Urnited Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
us

United Kingdom
Singapore
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
Switzerland
United Kingdom
us

United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
United Kingdom

us
Uruted Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Urited Kingdom
United Kingdom

us

United Kingdom
Singapore
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13 Investments continued

For the year ended September 30 2013, the following subsidiary undertakings of the group were exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 relating to the audit of indivdual accounts by virtue of section 479A of the Companies Act 2006

Company Company registration number
Euromoney Canada Limited 01974125

Euromoney Chartes Lirited 04082550

Euromoney Institutional Investor (Ventures) Limited 05885797

Euromoney Partnership LLP 0C363064

fantfoot Limited 05503274

Internet Securities Limited 02976791

14 Acquisitions

Purchase of new business

TTi Technologues, LLC (TTHVanguard)

On December 21 2012, the group acquired 87 2% of the equity of TTIVanguard, a US-based private membership erganusation for executives who lead
technology Innovatron in global orgarisations, for US$8,063,000 (£5,031,000) followed by a working capital adjustment of £91,000in June 2013 The
acquisition of TTIAVanguard 15 consistent with the group’s strategy of acquining high-quality events businesses and accelerating their growth globally

The remaining 12 8% equity holding will be acquired in two instalments of 7 4% in March 2014 based on a pre-determined multiple of the profits for
the year to December 31 2013, and 5 4% n March 2015 based on a pre-determined multiple of the profits for the year to December 31 2014 The
total discounted amount that the group expects to pay at September 30 2013 under the earn-out agreement s US3678,000 {(£418,000) calculated
using the group’s WACC

Rraun Arrnnnte

Notes to the Consalidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

14 Acquisitions continued

Purchase of new business continued

TT! Technologres, LLC (TTifVanguard) continued

The acquisition accountng 1s provisional pending final determination of the fair value of the assets and habilities acquired Dunng the year changes
have been made to the cash payable following changes in the working capital calculation and the accounting policy alignment of property, plant and
equipment Following these true-up adjustments, the related goodwill, fair value of net assets acquired and consideration are set out as follows

Provisional Provisional
fair value fair value
Fair value March 31 Sept 30
Book value adjustments 2013 Change 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Net assets
Intangible assets - 2,900 2,900 - 2,900
Property, plant and equipment 5 - 5 (5) -
Trade and other receivables 497 - 497 - 497
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,176 - 1,176 - 1,176
Trade and other payables (1.715) - (1,715) {303} (2.018)
(37) 2,900 2,863 {308} 2,555
Non-controlling interest (366) 39 (327)
Net assets acquired (87%) 2.497 (269) 2,228
Goodwill 2,534 360 2,894
Total consideration 5031 91 5,122
Consideration satisfied by’
Cash 5,031 - 5,031
Workeng capital adjustrnent - 91 91
5,031 91 5,122
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Cash consideration 5,031
Less cash and cash equivalent balances acquired {1,176)
3,855

Intangible assets represent brands of US$3, 189,000 (£1,990,000) and customer relationships of U5$1,460,000 {(£910,000), for which amortisation of
£484,000 has been charged in the year The brands and customer relationships will be amortised over their useful economic ives of up to 20 years and
ten years respectively

Goodwill anses from the anticipated profitabiity and future operating synergies from combining the acquired operations within the group Al of the
goodwill recognised 1s expected to be deductible for income tax purposes
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14 Acquisitions continued

Purchase of new business continued
TT! Technologies, LLC (TTi/Vanguard} continued
The fair value of the assets acquired includes trade receivables of LIS$763,000 {(£476,000), all of which are contracted and expected to be collectable

The non-controlling interest recognised on acquisition of £327,000 represents the proportionate share of the net assets acquired

TTWWanguard contributed £2,028,000 to the group’s revenue, £488,000 to the group's operating profit and £308,000 to the group’s profit after tax for
the period between the date of acquisition and September 30 2013 In addition, acquisition related costs of £97,000 were incurred and recognised as
an excepuional item in the Income Statement for the year ended September 30 2013 (note 5) if the above acquisition had been completed on the first
day of the financial year, TTWanguard would have contrbuted £2,739,000 to the group’s revenue for the year and £631,000 to the group’s adjusted
profit before tax for the year {exduding exceptional costs above)

Following a sensitvity analysis of the remaining interest applying reasonably possible assumptions and a 10% change in expected profits, the potential
undiscounted amount of all future payments that the group could be required to make under this earn-out arrangement 15 between £406,000 and
£497,000 The maximum amount payable for 100% of TTWWanguard s £5315,000,000 (£9,263,000}

Insider Publishing

On March 19 2013, the group acquired 100% of the equity share capital of Insider Publishing Limited, a leading information source and events provider
for the international imsurance and reinsurance markets, for an initial cash consideration of £14,148,000, followed by a working capstal adjustment of
£2,549,000 1n June 2013 The acquisition is consistent with the group’s strategy of investing in speoalist online information businesses and using Its
global reach to drive further growth

At acqussition a discounted deferred consideration of £8,342,000 was recognised In May 2013, deferred consideration of £251,000 was paid and
the remaining discounted deferred consideration of £8,091,000 was expected to be paid between March 2014 and March 2015 dependent upon the
audited results of the business for the average of the 2013 and 2014 calendar years The discounted expected payment under this mechanism increased
to £11,081,000 at September 30 2013 resutting in a charge to the Income Statement of £2,990,000 At the date of acquisition, £2,400,000 of the
expected deferred consideration was pard i advance into escrow

Notes to the Consalidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

14 Acquisitions continued

Purchase of new business continued

Insider Publishing continued

The acquisition accounting 1s provisianal pending final determination of the fair value of the assets and Liabilities acquired Dunng the year changes
have been made to the cash payable following changes in the working capital calculation, net assets acquired following the finahsation of the valuation
model and forecasts as of the date of acquisition, and deferred consideration to reflect the updated forecasts Following these true-up adjustments, the
related goodwill, fair value of net assets acquired and consideration are set out as follows

Provisional Provisional
fair value fawr value
Fair value March 31 Sept 30
Book value adjustments 2013 Change 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Net assets
Intangible assets - 9,377 9,377 1,362 10,739
Property, plant and equipment - - - 14 14
Trade and other receivables - - - 644 644
Cash and cash equivalents 3,485 - 3,485 51 3,536
Trade and other payables {(3,485) - (3,485} 566 {2,919)
Deferred tax habiities - (2,157) (2,157) (98) (2,255)
- 7,220 7,220 2,539 9,759
Net assets acquired (100%) 7,220 2,539 9,759
Goodwill 13,493 1,787 15,280
Total consideration 20,713 4,326 25,039
Consideration satisfied by
Cash 14,148 - 14,148
Working capital adjustment - 2,549 2,549
Deferred consideration 6,565 1,777 8,342
20,713 4,326 25,039
Net cash outflow anising on acquisition
Cash consideration 14,148
Less cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (3,536)
10,612

intangible assets represent brands of £3,259,000 and customer relationshups of £7,480,000, for which amortisation of £1,672,000 has been charged
in the year The brands and customer relationships will be amortised over their useful economic hives of up to 20 years and ten years respectively
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14 Acquisitions continued

Purchase of new business continued

Insider Publishing continued

Goodwill arises from the anticipated profitabifity and future operating synergees from combining the acquired operations within the group The goodwill
recognised 1s not expected to be deductible for ncome tax purposes

The fair value of the assets acquired includes trade recewables of £494,000, all of which are contracted and expected 1o be collectable

Insider Publishing contributed £3,052,000 to the group’s revenue, £1,528,000 to the group's operating profit and £1,155,000 to the group’s profit
after tax for the period between the date of acquisition and Septernber 30 2013 In addition, acquisttion related costs of £301,000 were incurred and
recognised as an exceptional item in the Income Statement for the year ended September 30 2013 (note 5) If the above acquisition had been completed
on the first day of the financial year, Insider Publishing would have contributed £5,300,000 to the group’s revenue for the year and £2,432,000 to the
group's adjusted profit before tax for the year (exduding exceptional costs above}

The discounted deferred consideration 15 based on a pre-determined multiple of the average results of the business for the penod to December 31
2013 and 2014 and s calculated using the group’s WACC Following a sensitivity analysis of the deferred consideration applying reasonably possible
assumptions and a 10% change in expected profits, the potential undiscounted amount of all future payments, induding the amount paid into escrow,
that the group could be required to make under this deferred consideration arrangement s between £9,831,000 and £15,215,000 The maxmum
amount payable for 100% of Insider Publishing 15 £31,000,000

Centre for Investor Education (CIE)

On April 18 2013, the group acquired 75% of the trade and assets of CIE, a leading Australian prowider of investment forums for senior executives of
superannuation funds and global asset management firms, for A$10,800,000 (£7,415,000) offset by a working capital adjustment receipt of £929,000
in fuly 2013 By combining CIE with the expertise and relationships of Institutional Investor's forums and memberships, the group expects to consolidate
its leading position in the global asset management events sector

A discounted deferred consideration of A$5,586,000 (£3,835,000) was expected to be paid between March 2014 and March 2015 dependent upon
the audited results of the business for the 2013 and 2014 calendar years The expected payment under this mecharusm increased to A$8,737,000
(£5,044,000) at September 30 2013 resulting 1n a charge to the Income Statement of £1,209,000 In Apnl 2013, A$3,600,000 (£2,472,000) of the
deferred consideratron was paid i advance into escrow

The remaining 25% interest in the trade and assets of CIE wll be acquired in two equal instalments based on the profits for the calendar years to
2014 and 2015 The total discounted amount that the group expects to pay at September 30 2013 under this earn-out agreement s A$7,315,000
(£4,224,000)

Notes to the Consolidated Financal Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

14 Acquisitions continued

Purchase of new busmess continued
Centre for Investor Education (CIE) continued
The acquisition accounting 1s set out below and 15 provisional pending final determination of the fair value of the assets and habiles acguired

Fair value Provisional

Book value adjustments fair value
£000 £000 £000
Net assets’
Goodwill 1,727 {1,727) -
Intangible assets - 5,168 5,168
Property, plant and equipment 10 (10) -
Trade and cther recevables 598 - 598
Cash and cash equivalents 9111 - 911
Trade and other payables (2,566) - (2,566)
Deferred tax habilities - 188 188
680 3,619 4,299
Non-controlling interest (1,075)
Net assets acquired {75%) 3,224
Goodwill 7.097
Total consideration 10,321
Consideration satisfied by
Cash 7.415
Working capital adjustment (929)
Deferred consideration 3,835
10,321
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 7.415
Less cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (911)
6,504

Intangible assets represent brands of A$5,548,000 (£3,809,000) and customer relationships of A$1,980,000 (£1,359,000), for which amortisation of
£178,000 has been charged in the year The brands and customer relationships will be amortised over thesr useful economic lives of up to 15 years and
ten years respectively

Goodwaill arises from the antiaipated profitabihity and future operating synergies from combining the acquired operations within the group The goodwill
recognised Is not expected to be deductible for tncome tax purposes

The farr value of the assets acquired iIncludes trade recevables of A$804,000 (£552,000), all of which are contracted and expected to be collectable
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14 Acquisitions continued

Purchase of new bustness continued
Centre for Investor Education (CIE) continued
The non-controlling interest recognised on acquisition of £1,075,000 represents the proportionate share of the net assets acquired

CIE contributed £1,119,000 to the group’s revenue, £575,000 to the group's operating profit and £454,000 to the group’s profit after tax for the peniod
between date of acquisition and September 30 2013 In addition, acquisition related costs of £157,000 were incurred and recognised as an exceptonal
item in the Income Statement for the year ended September 30 2013 (note 5} If the above acquisition had been completed on the first day of the
financial year, CIE would have contributed £2,685,000 to the group’s revenue for the year and £1,275,000 to the group’s adjusted profit before tax for
the year (excluding exceptional costs above)

The discounted deferred consideration 1s based on a pre-determined multiple of the results of the business for the penied to December 31 2013 and
15 calculated using the group’s WACC Following a sensitiwty analysis for the fair value of the deferred consideration applying reasonably possible
assumptions and a 10% change In expected profits, the potential undiscounted amount of all future payments, including the amount paid Into escrow,
that the group could be required to make under this deferred consideration arrangement 15 between £4,156,000 and £6,466,000

Foliowing a sensitvity analysis of the remaining interest applying reasenably possible assumptions and 4 10% change in expected profits, the potential
undiscounted amount of all future payments that the group could be required to make under this earn-out arrangement 1s between £4,486,000 and
£5,483,000 The maxirmum amount payable for 100% of CIE 15 A$30,000,000 (£17,322,000}

Quantitative Techmques (QT)

On Apnl 3 2013, the group signed a binding agreement with HSBC to acquire its QT operation for £1 QT 1s the benchmark and calculation agent
business of HSBC Bank plc and creates and maintains more than 100 equity and bond indices for HSBC's Global Markets division as well as over 60
external clients Completion of the sale took place on September 30 2013 after a transition phase HSBC has agreed to purchase index calculation
services from QT for a mnimum penod of three years from the date of completion The group believes the acquisition creates an opportunity to
establish a significant footprint in the index compilation market The business has been rebranded Euromoney indices

The acquisition accounting Js set out below and is provisional pending final determination of the fair value of the assets and abilites acquired

Fair value Provisional

Book value adjustments fair value
£000 £000 £000
Net assets
Intangible assets - 4,572 4,572
Trade and other receivables 447 - 447
Trade and other payables {554) {16) {570)
(107} 4,556 4,449
Net assets acquired (100%) 4,449
Negative goodwill {4,449)

Total consideration -

Intangible assets represent trademarks of £1,203,000 and customer refationships of £3,369,000, for which no amortisation has been charged in the
year The trademarks and customer relationships will be amortised over their useful economic lives of up to 20 years and ten years respectively

Notes to the Cansolidated Financal Statements
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14 Acquisitions continued

Purchase of new bustness continued

Quantitative Techrmques (QT) continued

Negative gocdwill arose from the valuation of intangible assets acquired for zero consideration The negatve goodwill 1s credited to the Income
Staterment within exceptronal items {note 5) and Is expected to be taxable for income tax purposes

As the acquisition of QT was completed on the last day of the financial year 1t did not contnbute to the group’s revenue or profit Acquisition related
costs of £215,000 and restructuring costs of £581,000 were incurred and recognised as an exceptional item in the Income Statement for the year
ended September 30 2013 (note 5) Due to the nature of the operation acquired 1t Is not possible to provide the contnbution to the group’s revenue
and adjusted profit before tax

Increase in equity holdings

Internet Securities, Inc (IS1)

The group held a call option to enable it to purchase the remaining non-controlling interest in 151 and this was exercised in January 2013 The option
value was based on the valuation of ISl as determined under a methodology provided by an independent finanaal adwser Under the terms of the
option agreement consideration caps had been put 1n place that required the maximum consideration payable to option holders to be capped at an
amount such that the results of any relevant class tests would, at the relevant time, fall below the requirement for shareholder approval In March 2013,
under this call option mechanism, the group purchased the remaining 0 08% of the equity share capital of 15! for a cash consideration of US$102,000
{£67,000), increasing the group's equity shareholding in 151 to 100%

Structured Retail Products Limited (SRP)

in Apnil 2013, the group purchased 0 76% of the equity share capital of SRP from some its employees for a cash consideration of £86,000, representing
the farr value of 0 76% of assets at date of acquisition, increasing the group’s equity shareholding in SRP to 98 94%

15 Trade and other receivables

2013 2012
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year

Trade recevables 59,712 54,146
Less provision for impairment of trade receivables (5,846) (6,471)
Trade receivables — net of provision 53,866 47,675
Amounts owed by DMGT group undertakings 47 2,344
Other debtors 7,436 5,560
Prepayments 12,153 6,904
Accrued income 5,743 3,469
79,245 65,952

The average credit period on sales of goods and services 1s 30 days Trade recevables beyond 60 days overdue are provided for based on estimated
irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods and services, determined by reference to past default experience

Credit terms for customers are determined 1n indwidual terntories Concentration of credit nsk with respect to trade recevables 1s hmited due to the
group’s customer base being large and diverse Due to this, management believes there 1s no further credit nsk provision required in excess of the

normal provision for doubtful receivables There are no customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of trade recewvables

As at September 30 2013, trade recewvables of £32,019,000 (2012 £24,263,000) were not yet due
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15 Trade and other receivables continued

As of September 30 2013, trade recevables of £20,879,000 (2012 £15,469,000) were past due for which the group has not prowvided as there has
been no significant change In therr credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable These relate to a number of independent customers
for whom there 15 no recent history of default The average age of these receivables 1s 73 days (2012 77 days) The group does not hold any collateral
over these balances The ageing of these trade recewvables is as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000

Past due less than a month 10,579 7.156
Past due more than a month but less than two months 4,666 3,348
Past due more than two months but tess than three months 2,395 1,985
Past due more than three months 3.239 2,980
20,879 15,469

As at Septernber 30 2013, trade recevables of £6,814,000 (2012 £14,414,000) were impaired and partially provided for The amount of the provisian
was £5,846,000 (2012 £6,471,000) It was assessed that a portion of the recevables 1s expected to be recovered The ageing of these recevables s
as follows

2043 2012

£000 £000
Past due less than a manth 1,525 7,713
Past due more than a month but less than two months 1.276 2,857
Past due more than two months but less than three months 682 1,123
Past due more than three months 3,331 2,721

6,814 14,414
Movements on the group provision for iImpairment of trade receivables are as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000
At October 1 (6,471} (7,697)
Impairment losses recogrised (2,987) (3,271)
Impairment losses reversed 2,842 3,266
Amounts wrtten off as uncollectable 750 1,153
Exchange differences 14 78
At September 30 (5.846) (6,471)

In determining the recaverability of a trade recewvable, the group considers any change n the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date
credit was intially granted up to the reporting date The concentration of credit nsk 1s hmited due to the customer base being large and unrelated
Accordingly, the directors believe that there 15 no further credit nsk provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts

The allowance for doubtful debts does not include individually impaired trade receivables which have been placed under hquidation as these trade
recelvables are written off directly to the Income Statement

Prepayments at September 30 2013 includes deferred consideration of £4,479,000 paid n advance into escrow following the acquisttions of Insider
Publishing (£2,400,000) and CIE (A$3,600,000 (£2,079,000)} {note 14)

GLrann Arrannte
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16 Trade and other payables

2013 2012
£000 £000
Trade creditors 4,046 4,170
Amounts owed to DMGT group undertakings 44 3
Other creditors 22,751 23,450
26,841 27,623
The directors consider the carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate thewr fair values
17 Deferred income
2013 2012
£000 £000
Deferred subscnption income 90,401 81,020
Other deferred income 26,895 24,086
117,296 105,106
18 Finanaal instruments and risk management
2013 2012
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabiities
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current
Interest rate swaps — fair value through profit and loss - - - (156)
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedge - - - (283)
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedge 1,736 {909) 2,715 (217)
1.736 {909) 2,715 (656)
Non-current
Interest rate swaps - fair value through profit and loss - - - (206)
Forward foreign exchange contracts — cash flow hedge 746 - 296 {35)
746 - 296 (241)
2,482 {909) 3,011 {897)

Financial sk management objectives

The group’s activities expose 1t to a vanety of financial nsks market nsk (including currency nisk, fair value interest rate nsk, cash flow interest rate nisk
and price nisk), credit risk and hquidity nsk ansing in the normal course of business Dervative financial instruments are used to manage exposures to
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates but are not employed for speculative purposes

Full details of the chjectives, policies and strategies pursued by the group In relation to financial nisk management are set out on pages 88 to 91 of
the accounting polictes and pages 92 to 94 of the key judgementat areas In summary, the group’s tax and treasury committee normally meets twice a
year and is respansible for recommending policy to the board The group's treasury policies are directed to giving greater certainty of future costs and
revenues and ensuring that the group has adequate lquidhty for working capital and debt capacity for funding acquisitions
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The treasury department does not act as a profit centre, nor does It undertake any speculative trading actwity and 1t operates within policies and
procedures approved by the board

Interest rate swaps are used to manage the group’s exposure 1o fluctuations in interest rates on its floating rate borrowings Further details are set out
in the Interest rate nsk section on page 124

Forward contracts are used to manage the group's exposure to fluctuations In exchange rate movements Further detalls are set out In the foreign
exchange rate risk section on page 122

Capital nsk management
The group manages Its capital to ensure that entities in the group will be able to continue as a going concern while maxmising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debit and equity balance The group's overall strategy remains unchanged from 2012

The capital structure of the group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed i note 19, cash and cash equivalents and equity attnbutable
to equity holders of the parent, compnsing share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in

Equity

Net debt to EBITDA* ratio

The group’s tax and treasury committee reviews the group’s capital structure at least twice a year As part of the debt covenants under the loan facility
provided by Daily Max! and General Trust plc {DMGT), the board has to ensure that net debt to a rolling 12 month EBITDA* does not exceed four times
The group expects 10 be able to remain within these imits during the Iife of the faciity The net debt to EBITDA covenant is defined to allow the rate
used in the translatton of US dollar EBITDA, including hedging contracts, 1o be used also in the calculation of net debt, thereby removing any distortion
to the covenant from increases in net debt due to short-term movements in the US dollar

The group’s loan faclity with DMGT was due to mature on December 31 2013 Subsequent to the year end, the group has signed a US$160 million
multi-currency replacement facility with DMGT that provides access to funds, should the group require it dunng the period to April 2016 The new

facihty requires the group’s net debt to EBITDA to be ne more than three times

The net debt to EBITDA* ratio at September 30 is as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000
Commutted loan facility (at weighted average exchange rate) (20,858} (43,127)
Loan notes (1.028) (1,228)
Total debt (21,886) (44,355)
Cash and cash equivalents 11,268 13,544
Net debt (10,618) {30,811}
EBITDA* 123,499 116,080
Net debt to EBITDA* ratio 009 027

* EBITDA {farnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amertisation} = adjusted operating profit before depreciation and amortisation of icences and software, adjusted for
the timing impact of acquisitions and disposals

Graun Arenantc
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18 Financial instruments and risk management continued
Categories of financial instruments
The group’s financial assets and liabilities at September 30 are as follows

2013 2012
£000 £000
Financial assets
Derwvative instruments in designated hedge accounting relationships 2,482 3,01
Prepaid deferred consideration (note 24) 4,479 -
Loans and recewvables (including cash and cash equivalents) 78,360 72,592
85,321 75,603
Finanaal habilitres
Dervative instruments — fair value through profit and loss - (362)
Denvative instruments In designated hedge accounting relationships {909) {535)
Acquisition commitments {note 24) (15,037) {7,868)
Deferred consideration (note 24} (16,125) 7N
Loans and payables (including overdrafts) (103,862) {140,284)

(135,933) {149,126}

The fair value of the financial assets and habilities above are classified as level 2 in the fair value hierarchy other than acquisition commitments and
deferred consideration which are classified as level 3 (page 129)

1} Market price rnisk

Market price nsk 1s the possibility that changes in currency exchange rates, interest rates or commodity prices will adversely affect the value of the
group’s finanoal assets, habilities or expected future cash flows The group’s pnmary market nisks are intevest rate fluctuations and exchange rate
movemnents Dernvatives are used to hedge or reduce the risks of interest rate and exchange rate movements and are not entered into unless such nsks
exist Derivatives used by the group for hedging a parucular nsk are not specialised and are generally avallable from numerous sources The farr values
of Interest rate swaps and forward exchange contracts are set outin this note and represent the value for which an asset could be sold or liability settled
between knowledgeable willing parties In an arm’s length transaction calculated using the market rates of interest and exchange at September 30 2013
The group has no other materal market price nisks

Market nisk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis
There has been no change to the group's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks during the year

u} Foreign exchange rate nsk

The group’s principal foreign exchange exposure 1s to US dollar The group generates approximately two-thirds of its revenues in US dollars, including
approxamately 30% of the revenues in its UK-based businesses, and approximately 60% of 1ts operating profits are US doftar-denominated The group
15 therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk on the US dollar revenues in its UK businesses, the translation of results of foreign subsidianies and
external loans as well as loans to foreign operations within the group where the denomination of the loan 1s not in the functional currency of the
lender/borrower
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The carrying amounts of the group’s US dollar-denominated monetary assets and monetary habilities at the reporting date are as follows
Assets Liabilitres
2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £600
US dollar 55,767 58,770 {8,702) (5.956)

Subsichiaries normally do not hedge transactions in foreign currencies inta the functional currency of their own operations However, at a group level,
a senes of US dallar and euro forward contracts are put in place to sell forward surplus US dollars and euros so as to hedge 80% of the group’s UK
based US dolfar and euro revenues for the coming 12 months and 50% of the group’s UK based US dollar and euro revenues for the subsequent six
months The yiming and value of these forward contracts is based on management's estimate of 1ts future US dollar and euro revenues over an 18 month
period and 15 regularly reviewed and revised with any changes in estimates resulting in either additional forward contracts being taken out or existing
contracts' maturity dates being moved forward or back If management matenially underestimates the group’s future US dollar and euro denominated
revenues, this would lead to too few forward contracts being in place and the group being more exposed to swings in US dollar and euro to sterling
exchange rates An overestimate of the group’s US dollar and euro denominated revenues would lead to associated costs in unwinding the excess
forward contracts The group also has a significant operation In Canada whose revenues are mainly in US dallars At a group level a series of US dollar
forward contracts 1s put in place up to 18 months forward to hedge the operation’s Canadian cost base In addition, each subsidiary 1s encouraged to
invoice safes In its local functional currency where possible Forward exchange contracts are gross settled at matunty

The following table details the group’s sensitivity to a 10% Increase and decrease In sterling against US dollar A 10% sensitivity has been determined
by the board as the sensitity rate appropriate when reporting an estimated foreign currency risk internally and represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates at the reporting date

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denorinated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the peniod end for a
10% change n foreign currency rates The sensitvity analysis includes external loans as well as loans to foreign operations within the group where
the denomination of the loan 1s not in the functional currency of the lender/borrower Where sterling strengthens 10% aganst the relevant currency
a positive number below Indicates an increase in profit and equity For a 10% weakening of sterling against the relevant currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit and other equity, and the balances below would be negative

Impact of 10% strengthening of sterling agamst US dollar

2013 2012

£000 £000
Change in prefit for the year in income statement (US$ net assets in UK companies) (542) {646)
Change in equity {derwative finanaial instruments) 6,417 6,606
Change in equity {external loans and loans to foreign operations) 3,134 4,105

The decrease In the toss from the sensitivity analysis 1s due to a decrease in the working capital asset postion The fall in equity from £6,606,000 to
£6.417,000 from the sensitivity analysis 15 due to the decrease of the value of the dervative financial assets

Geann Arrannte
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The group 1s also exposed to the translation of the results of its US dollar-denorminated businesses, although the group does not hedge the translation
of these results Consequently, fluctuatons in the value of sterling versus other currencies could matenally affect the translation of these results in the
consclidated financtal statements The group endeavours to match foreign currency borrowings to investments in order to provide a natural hedge for
the translation of the net assets of overseas subsidiartes with the related foreign currency interest cost ansing from these borrowings providing a partial
hedge against the translaton of foreign currency profits

The change in equity from a 10% change in sterling agatnst US dollars in relation to the translation of external loans and leans to foreign operations
within the group where the denamination of the loan 1s not in the functional currency of the lender/borrower would result in a change of £3,134,000
(2012 £4,105,000) However, the change n equity 1s completely offset by the change in value of the foreign operation’s net assets from ther
translation into sterling

Forward foreign exchange contracts

It 15 the policy of the group to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover speafic foreign currency payments and receipts A senes of US
dollar and euro forward contracts are put in place to sell forward surplus US dollars and euros so as to hedge 80% of the group’s UK based US dollar
and euro revenues for the coming 12 months and 50% of the group’s UK based US dollar and euro revenues for the subsequent six months In addition,
at a group level a senies of US dollar forward contracts 1s put 1n place up to 18 months forward to hedge a subsidiary’s Canadian cost base

Average exchange rate Foreign currency Contract value Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Us$000 Uss000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash Flow Hedges
Sell USD buy GBP
Less than a year 1572 1589 70,575 71,875 44,902 45,236 1,223 694
Moere than a year but less
than two years 1543 1 581 19,300 17,225 12,509 10,892 519 206
Sell USD buy CAD!
Less than a year 1018 1001 18,682 20,976 11.420 13,219 {164) 176
More than a year but less
than two years 1050 1on 5.750 6,307 3,628 4,015 35 64
€000 €000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Sell EUR buy GBP
Less than a year 1203 1183 36,000 34,630 29,923 29,286 {232) 1,628
More than a year but less
than two years 1166 1248 10,850 9,950 9,305 7,971 192 (9}

+ Rate used for conversion from CAD to GBP is 1 6646 (2012 1 5889)

As at September 30 2013, the aggregate amount of unrealised gains under forward foreign exchange coniracts deferred in the fair value reserve
relating to future revenue transactions 1s £1,573,000 (2012 gains £2,759,000) It 1s anticipated that the transactions will take place over the next 18
months at which stage the amount deferred in equity will be released to the income Statement As at September 30 2013, there were no ineffective
cash flow hedges in place at the year end (2012 £ni))

uy Interest rate risk

The group’s borrowings are in both sterling and US dollars with the related interest tied to LIBOR This results in the group’s interest charge being at risk
to fluctuations in Interest rates 1t is the group's policy to hedge approximately 80% of 1ts interest exposure, converting its floating rate debt nto fixed
debt by means of interest rate swaps The matunty dates are spread In order to avoid interest rate basis risk and also to negate short-term changes in
interest rates The predictability of interest costs 1s deemad to be more important than the possible opporturuty cost forgone of achieving lower interest
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rates and this hedging strategy has the effect of spreading the group’s exposure to fluctuations ansing from changes in interest rates and hence protects
the group's interest charge against sudden increases in rates but also prevents the group from benefiting immediately from falis in rates

As at September 30 2013, due to the low level of debt there were no interest rate swaps outstanding
The group’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and finanoal habilities are detailed in the iquidity nisk section on page 126

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both denvative and non-derivative instruments at the
balance sheet date For floating rate habilities, the analysis 1s prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year A 100 basis point increase or decrease 15 used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents the directors’ assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates at the reporting date

If interest rates had been 100 basis ponts lugher or lower and all other variables were held constant

#&  The groupS profit for the year ended September 30 2013 would decrease or increase by £272,000 (2012 £338,000) This 1s mainly attnbutable
to the group's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings, and
#®  Other equity reserves would decrease or increase by £nil (2012 £561,000) mainly as a result of the changes in the fair value of interest rate swaps

Interest rate swap contracts

Under interest rate swap contracts, the group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts calculated on agreed
notional principal ameounts Such contracts enable the group to mitigate the nsk of changing interest rates on the fair value of issued fixed rate debt
and the cash flow exposures on the issued vanable rate debt The fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date 1s determined by discounting
the future cash flows using the yreld curves at the reporting date and the credit nsk inherent in the contract, and Is disclosed below

The following table details the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swap contracts outstanding as at the reporting date for
the previous year The average interest rate 15 based on the outstanding balances at the end of the financial year

Cash flow hedges Average contracted Notional principal
US dollar Receave floating pay fixed fixed interest rate amount Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
% % £000 £000 £000 £000
Less than 1 year - 325 - 18,578 - (389)
110 2 years - 252 - 6,193 - {206)
GBP Receive floating pay fixed
Average contracted Notienal principal
fixed interest rate amount Fair value
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
% % £000 £000 £000 £000
Less than 1 year - 257 - 5,000 - (50}

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Interest rate swap contracts continued

The interest rate swaps settle on a quarterly basis The floating rate on the interest rate swaps 1s LIBOR The group will settie the difference between the
fixed and floating Interest rate on a net basis All interest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate interest amounts for fixed rate interest amounts
are designated as cash flow hedges in order to reduce the group’s cash flow exposure resulting from vanable interest rates on borrowings The interest
rate swaps and the interest payments on the loan occur simultanecusly and the amount deferred in equity 1s recogrused in the Income Statement over
the penod that the floating rate interest payments on debt impact the Income Statement

As at September 30 2013, the aggregate amount of unreahsed interest under swap contracts deferred In the fair value reserve relating to future interest
payable was £ril (2012 £283,000)

As at September 30 2013, the aggregate amount of unreahsed interest recogrused in the Income Statement under ineffective swaps still in place at the
year end was £nil (2012 £362,000)

) Credit risk

Credit nsk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the group The group seeks to
limit interest rate and foreign currency nsks described above by the use of financal instruments and as a result have a credit nsk from the potential
non-performance by the counterparties to these financial instruments, which are unsecured The amount of this credit risk s normally restncted
to the amounts of any hedge gain and not the principal amount being hedged The group also has a credit exposure to counterparties for the full
principal amount of cash and cash equivalents Credit risks are controlled by monitoring the amounts outstanding with, and the credit quality of, these
counterparties For the group’s cash and cash equivalents these are principally licensed commerctal banks and investment banks with strong long-term
credit ratings, and for denivative financial instruments with DMGT who have treasury policies in place which do not allow concentrations of nisk with
individual counterparties and do not allow significant treasury exposures with counterparties which are rated lower than AA

The group also has credit nsk with respect to trade and other recewvables, prepayments and accrued income The concentration of credst nisk from trade
receivables is imited due to the group’s large and broad customer base Trade recevable exposures are managed docally in the business units where they
arise Allowance 1s made for bad and doubtful debts based on management’s assessment of the risk of non-payment taking intc account the ageing
profile, expenence and arcumstance

The maximum exposure to credit nsk 15 represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset, including denvative financial instruments, recorded
in the Statement of Financial Position The group does not have any significant credit sk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics The group defines counterparties as having similar charactenistics if they are related entities Concentration
of credit nisk did not exceed 5% of gross monetary assets at any time during the year

v) Liguidity nsk
The group has significant intercompany borrowings and is an approved borrower under a DMGT US$300 milion dedicated muiti-currency facility The
faality is divided into US doliar and sterling funds and was due to mature in December 2013 The total maximum borrowing capacity is as follows

US Dollar US$250 millon
Sterling £33 millkon

The facility requires the group to meet certain covenants based on net debt and profits adjusted for certain non-cash items and the impact of foreign
exchange Falure to do so would result in the group being 1n breach of the facility potentially resulting 1 the facility being withdrawn or impediment
of management decision making by the lender Management regularly monitors the covenants and prepares detalled cash flow forecasts to ensure
that sufficient headroom Is avallable and that the covenants are not close or potentially close to breach At September 30 2013, the group’s net debt
to adjusted EBITDA was 0 09 times
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The group's strategy Is to use excess operating cash 1o pay down 1ts debt The group generally has an annual cash conversion rate {the percentage by
which cash generated by operations covers operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation, long-term incentive expense and exceptional iterms})
of aver 100%, due to much of its subscription, conference and training revenue being paid in advance However, this year the group's cash corversion
rate was 88% compared to 103% last year, due to cash payments in 2013 in respect of the vesting of the first tranche of options under the CAP (£9 5
mullion) and profit shares for the company's former chairman who died in October 2012, both of which were expensed in financial year 2012 or earher

Under the DMGT facility, at September 30 2013, the group had £165 9 miliion of undrawn but committed facilities available There is a nsk that the
undrawn portion of the facility, or that the additonal funding, may be unavailable or withdrawn if DMGT expenence funding difficulties themselves
However, If DMGT were unable to fulfil its funding commitment to the group, the directors are confident that the group would be in a position to secure
adequate external facilities, although probably at a higher cost of funding The group has agreed terms with DMGT that provide it with US$160 million
of additional funding during the perod to April 2016

This table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual cash flows of the financial habilities incuding both interest and principal cash
flows To the extent that the interest rates are floating, the undiscounted amount I1s denved from interest rate curves at September 30 2013 The
contractual matunty 15 based on the earhest date on which the group may be required to settle

Weighted
average
effective Less than
interest rate 1 year 1-3 years Total
2013 % £000 £000 £000
Variable rate borrowings 356 21,205 - 21,205
Acquisttion commitments - 539 14,498 15,037
Deferred consideration - 7,040 9,085 16,125
Non-interest bearing habilities (trade and other payables, and accruals) - 82,657 - 82,657
Weighted
average
effective Less than
interest rate 1 year 1-3 years Total
2012 % £000 £000 £000
Variable rate borrowings 249 1,228 43,154 44,382
Acquistion commitments - 4273 3,595 7,868
Deferred consideration - 77 - 77
Non-interest bearing liabilities (trade and other payables, and accruals} = 89,561 6,341 95,902

At September 30 2013, £20,177,000 {2012 £38,631,000) of borrowings were designated in US dollars with the remainder in sterling The average rate
of interest paid on the debt was 5 68% (2012 4 82%)

Rranon Arenninte
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18 Finanaal instruments and risk management continued

The following table details the group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-denvative finanaial assets, mainly short-term deposits for amounts on
loans owed by DMGT group undertakings and equity nen-controlling interests Thss table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual
maturities of the finangal assets including interest that wall be earned on those assets except where the group anticipates that the cash flow will occur
in a different peniod

Weighted
average
effective Less than
Interest rate 1 year Total
2013 % £000 £000
Variable interest rate instruments (cash at bank) 127 41,268 11,268
Prepaid deferred consideration - 4,479 4,479
Non-interest beanng assets (trade and other recevables excluding prepayments) - 67,092 67,092
82,839 82,839
Woeighted
average
effective Less than
interest rate 1 year Total
2012 % £000 £000
Variable interest rate instruments {(cash at bank and short-term deposits) 086 13,544 13,544
Non-interest bearing assets (trade and other recewvables excluding prepayments) - 59,048 59,048
72,592 72,592

The following table details the group’s iquidity analyss for its dervative financial instruments The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
net cash inflows and (outflows} on the dervative instrument that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted gross inflows and (outflows) on those
dervatives that require gross settlement When the amount payable or receivable Is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference
to the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yteld curves existing at the reporting date

Less than 1-3 3 months
1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years Total
2013 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Net settled
Interest rate swaps - - - - -
Gross settled
Foreign exchange forward contracts inflows 7,033 14,668 64,544 25,442 111,687
Foreign exchange forward contracts outflows (7,073) (14.712) {63.424) (24,538) {109,748)
{41) (44) 1,120 904 1,939
Less than 1-3 3 months
1 month months to 1year 1-5 years Total
2012 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Net settled
Interest rate swaps - (196} (375) (66) {637)
Gross settled
Foreign exchange forward contracts inflows 7,358 13,163 67,221 22,877 110,619
fForeign exchange forward contracts outflows (7,063) (12,769) {65.258) (22,500} (107,590)

295 198 1,588 311 2,392
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Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of finanoal assets and financial habilities are determined as follows

Level 1
e The far value of financial assets and financial habilities wath standard terms and conditions and traded on active hquid markets 15 determined with
reference to quoted market prices

Level 2

& The far value of other financial assets and financial hablities {excluding derivative struments) 1s determined in accordance wath generafly
accepted priang models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for
similar instruments,

e Foreign currency forward contracts are measured using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves derived from quoted interest rates
matching maturities of the contracts, and

e [nterest rate swaps are measured at the present value of future cash flows estimated and discounted based on the applicable yield curves derived
from quoted interest rates

Lavel 3
®  |f one or more significant inputs are not based on observable market date, the instrument is included in level 3

As at September 30 2013 and the prior year, all the resulting far value estmates have been included 1n level 2 other than the group’s acquisition
commitments which are classified as level 3

Other financial instruments not recorded at fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial labilities recorded at amortsed cost in the financiat statements
approximate therr fair values Such financial assets and financial habilibes include cash and cash equivalents, recevables, prepayments, accrued income,
payables and loans

19 Bank overdrafts and loans

2013 2012

£000 £00C

Loan notes — current habitity 1,028 1,228
Committed loan facility — current liability 20,177 -
Commutted loan facility — non-current lability - 43,154
20,177 43,154

Loan notes

toan notes were 1ssued in October and November 2006 to fund the purchase of Metal Bulletin plc Interest 1s payable on these foan notes at a vanable
rate of 0 75% below LIBOR, payable in June and December Loan notes can be redeemed at the option of the loan note holder twice a year on the
Interest payment dates above At least 20 business days’ wnitten notice prior to the redemption date 1s required Dunng the year ended September 30
2013 £193,000 (2012 £386,000) of these loan notes were redeemed

Grann ArcAnnte
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19 Bank overdrafts and loans continued

Commutted loan faahty

The group’s debt is prowided through a dedicated US$300 million multi-currency borrowing facility from Daily Mail and General Trust ple (DMGT) The
total maximum borrowing capacity 1s US$250 milhon (£154 million) and £33 million Interest 15 payable on this facility at a vanable rate of between
1 4% and 3 0% above LIBOR dependent on the ratio of adjusted net debt to EBITDA The faclity’s covenant requires the group’s net debt to be no
more than four times adjusted EBITDA on a rolling 12 month basis Failure to do so would result in the group being i breach of the facility, potentially
resulting In the faciity betng withdrawn or iImpediment of management decision making by the lender Management reqularly monitors the covenant
and prepares detaled debt forecasts to ensure that sufficient headroom is avafable and that the covenants are not close or potentially close to breach

At September 30 2013, the group’s net debt to adjusted EBITDA was 0 02 times

Under the DMGT facility, at September 30 2013, the group had £165 9 million of unadrawn but committed faaliies available Subsequent to the year
end, the group has signed a U$$160 milion multi-currency replacement funding facility with DMGT that provides access 1o funds, duning the period to
Aprl 2016 The new facility requires the group's net debt to EBITDA to be no more than three tmes

There 15 a nsk that the undrawn portion of the facility, or that the addional funding, may be unavailable or wathdrawn if DMGT experience funding

difficulties themselves However, If DMGT were unable to fulfil its funding commitment to the group, the directars are confident that the group would
be 1n a position to secure adequate external facilities, although probably at a higher cost of funding

20 Provisions

Onerous

lease Other Group

provision provistons total

£000 £000 £000

At October 1 2012 2,784 4,171 6,955
Prowiston 1n the year 224 2,088 2,312
Used in the year (1,376) (1,722} (3.098)
Exchange differences a1 - 41
At September 30 2013 1,673 4,537 6,210

Maturity profile of provisions

2013 2012

£000 £000

Within one year (induded in current habifities) 3,974 2,037
Between one and two years (included in non-current habilities) 417 2,469
Between two and five years (included in non-current habilities} 1,819 2,449
6,210 6,955

Onerous lease provision
The onerous lease provision relates to certain buildings within the property portfolio which either at acquisition were rented at non-market rates, or are
no lenger occupied by the group

Other provistons
The provision consists of social secunty ansing on share option liabilities and dilapidations on leasehold properties
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The net deferred tax liability at September 30 2013 comprised
Other
Income comprehensive Acquisitions Exchange
2012 statement ncome Equity  and disposals differences 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Capitalised goodwill and
intangbles (28,348) 659 - (36) (2,067) 43 (29,749)
Tax losses 1.367 2,289 - - - 62) 3,594
Finanaial Instruments (a41) - 90 - - - (351)
Other short-term temporary
differences 17,791 (3.469) (287) 587 - 61 14,683
Deferred tax (9,631) (521) (197) 551 (2,067) 42 {11,823)
Comprising
Deferred tax assets 7.344 5,015
Deferred tax labilities (16,975) {16.838)
{9,631} (11,823)
Other
Income comprehensive Acquisitions Exchange
2012 statement income Equity and disposals differences 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Other short-term temporary
differences
Share-based payments 7,423 (2,305) - 587 - 20 5725
Pension deficit 626 237 (287) - - - 576
Accelerated capital aliowances 629 {24) - - - (21) 584
Deferred income, accruals and
other provisions 9,113 {1,377) - - - 62 7,798
Total other short-term
temporary differences 17.791 {3,469) (287) 587 - 61 14,683

At the balance sheet date, the group has unused US tax losses available for offset against future profits At September 30 2013 a deferred tax asset of
£3,594,000(2012 £1,367,000) has been recogrused in relation to these losses The US losses can be carned forward for a penod of 20 years from the
date they arose The US losses have expiry dates between 2014 and 2029

At Septermber 30 2013, a net deferred tax asset of £693,000 (2012 £5,511,000) has been recogrised in respect of US tax deductuble goodwill
amortisation, capitalised intangible assets and other short-term uming differences

The directors are of the opirion that, based on recent and forecast trading, it 1s probable that the level of profits :n future years is sufficient 1o enable
the above assets to be recovered

No deferred tax hability is recogrused on temporary differences of £153,233,000 (2012 £94,478,000) relating to the unremitted earnings of overseas
subsidiaries as the group 1s able to control the tming of the reversal of these temporary differences and 1t 15 probable that they will not reverse in the
foreseeable future The temporary differences at September 30 2013 represent only the unremitted earnings of those overseas subsichianes where
remittance to the UK of those earnings may stll result in a tax liability, principally as a result of dwdend withholding taxes levied by the overseas tax
junsdictions in which these subsidianes operate

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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22 Called up share capital

2013 2012
£000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
126,457,324 ordinary shares of 0 25p each (2012 124,349,531 ordinary shares of @ 25p each) 316 31

During the year, 2,107,793 ordinary shares of 0 25p each (2012 3,102,151 ordinary shares) with an aggregate nominal value of £5,270 (2012 £7,755)
were 1ssued as follows 2,107,793 ordinary shares (2012 720,741 ordinary shares) following the exerase of share options granted under the company’s
share option schemes for a cash consideration of £2,228,590 (2012 £1,058,834) In addition, last year 2,381,410 shares were issued under the
company’s 2009 scrip dvidend alternative for a cash consideration of £nil There was no scrip dividend alternative offered in 2013

23 Share-based payments

The group’s long-term incentive expense at September 30 comprnised

2013 2012
£000 £000
Equity-settled options
SAYE (96) (97)
CAP 2004 - 1,809
CAP 2010 (971) {4,042)
(1,067) (2,330)
Cash-settled options
CAP 2010 (971) (4,042)
Internet Securities, Inc (7 (8)
Structured Retail Products Limited {55) 79
(1,033) (3.971)
(2.100) (6,301)
The total carrying value of cash-settled options at September 30 included in the Statement of Financial Position is
2013 2012
£000 £000
Current 7,435 7,768
Non-current - 6,341

7,435 14,109
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23 Share-based payments continued
Equity-settled options

The options set out below are outstanding at September 30 and are options to subscribe for new ordinary shares of 0 25p each In the company

The total charge recognised In the year from equity-settled options was £1,067,000, 51% of the group’s long-term incentive expense (2012 charge

£2,330,000, 37%)}

Number of ordinary shares under option 2013

Peniod during which option may be exercised
Executive options

Before January 28 2014

SAYE

Between February 1 2013 and July 31 2013
Between February 1 2014 and July 31 2014
Between February 1 2015 and July 31 2015
Between February 1 2016 and July 31 2016
CAP 2004

Before September 30 2014 (tranche 1)}
Before Septernber 30 2014 (tranche 3)'
CAP 2010

Before September 30 2020 (tranche 17
Befare September 30 2020 {tranche 2)?
CSOP 2010

Before February 14 2020 (UK}

Before February 14 2020 (Canada)

Granted/ Lapsed/

(trued-up) Exercised forferted

duning during during
2012 year year year 2013
52,000 - (44,000) - 8,000
44,567 - (41,929) (2.638) -
25,497 - (2,079) (4,225) 19,193
148,488 - (653) (21,682) 126,153
- 70,178 - (7.178) 63,000
421 - {421} - -
69,693 {14,693y  {55,000) - -
969,305 473,606(1,432,443) - 10,468
1,750,496 (32,976) - (2.674) 1,709,846
541,671 (203,283)* (311,708) (2.632) 24,048
239,520 (19.960)" (219,560) - -
3,841,658 272,872 (2,107,793)  (46,029) 1,960,708

Option
price
£3]

419

344
565
497
639

00025
0 0025

0 0025
00025

603
50

Weghted
average
market
price at
date of
exercse

(£)

1021
896

1015
960

1088
927
939

1003
932
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23 Share-based payments continued
Equity-settled options continued
The options outstanding at September 30 2013 had a weighted average exerase price of £0 67 and a weighted average remaining contractual ife of

6 44 years
Number of ordinary shares under option 2012

Weighted
average
market
Granted/ Lapsed/ price at
(trued up) Exercised forfeited Option date of
durning during during price exercise
201 year year year 2012 (£) (£)
Period during which option may be exercised
Execuiive options
Before January 22 2012 8,000 - (8,000) - - 335 707
Before Decernber 3 2012 86,000 - (86,000) - - 259 731
Before January 28 2014 91,487 - (39,487) - 52,000 419 730
SAYE
Between February 1 2011 and July 31 2011 3,018 - (3,018) - - 318 690
Between February 1 2012 and July 31 2012 341,025 - {338,767} (2,258} - 187 693
Between February 1 2013 and July 31 2013 46,466 - - {1,899) 44,567 344 -
Between February 1 2014 and July 31 2014 40,588 - - {15,091) 25,497 565 -
Between February 1 2015 and July 31 2015 - 158,769 - {10,281}y 148,488 497 -
CAP 2004
Before September 30 2014 (tranche 1) 421 - - - 421 0 0025 -
Before September 30 2014 (tranche 2)* 58,375 {18,063} (40,312) - - 0 0025 737
Before September 30 2014 (tranche 3} 293,032 (18,182)*  {(205,157) - 69,693 00025 731
CAP 2010
Before September 30 2020 (tranche 1) 969,305 - - - 968,305 40025 -
Before September 30 2020 (tranche 2) 1,750,496 - - - 1,750,496 00025 -
CcsopP 2010
Befare February 14 2020 {UK) 541,671 - - - 541,671 603 -
Before February 14 2020 (Canada) 239,520 - - - 239,520 501 -

4,469,404 122,524 (720,741) {29,529) 3,841,658

The options outstanding at September 30 2012 had a weighted average exerase price of £1 49 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of
7 35 years

1 CAP 2004 options shown in the above tables relate only 1o those options that have vested {see page 65 in the Directars’ Remuneration Report for further information
on CAP 2004 options)

2 The allocation of the number of options granted under each tranche of the CAP 2010 and CSOP UK and CSOP Canada represents the directors’ best esimate The CAP
2010 award 1s reduced by the number of options vesting under the respective CSOP schemes (see below and the Directors’ Remuneration Report for further detals)

t+  Options grantedi{trued-up) relate to the adjustments ta those that were likely to vest on February 14 2013 under the second and third tranche of the CAP 2004
following the achievement of the additional performance test and the first tranche of CAP 2010 The number of options granted was provisional and required a true-up
1o reflect adjustments of the indiwdual businesses profits dunng the penod to December 31 2012 and 2013 respectively as required by the Remuneration Commuttee
As such, the actual number of options vested vaned from that disclosed last year

Cash-settled options

The group has habiities in respect of two share option schemes that are classified by IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payments’ as cash settled These consist of
the cash element of the CAP 2010 scheme and optiens held by employees over equity shares in Structured Retail Products Limited, a subsidiary of the
group Of these schemes, options with an intrinsic value of £ril had vested but are not yet exercised (2012 £3,000)
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23 Share-based payments continued

Share Option Schemes

Capital Appreciation Plan 2010 (CAP 2010)

The CAP 2010 executive share ophion scheme was approved by shareholders on January 21 2010 Each CAP 2010 award comprises two equal elements
- an option to subscribe for ordinary shares of @ 25p each in the company at an exeraise price of O 25p per ordinary share, and a right to receive a cash
payment The awards vest n two equal tranches The first tranche of awards became exerasable in February 2013 following satisfaction of the pnmary
performance conditton (adjusted pre-tax profits of at least £105 milhon, increased from £100 rmullion following the acquisition of NDR) The second
tranche of awards becomes exercisable 1n the February following a subsequent financial year in which adjusted pre-tax profits* again equal or exceed
£105 mullion, but no earher than February 2014 The second tranche only vests on satisfaction of the primary performance condition and an additional
performance condition and lapse to the extent unexerased by September 30 2020 The number of options receved under the share award of the CAP
2010 15 reduced by the number of options vesting with participants from the 2010 Company Share Option Plan The prnimary performance condition
was achieved In finanaal year 2011, two years earlier than expected, when adjusted pre-tax profrts* were £101 3 million However, the internal rules of
the plan prevented the awards vesting more than one year early, so although the primary condition had been achieved, the award pool was allocated
between the holders of outstanding awards by reference to their contribution to the growth in profits of the group from the 2009 base year to the
profits achieved in financial year 2012 and these awards were exercisable in February 2013 The primary performance condition was achieved again in
financial year 2012 and, after applying the addimional performance condition, the second tranche of options will become exercisable in February 2014
(see Directors’ Remuneration Report for further information)

Company Share Option Plan 2010 (CSOP 2010)

In parallel with the CAP 2010, the shareholders approved the CSOP 2010 UK and Canada at the AGM on January 21 2010 The C50P 2010 UK was
approved by HM Revenue & Customs on June 21 2010 and options granted on June 28 2010 The CSOP 2010 UK option enables each partapant
to purchase up to 4,972 shares in the company at a price of £6 03 per share, the market value at the date of grant The options vest and become
exercisable at the same time as the corresponding share award under the CAP 2010 prowiding the CSOP option 15 1n the money at that time and did
not vest before June 28 2013 Once vested the CSOP option remains exerasable for one month If the CSOP option 1s not in the money at the time
of vesting of the corresponding CAP 2010 share award 1t continues to subsist and becomes exercisable at the same time as the second tranche of the
CAP 2010 share award The CSOP 2010 Canada, granted on March 30 2010, enables each partscipant to purchase up to 19,960 shares in the company
at a price of £5 01 per share, the market value at the date of grant No option may vest after the date falling three months after the preliminary
announcement of the results for the finanaal year ended September 30 2019, and the option shall fapse to the extent unvested at the tme The CSCP
has the same performance critena as that of the CAP 2010 as set out above The number of CSOP 2010 awards that vest proportionally reduce the
number of shares that vest under the CAP 2010 as the CSOP 15 effectively a delivery mechanism for part of the CAP 2010 award The CSOP 2010 option
exercise price of £6 03 (UK) and £5 01 (Canada) will be satisfied by a funding award mechanism and results in the same net gain on the CSOP options
{calculated as the market price of the company's shares at the date of exercise less the exercise pnce, multiphed by the number of options exercised)
delivered in the equivalent number of shares to partiapants as if the award had been delivered using 0 25p CAP options

Capital Appreciation Plan 2004 (CAP 2004)

The CAP 2004 executive share option scheme was approved by shareholders on February 1 2005 Each of the CAP awards compnses an option
to subscribe for ordinary shares of 0 25p each in the company for an exercise price of 0 25p per ordinary share The awards become exerasable
on satisfaction of certain performance conditions and lapse to the extent unexercised on September 30 2014 The initial performance condition
was achieved in the finanaial year 2007 and the option pool {a maximum of 7 5 million shares) was allocated between the holders of outstanding
awards One-third of the awards vested immediately The pnmary performance target was achieved again m 2008 and, after applying the additional
performance condition, 2,241,269 options fram the second tranche of options vested in February 2009 The primary performance target was also
achieved in 2009 and 1,527,152 options (ncluding a true-up adjustment of 5,654) for the third (final) tranche of options in 2009 vested in February
2010 The addional performance condition was applied to profits for financial year 2010 to 2012 for those individual participants where the additonal
performance conditions for the second and final tranches had not previously been met and 303,321, 244,152 and 39,907 options vested in February
2011, 2012 and 2013 respectively No further options wall vest under this scheme and all outstanding options have been exeraised

*  Adjusted pre-tax profits 15 profit before tax excluding acquired ntangible amortisation CAP 2010 element of long-term incentive expense, exceptionat items, profits
from sigruficant acquisitions, NetL Movements In acquisitien commitments values, imputed interest on acquisition comrmutments, foreign exchange loss interest charge
on tax equalisation cantracts and foreign exchange on restructured hedging arrangements as set out in the Income Statement, note 5 and note 7
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23 Share-based payments continued
Share Option Schemes continued
The company has four share option schemes for which an IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payments’ charge has been recognised Details of these schemes are

set out In the Directors” Remuneration Report on pages 62 to 64 The farr value per option granted and the assumptions used in the calculation are
shown below

Executive SAYE

Options 12 13 14

January 28 December21 December 20 December 17

Date of grant 2004 2010 2011 2012
Market value at date of grant {p) 419 706 621 798
Option price (p) 419 565 497 639
Number of share options outstanding 8,000 19,193 126,153 63,000
Option ife (years) 100 35 35 35
Expected term of option (grant to exercise (years)} 55 30 30 30
Exercise price (p) 419 565 497 639
Risk-free rate 410% 163% 053% 053%
Dividend yield 393% 528% 4 30% 231%
Volatility 30% 38% 35% 27%
Fair value per option {£) 072 182 154 193

The executive and Save as You Earn (SAYE) options were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing modet Expected volatility was determined by
calculating the historical volatility of the group’s share price over a perod of three years The executive options’ farr values have been discounted at a
rate of 10% to reflect theirr performance conditions The expected term of the option used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferabilfity, exercise restrictions and behavioural constderations The charge recognised in the year in respect of
these options was £96,000 (2012 £97,000)

CAP 2010 CSOP 2010

Tranche 1 Tranche 2 UK

March 30 March 30 June 28

Date of grant 2010 2010 2010

Market value at date of grant (p) 501 501 603 34

Option price (p} 025 025 603 34

Number of share options outstanding 10,468 1,709,846 24,048

Opticn dife (years) 10 10 938

Expected term of option (grant to exercise {years)) 4 5 3
Exercise price (p} 025 025 603 34>

Risk-free rate 228% 275% 228%

Dividend growth 700% 7 00% 7 00%

Fair value per option (£) 437 420 437

The CAP 2010 options were valued using a fair value model that adjusted the share price at the date of grant for the net present value of expected
future dividend streams up to the date of expected exerose The expected term of the option used in the models has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effacts of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behawvioural considerations

The number of CSOP 2010 awards that vest proportionally reduce the number of shares that vest under the CAP 2010, the CSOP 15 effectively a delivery
mechanism for part of the CAP 2010 award The CSOP 2010 options have an exerase price of £6 03, which will be satsfied by a funding award
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23 Share-based payments continued

mechanism which results in the same net gain' on these options delivered in the equivalent number of shares to participants as if the same award
had been delivered using 0 25 pence CAP options The amount of the funding award will depend on the company’s share price at the date of vesting
Because of the above and the other direct links between the CSOP 2010 and the CAP 2010, including the identical performance cntena, IFRS 2 “Share
based payments’ combines the two plans and treats them as one plan {vesting in two tranches} The long-termincentive expense recognised in the year
for the CSOP 2010 and CAP 2010 options (iIncluding the charge in relation to the cash element) was £1,942,000(2012 £8,084,000}

1 Net gain on the CSOP options 15 the market price of the companys shares at the date of exercise less the exerase price (£6 03} multiphed by the number of options
exercised
*  Exercise price excludes the effect of the funding award

24 Acquisition commitments and deferred consideration

The group 15 party to contingent consideration arrangements in the form of both acquisition commitments and deferred consideration payments 1AS
39 ‘Ainancial Instruments’ requires the group to recognise the discounted present value of the contingent consideration This discount 1s unwound as a
notional mterest charge to the Income Statement The group regularty performs a review of the underlying businesses to assess the impact on the farr
value of the contingent consideration Any resultant change in these farr values is reported as a finance iIncome or expense In the Income Statement

Acquisition commitments Deferred consideration

2013 2012 2013 2012

£000 £000 £000 £000
At October 1 7.868 11,001 77 IRES
Additions from acquisitions during the year 4,404 - 12,177 (407}
Net movements dunng the year (note 7) 1,619 {2,940} 3,887 (35)
Irmputed interest (note 7) 1.269 977 834 -
Exercise of commitments (82) 831) - -
Pand during the year - - (5.329) (612)
Exchange differences {41) (339) - -
At September 30 15,037 7,868 11,646 77

An expense of £2,888,000(2012 net:ncome of £1,963,000} was recorded In finance income and expense for acquisition commitments and £4,721,000
(2012 net income of £35,000) for deferred consideration {note 7}

Maturity profile of contingent consideration

Acquisition commitments Deferred consideration
2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £00¢
Prepayments (included in trade and other recevables) - - (4,479) -
Within ane year (included in current labilities) 539 4273 7,040 77
In more than one year (included in non-current liabihities) 14,498 3,595 9,085 —
15,037 7,868 11,646 77

The prepayment represents deferred consideration paid in advance into escrow following the acquisitions of Insider Publishing (£2,400,000) and CIE
{A$3,600,000 (£2,079,000)) (note 14)

There 15 a deferred tax asset of £168,000 (2012 £n)l) related to the acquisitton commitments as at September 30 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Finanaal Statements
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24 Acquisition commitments and deferred consideration continved

During the year, the terms of the put option agreement for Ned Davis Research (NDR) were amended to defer the earn-out payment to early 2017
and to combine the payment into one instalment based on a revised pre-determined multiple of the average results of the business for the periods
to Septernber 30 2015 and 2016 As a result, the expected hability under this mecharusm, discounted using the group’s WACC, has increased from
£7,812,000 at September 30 2012 to £10,395,000 at September 30 2013 resulting in a charge to the Income Statement of £2,621,000 and a foreign
exchange gain of £38,000 n reserves

As explained in note 2, key judgemental areas in prepanng the financial staternents, the value of the acquisition commitments and acquisition deferred
consideration 1s subject to a number of assumptions The potenttal undiscounted amount of all future payments that the group could be required to
make under the contingent consideration arrangements 1s as follows

2013 2012
Maximum Minimum Maximum Mirimurm
£000 £000 £000 £000
NDR 37,445 - 37,552 -
Insider Publishing 16,600 - - -
TTIVanguard 4,284 - - -
CIE 11,086 - - -
69,415 - 37,552 -

A sensitivity analysis of the farr value of the acquisiion commutments, using a reasonably possible increase or decrease of 10% In expected profits,
results In the hability at September 30 2013 increasing or decreasing by £1,504,000 with the corresponding change to the value at September 30 2013
charged or credited to the Income Statement in future periods

A sensitivity analysis of the fair value of the deferred consideration payments, using a reasonably possible increase or decrease of 10% n expected
profits, results in the hability at September 30 2013 increasing or decreasing by £3,483,000 with the corresponding change to the value at September
30 2013 charged or credited to the Income Statement (n future penods

The group has the option to purchase the remaining 50% eguity holding of GGA Pte Limited in March 2014 and if exercised expects to pay €1,021,000

(£854,000) Under 1AS 32 Financial Instruments’ this acquisition commitment 1s not recorded as a hability 1n the balance sheet

25 Operating lease commitments
At September 30 the group had committed to make the following payments in respect of operating leases on land and buildings

2013 2012

£000 £000

Within one year 7616 6.728
Between two and five years 15,578 16,451
After five years 5,548 2,812
28,742 25,991

The group's operating leases do not include any significant leasing terms or conditions
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25 Operating lease commitments continued
At September 30 the group had contracted with tenants to receve the following payments in respect of operating leases on land and buildings

2013 2012

£000 £000

Within one year 1,196 1,320
Between two and five years 2,649 3,492
After five years - 445
3,845 5,257

26 Retirement benefit schemes

Defined contribution schemes

The group operates the following defined contribution schemes Euromoney PensionSaver, Euromeney Pension Plan, the Metal Bulletin Group Personal
Pension Plan In the UK and the 401{k) savings and snvestment ptan in the US It also parttaipates in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme, a defined benefit
schema which 15 operated by Daily Mail and General Trust plc {DMGT) but 1s accounted for in Euromoney Institutional tnvestor PLC as a defined
contribution scheme

In compliance with recent legislation the group 1s making arrangements for relevant employees to be automatically enrolled into defined contribution
pension plans The staging date for the group for automatic enrolment is expected to be November 2013

The pension charge in respect of defined contribution schemes for the year ended September 30 compnised

2013 2012
£000 £000
Euromoney Pension Plan/PensionSaver 1,238 1,094
Metal Bulletin Group Personat Pension Plan 16 24
Private schemes 1,101 1,077
Harmsworth Pension Scheme 88 112
2,443 2,307

Euromoney PensionSaver and Euromoney Pension Plan

Euromoney PensionSaver 15 a graup persenal pension plan and is the principal pension arrangement offered to employees of the group Contrbutions
are pard by the employer and employees Employees are able to contribute a mimimum of 2% of salary with an equal company contnibution in the first
three years of employment and thereafter at twice the employee contribution rate, up to a maximum employer contribution of 10% of salary

The Euromoney Pension Plan 1s a part of the DMGT Pension Trust, an umbrella trust under which DMGT UK trust-based defined contribution plans
are held Insured death benefits previously held under this trust have been transferred to a new trust-based amangement specifically for life assurance
purposes When the process of transferring out the remaining assets of the Euromoney Pension Plan has been completed the plan will be wound up

Assets of both plans are invested in funds selected by members and held independently from the company’s finances The investment and administration
of both ptans 15 undertaken by Fidelity Pension Management

Metal Bulletin Group Personal Pension Plan
The Metal Bulleun Group Personal Pension Plan 1s a defined contribution arrangement under which contributions are pad by the employer and
employees The scheme 1s closed to new members

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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26 Retirement benefit schemes continued

Metal Bulletin Group Personal Pension Plan continued

The plan’s assets are wested under trust In funds selected by members and held independently from the company's finances The tnvestment and
admimistration of the plan 15 undertaken by Skandia Life Group

Private schemes

Institutional Investor, Inc contributes to a 401(k} savings and investment plan for its employees which 15 administered by an independent investment
provider Employees are able to contnbute up to 15% of salary with the company matching up to 50% of the employee contributions, up to 5%
of salary

The company also provides access to a stakeholder pension plan for relevant employees who are not eligible for other pension schemes operated by
the group These arrangements will be superseded when automatic enrolment begins in 2013

Harmsworth Penston Scheme

The Harmsworth Pension Scheme 1s a defined benefit scheme operated by DMGT The scheme 1s closed to new entrants Existing members st in
employment can continue to accrue benefits in the scheme on a cash balance basis, with members bulding up a retirement account that they can use
to buy an annuity from an insurance company at retirement

Full actuanial valuations of the defined benefit schemes are carried out tnennially by the Scheme Actuary As a result of the valuations of the man
schemes completed as at March 31 2010, DMGT has been making annual contributions of 10% or 15% of members’ basic pay (depending on
membership section) In addition, in accordance with agreed Recovery Plans, DMGT made payments of £11 6 mitlion in the year to September 30
2013 Foliowing the disposal of Northeliffe Media Limited, DMGT agreed to make additional contnibutions of £30 0 million, including debts calculated
in accordance with Sectton 75 of the Pensions Act 1995 Payments of £17 1 million were made during the year to September 30 2013 with the balance
of £12 9 million to be paidin January 2014 In addition, following announcement by DMGT of a buy-back programme of up to £100 mullion of shares
in autumn 2012, DMGT agreed with the Trustees that addittonal special contnibutions would be paid to the scheme when the total value of shares
bought-back exceeded £50 million The first contribution ansing from this agreement was made in June 2013 in the amount of £1 8 millien The
tnenmial funding vatuation of the scheme as at March 31 2013, 1s not expected to be completed untd the first quarter of 2014

DMGT has enabled the trustee of the scheme to acquire a beneficial interest in a Limited Partnership investment vehicle (LP} The LP has been designed to
faciitate payment of part of the deficit funding payments descnbed above over a penod of 15 years to 2027 In addition, the LP 18 required to make a final
payment to the scheme of £150 mitlicn or the funding deficit wathin the scheme on an ongoing actuanal valuation basis at the end of the 15 year penod if
this is less For funding purposes, the interest held by the trustee in the LP will be treated as an asset of the scheme and reduce the actuanal deficit within
the scheme However, under 1AS 19 the LP 1s not included as an asset of the scheme and therefore 15 not included in the calculation of the deficit below

The group 15 unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme The scheme 1s operated on an
aggregate basis with no segregation of the assets to indivdual participating employers and, therefore, the same contribution rate 1s charged to all
participating employers {1 e the contribution rate charged to each employer 1s affected by the expenence of the schemes as a whole) The scheme 15
therefore accounted for as a defined contribution scheme by the company This means that the pension charge reported in these finanaal statements
15 the same as the cash contributions due in the penod The group’s pension charge for the Harmsworth Pension Scheme for the year ended September
30 2013 was £88,000 (2012 £112,000)

DMGT 15 required to account for the Harmsworth Pension Scheme under IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ The IAS 19 disclosures in the Annual Report and
Accounts of DMGT have been based on the formal valuation of the scheme as at March 31 2010, and adjusted to September 30 2013 taking account of
membership data at that date The calculations are adjusted to alfow for the assumptions and actuanal methodology required by IAS 19 These showed
that the market value of the scheme's assets was £1,646 3 muflion (2012 £1,481 2 milhon) and that the actuanal value of these assets represented
89 6% (2012 B4 6%) of the benefits that had accrued to members (also calculated in accordance with IAS 19}
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26 Retirement benefit schemes contmued

Defined benefit scheme

Metal Bulletin Pension Scheme

The company operates the Metal Bulletin plc Pension Scheme (MBPS), a defined benefit scheme which is closed to new entrants

A full actuanal vatuation of the defined benefit scheme 1s carned out tnenmially by the Scheme Actuary The latest valuation of the MBPS was completed
as at June 1 2010 As a result of the valuation, the company agreed to make annual contributions of 22 3% per annum of pensionable salaries, plus
£42,400 per month to the scheme The contributions will be reviewed at the next tnenmial funding valuation of the scheme due to be completed with
an effective date June 1 2013

The figures in this note are based on calculations carned out in connection with the actuanat valuation of the scheme as at June 1 2010 adjusted to
September 30 2013 by the actuary The key finanaal assumptions adopted were as follows

Leng-term assumed rate of 2013 2012
Pensionable salary increases 25%pa 25%pa
Pension escalation in payment (pre January 1997 members) 50%pa 50%pa
Pension escalation in payment (pensions earned from May 30 2002 to June 30 2006)

(post January 1997 members} 34%pa 28%pa
Pension escalation in payment (pensions earned from June 30 2006}

{post January 1997 members) 25%pa 25%pa
Discount rate for accrued habilities 43%pa 41%pa
Inflation 34%pa 28%pa
Pension increase in deferment 34%pa 28%pa

The discount rate for scheme liabilities reflects yields at the balance sheet date on high quality corporate bonds Al assumptions were selected after
taking actuarial advice

The demographic assumptions adopted were as follows

Pre-retirement mortality rates
The following mortality rates represent the probability of a person dying within one year

Age Males Females
30 003% 002%
40 005% 004%
50 0 14% 0 10%
60 0 44% 028%
Assumed life expectancy in years, on retirement at 62 2013 2012

Retining at the end of the reporting penod

Males 259 258

Females 280 280
Retiring 20 years after the end of the reporting period

Males 281 280

Females 293 292

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

26 Retirement benefit schemes continued

The far value of the assets held by the MBPS and the long-term expected rate of return on each dass of assets are shown in the
following table

With profits
2013 Equities Bonds policy Cash Total
Value at September 30 2013 (£000) 7.812 17,981 2,863 1,163 29,819
% of assets held 26 2% 60 3% 9 6% 39% 100 0%
Long-term rate of return expected at September 30 2013 7 00% 4 00% 4 75% 1 50%
With profits
202 Equittes Bonds policy Cash Total
Value at September 30 2012 (£000) 6,539 15,725 2,567 2,188 27,019
% of assets held 24 2% 58 2% 95% 81% 100 0%
Long-term rate of return expected at September 30 2012 8 00% 3 50% 5 00% 1 50%

A reconciliation of the net pension defict reported in the Statement of Financial Position 1s shown in the following table

2013 2012

£000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obligation (32,702) (31,776)
Assets at fair value 29,819 27,019
Deficit reported in the Statement of Financial Position (2,883) (4,757}
The deficit for the year excludes a related deferred tax asset of £576,000 (2012 asset £626,000}
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit abligation are as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000
Present value of obligation at Cctober 1 (31,776) {26,260)
Service cost {61) (58)
interest cost (1.302) {1,314)
Benefits pad 653 579
Members' contributions {12) (12)
Actuarial movement (204) (4,711)

Present value of obligation at September 30 (32,702) (31,776)
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26 Retirement benefit schemes continued
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000
Fair value of plan assets at October 1 27,019 24,361
Expected return on plan assets 1,235 1,329
Contributions
Employer 569 583
Members 12 12
Annuity surplus refund 30 25
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 1,607 1,288
Benefits paid (653} (579)
Fair value of plan assets at September 30 25,819 27,018

The actual return on plan assets was a gain of £2,842,000 (2012 gain £2,617,000) representing the expected return plus the asscaated actuaral gain

or loss durning the year

The amounts charged to the Income Statement based on the above assumptions are as follows

2013 2012

£000 £000

Current service costs (charged to administrative costs) 61 58
Interest cost (note 7) 1,302 1,314
Expected return on plan assets (note 7) (1.235) {1,329)
Total charge recogrised n Income Statement 128 43

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

26 Retirement benefit schemes continued

Pension costs and the size of any pension surplus or deficit are sensitive to the assumptions adopted The table below indicates the effect of changes
in the prninapal assumptions used above

2013 2012
£000 £000

Mortality
Change in pension obligation at September 30 from a one year change in life expectancy +H- 946 943
Change n pension cost from a one year change +/- 42 40
Salary Increases
Change in pension abligation at September 30 from a 0 25% change += 35 38
Change in pension cost from a 0 25% year change +— 4 4
Discount Rate
Change in pension obligation at September 30 from a 0 1% change +H- 636 630
Change in pension cost from a 0 1% change += 28 3
Inflation
Change in pension obligation at September 30 from a 0 1% change += 197 182
Change in pension cost from a 0 1% change +- 8 7

Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (SOCI) are shown in the following table

2013 2012

£000 £000

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 1,607 1,288
Return of surplus annuity payments 30 25
Experience adjustments on habilities (339) (178)
Losses ansing from changes in assumptions 135 {4,533)
Total gains/{losses) recognised in SOCI 1,433 (3,398)
Cumulative actuanal loss recogrsed in SOCI at beginning of year (3.813) (415)

Cumulative actuarial loss recognised in SOCI at end of year {2,380) {3,813)
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26 Retirement benefit schemes continued
History of experience gains and losses

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obigation (32,702) (31,776} (26,260) (25.811) (21,916}
Fair value of scheme assets 29,819 27.019 24,361 24,274 21,552
Deficit in scheme (2,883) (4,757) {1,899) {1,537) (364)
Experience adjustments on defined benefit obligation (339) (178) 827 (14} (18)
Percentage of present value of defined benefit obligation 10% 06% (319%) 01% 01%
Expenence adjustments on fair value of scheme assets 1,607 1,288 {1,395) 1,363 760
Percentage of the fair value of the scheme assets 54% 4 8% {5 7%) 5 6% 35%

The group expects to contribute approximately £509,000 (2012 expected contnbution in 2013 of £509,000) to the MBPS durnng the 2014
financial year

27 Contingent habilities

Claims 1n Malaysia

Four wnits claiming damages for ibel were 1ssued in Malaysia against the company and three of its employees in respect of an article published in one of
the company’s magazines, Internatonal Commercial Liigation, in Novernber 1995 The writs were served on the company on Cctober 22 1936 Two of
these writs have been discontinued The total outstanding amount claimed on the two remaining writs 1s Malaysian ringgets 82 4 mullion (£15,615,000)
No prowision has been made for these daims in these financial statements as the directors do not believe the company has any matenal liabiity in
respect of these writs

28 Related party transactions

The group has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under 1AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ not to disclose transactions and balances between
group companees that have been eliminated on consolidation Other refated party transactions and batances are detalled below

{  The group had borrowings under a US$300 million multi-currency facility with DMGRH Finance Limited, a Daily Mail and General Trust plc {DMGT}
group company as follows

2013 2013 2012 2012

uss$000 £000 usiooo £000

Amounts owing under US$ facility at September 30 34,782 21,478 62,381 38,631
Amounts owing under GBP facility at September 30 - - - 4523
Amounts due under current account facility at September 30 (2,108) (1,301) - -
20,177 43,154

Commitment fee on unused portion of the available facility for the year - 856 - 618

Notes to the Corsolidated Financal Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

28 Related party transactions continued

)

n

)

Durning the year the group expensed services provided by DMGT, the group’s parent, and other fellow group companies, as follows

2013 2012
£000 £000
Services expensed 424 444

At September 30, the group had fixed rate interest rate swaps outstanding with Daily Mail and General Holdings Limited {DMGH), a fellow group
company, as follows

2013 2013 2012 2012
Us$000 £000 us$oo0 £000
US$ fixed rate tnterest rate swaps
(2012 Interest rates between 2 5% and 5 4% and termination dates
March 28 2013 and September 30 2013) - - 40,000 24,711
GBP fixed rate interest rate swaps
{2012 Interest rate of 2 6% and termination date of March 28 2013) — - - 5,000

Dunng the year the group paid interest to DMGH and related companies in respect of interest rate swaps as follows

2013 213 2012 2012

uss000 £000 Us$000 £000

US$ interest paid 963 617 2,353 1,488
GBP interest pad - 50 - 504

In January 2011, the group granted an Indian Rupee 112 million loan faclity to RMSI Private Limited, a DMGT group company, at a 10 5% fixed
interest rate The loan was repaid to the group on November 21 2011

2013 2013 2012 2012
INR 000 £000 INR Q00 £000

Interest income during the year - - 1,476 18
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28 Related party transactions continued

v}

(i)

(vin)

Duning the year DMGT group compantes surrendered tax losses to Euromoney Consortium Limited under an agreement between the two groups
These tax losses are relevable against UK taxable profits of the group under HMRC's consortium relief rules

2013 2012
£000 £000
Amounts payable 1,971 2,584
Tax osses with tax value 2,628 3,445

Dunng the year DMGT group companies surrendered tax losses to Euromoney Consortium 2 Limited under an agreement between the two
groups These tax losses are relievable agamnst UK taxable profits of the group under HMRC's consortium rehief rules

2013 2012
£000 £000
Amounts payable 565 631
Tax losses with tax value 754 841
Amounts owed to DMGT Group at September 30 473 —

in January 2013 the group exeraised s call option to purchase the remaining non-controlling interest in Internet Secunties, Inc (ISI) The option
value was based on the valuaton of IS as determined under a methodology provided by an independent financial adwiser Under the terms of
the put option agreement consideration caps had been put in place that required the maximum consideration payable to opon holders to be
capped at an amount such that the results of any relevant class tests would, at the relevant tme, fall below the requirement for shareholder
approval In March 2013, under this call optron mechanism, the group purchased 0 08% of the equity share capital of ISI for a cash consideration
of US$102,000{£67,000) The group's equity shareholding in 15! increased to 100%

{vi) NF Osborn serves on the management board of A&N International Media Umited and both DMG Events and dmg, fellow group companves, for

{x)

(x}

Om

which he receved fees for the year to September 30 2013 of £25,000 and US$45,000 respectively (2012 £25,000 and U5$45,000 respectively)
Effective Qctober 1 2013, NF Osborn's fees from DMGT related companies were reduced to U5$45,000

PM Fallon served as a director on the executive board of DMGT, the group’s parent Duning the year he earned non-executive director fees of £rul
(2012 £24,500) and received shori-termn employee benefits of £rl (2012 £8,749) PM Fallon died on October 14 2012

B AL-Rehany received an interest bearing loan from BCA, a subsidiary company, for CAD39,000 on February 28 2013 The loan accrued
Interest at 5% per annum At September 30 2013 the loan balance outstanding was CAD40,000 (2012 £n) The loan was repaid i full on
November 8 2013

During the year the group received a dvidend of £268,000 (2012 £291,000) from Capital NET Lirmted, an associate of the group

(xi} The directors who served during the year received dividends of £230,000 (2012 £210,000) in respect of ordinary shares held tn the company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

28 Related party transactions continued

{xmy The compensation paid or payable for key management i5 set out below Key management includes the executive and non-executive directors as
set out In the Directors’ Remuneration Report and other key divisional directors who are not on the board

Key management compensation

2013 22
£000 £000
Salanes and short-term employee benefits 12,791 18,726
Non-executive directors’ fees 204 181
Post-ermpioyment benefits 227 137
Other long-term benefits (all share-based) 4,181 1,272
17,403 20,316

Of which
Executwe directors 11,966 16,458
Non-executive directors 204 181
Dwisional directors 5,233 3,677
17,403 20,316

Details of the remuneration of directors are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

29 Events after the balance sheet date

The directors propose a final divrdend of 15 75p per share (2012 14 75p) totallng £19,917,000 (2012 £18,342,000) for the year ended
September 30 2013 The dividend will be submutted for formal approval at the Annual General Meeting to be held on January 30 2014 In accordance
with 1AS 10 ‘Events after the Reporung Period, these financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable but will be accounted for in shareholders’
equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the year ending September 30 2014 Duning 2013, a final dvidend of 14 75p (2012 12 50p) per
share totalling £18,342,000 (2012 £15,162,000} was paid in respect of the dwidend declared for the year ended September 30 2012

Purchase of new business

Infrastructure Journal (1i}

On October 15 2013, the group signed a binding agreement with Top Right Group to acquire 100% of the trade and assets of 1), a leading provider
of online data, intelligence and events for the global infrastructure sector, for a consideration of £12,500,000 The transaction completed, after the
required TUPE (Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment)) consultation peniod, on October 31 2013 The acquisition of I) 1s consistent with
the group’s strategy of investing in onling subscription and events businesses which will benefit from its global reach With 1ts strong brand and market
recogrution, IJ's ecitorial proposition and geographic reach complements the group’s Project Finance brand which 1t has owned for 25 years

The additional IFRS 3 (2008) ‘Business Combinations’ disclosures are not provided because the initial accounting for the business combination 1s
incomplete at the time this report 1s authonsed for 1ssue

Investment

Farmily Office Network Lirnited

On October 1 2013, the group invested US$264,000 (£165,000} in 51% of the equity share capital of Family Office Network Limited, a new company
whose principal activity 1s the provision of an online community for single and multi-family offices The group has the option to purchase a further 24%
equity holding of Family Office Network Limited v September 2017

There were no other events after the balance sheet date
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30 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The directors regard the ultimate parent undertaking as Rothermere Continuation Limited, which 1s incorporated in Bermuda The ultimate controlling
party 15 The Viscount Rothermere The largest and smallest group of which the company 15 8 member and for which group accounts are drawn up
1s that of Dally Mall angd General Trust plc, incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales Cepies of its report and accounts are
avallable from

The Company Secretary

Datly Mail and General Trust plc
Northchiffe House, 2 Derry Street
London W8 5TT

www dmat co uk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Company Balance Sheet

as at September 30 2013
2013 2012
Notes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 4 3,587 3,635
Investments 5 934,208 983,513
937,795 987,148
Current assets
Debtors 6 19.488 48,600
Cash at bank and in hand 155 10
19,643 48,610
Creditors Amounts falling due within one year 7 {101,021) (130,095}
Net current habilities (81,378) (81,485)
Total assets less current habihities 856,417 905,663
Creditors Amounts falling due after more than one year 8 {1.041) (44,881)
Net assets 855,376 860,782
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 316 ER
Share premium account 15 101,709 99,485
Other reserve 15 64,981 64,981
Capital redemption reserve 15 8 8
Capital reserve 15 1,842 1,842
Own shares 15 (74) (74)
Reserve for share-based payments 15 37,122 36,055
Fair value reserve 15 1,358 1,223
Profit and loss account 15 648,114 656,951
Equity shareholders’ funds 16 855,376 860,782

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC {registered number 954730) has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not included
Its own profit and loss account in these accounts The profit after taxation of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC included in the group profit for the
year is £18,320,000 (2012 £9,579,000}

The accounts were approved by the board of directars on November 13 2013

Chnistopher Fordham

v ﬁ"ﬁ }0/\ le, A/\/ .
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1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared under the histonical cost convention
except for denvative financal instruments which have been measured at
fair value and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting
standards and the United Kingdom Companies Act 2006 The accounting
pabcies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied
consistently throughout the current and prior year

The company has taken advantage of the exemption from presenting
a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS 1 {Rewvised) "Cash Flow
Statements’

The company 15 also exempt under the terms of FRS 8 ‘Related Party
Disclosures’ fram disclosing related party transactions with members of a
group that are wholly owned by a member of that group

Further, the company, as a parent company of 3 group drawing up
consolidated financial statements that meet the requirements of IFRS 7
‘Financral Instruments  Disclosure’, 1s exempt from disclosures that comply
with its UK GAAP equivalent, FRS 29 ‘Financial Statements Disclosures’

Going concern, debt covenants and iquidity

The financial position of the group, its cash flows and liguidity position
are set out in detail in this annual report The group meets its day-to-day
working capital requirements through its US$300 million dedicated multi-
currency borrowing facility with Dally Mall and General Trust plc group
(DMGT) The total maximum borrawing capacity s US$250 million (£154
million} and £33 miikon and was due to mature in December 2013 The
facility's covenant requires the group’s net debt to be no more than four
times adjusted EBITDA on a roling 12 month basis At September 30
2013, the group’s net debt to adjusted EBITDA covenant was 0 09 times
and the committed undrawn facility available o the group was £1659
rilion

Subsequent to the year end, the group has signed a US$160 million mulu-
currency replacement funding facility with DMGT that provides access to
funds during the perod to April 2016 The new facility’s covenant requires
the group’s net debt to be no more than three times adjusted EBITDA on
a rolling 12 month basis

The group’s forecasts and projections, loocking out to September 2016 and
taking account of reasonably possible changes In trading performance,
show that the group should be able to operate within the level and
covenants of its current borrowing facility

After making enguines, the directors have a reasonable expectation that
the group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future Accordingly, the directors continue to adopt the
going concern basis in prepanng this annual report

Notes to the Company Accounts

Turnover
Turnover represents iIncome from subscriptions, net of value added tax

¢ Subscription revenues are recognised in the profit and loss account
on a straight-kine basis over the penod of the subscription

Turnover invoiced but relating to future penods is deferred and treated as
deferred income in the balance sheet

Leased assets

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a
strasght-line or other systematic basis as allowed by 3SAP 21 "Accounting
for Leases and Hire Purchase Contracts’

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any recognised impairment loss Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 13
provided on the straight-line basis over their expected useful lives at the
following rates per year

Short-term leasehold premises over term of lease

Taxation

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foraign tax, 1s provided at
amounts expected to be paid (or recovered} using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date

Deferred taxation I1s calculated under the provisions of FRS 19 ‘Deferred
Taxatior', and 1s provided in full on trmung differences that result in an
obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a nght to pay
less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when the timing
differences crystallise based on current tax rates and law Deferred tax s
not provided on timing differences on unremitted earnings of subsidiaries
angd associates where there 15 no comrmiiment to remit these earnings
Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is regarded as
more likely than not that they will be recovered

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange
ruling at the date of the transaction or, if hedged forward, at the rate of
exchange of the related foreign exchange contract Monetary assets and
habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at
the rates ruling at the balance sheet date

CAamnanv Arrannte
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Notes to the Company Accounts

continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Dervatives and other financal instruments
The company uses vanous dervative financial instruments to manage 1its
exposure {0 interest rate nsks, including interest rate swaps

All denvative mstruments are recorded in the balance sheet at farr value
Recognition of gans or losses on dervative instruments depends on
whether the instrument 1s designated as a hedge and the type of exposure
it s designed to hedge

The effective portion of gains or losses on cash flow hedges are deferred
in equity untl the impact from the hedged item s recogrised in the
profit and loss account The ineffective portion of such gains and losses is
recogrised in the profit and loss account immediately

Gains or losses on the qualifying part of the foreign currency loans are
recognised In the profit or loss account along wath the associated foreign
currency movement on the designated portion of the mvestment In
subsidiaries

Changes In the far value of the derivative financial instruments that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the profit and loss
account as they arise

The premium or discount on interest rate nstruments 1s recogrsed as part
of net interest payable over the penod of the contract Interest rate swaps
are accounted for on an accruals basis

Subsidianes

Investments in subsidianes are accounted for at cost less impairment Cost
15 adjusted to reflect amendments from contingent consideration Cost
also includes direct attributable cost of investrnent

Trade and other debtors

Trade debtors are recognised and carrted at onginal invoice amount, less
provision for impairment A provision 1s made and charged to the profit
and loss account when there 1s objective evidence that the company will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal terms

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash, short-term deposits and other
short-term highly liquid investments with an onginal matunty of three
months or lass

Bividends

Dmdends are recogrused as an expense i the period n which they are
approved by the company's shareholders Intenm dmidends are recorded
in the period in which they are pad

Provisions

A prowision 15 recognised In the balance sheet when the company has
a present legal or constructive cbligation as a result of a past event,
and it 1s probable that economic benefits will be required to settle the
obhgation If 1t 1s matenal, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the nsks
specific to the liability

Share-based payments

The company makes share-based payments to certain employees which
are equity-settled These payments are measured at therr estimated fawr
value at the date of grant, calculated using an appropriate option prcing
model The farr value determined at the grant date 15 expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based an the estmate of the
number of shares that will eventually vest At the period end the vesting
assumptions are revisited and the charge assoaated with the fair value
of these options updated In accordance with the transitional provisions,
FRS 20 'Share-based payments’ has been apphed to all grants of options
after November 7 2002 that were unvested at October 1 2004, the date
of application of FRS 20
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2 Staff costs
2013 2012
£000 £000
Salaries, wages and incentives 241 43
Social secunity costs 28 6
Share-based compensation costs {(note 12} 96 {1,712}
365 {1,663}
Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 49 to 73 and 1n note 6 to the group accounts
The executive directors do not receive emoluments specifically for their services to this company
3 Remuneration of auditor
2013 2012
£000 £000
Fees payable for the audit of the company’s annuat accounts 458 447
4 Tangible assets
Short-term
leasehold
premises
£000
Cost
At October 1 2012 8,322
Addiions 930
Disposals (27)
At September 30 2013 9,225
Deprecation
At October 1 2012 4,687
Charge for the year 978
Disposals (27)
At September 30 2013 5,638
Net book value at September 30 2013 3,587
Net book value at September 30 2012 3,635

Notes to the Company Accounts
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Notes to the Company Accounts
continued

5 Investments

2013 2012

Investments Investrnents

In associated In associated
Subsidiaries undertakings Total Subsidiaries  undertakings Totat
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At October 1 983,484 29 983,513 938,432 29 938,461
Additions - - - 46,940 - 46,940
Return of capital (46,940) - (46,940) - - -
Impairment (4,810) - (4,810) - - -
Exchange differences 2,445 - 2,445 {1,888} - {1,888)
At September 30 934,179 29 934,208 983,484 29 983,513

2013

In March 2013, Euromoney Institutional Investor (Jersey} Limited declared a dwdend, of which £46,940,000 was in substance a return of the capital
invested and credited against the mvestment

in additon, dunng the year, the company restructured its investments in subsidianes resulting in an increased Investment in Fantfoot Limited and
Euromoney Institutional Investor (Ventures) Limited, previously an indirect investment becoming a direct subsidiary following the transfer of its shares
from Euromoney Canada Finance Limited to the company These changes took place as follows

e In Apnl 2013, the company assigned loans recevable of £108,020,000 with BCA Research, inc to Fantfoot Limited in return for increased
investment in Fantfoot Limited

e nJune 2013, the company received a dwvidend in specie of £261,500,000 from Euromoney Canada Finance Lirmited in return for 100% mvestrment

in Euromoney Institubonal tnvestor (Ventures) Linited which was transferred to the company from Euromoney Canada Finance Limited at book
value

In accordance with UK GAAP, the decrease in investment in Euromoney Canada Finance Limited was matched against the new imvestment in Fantfoot
Lirnited and Euromoney Insttutiona! Investor (Ventures) Limited

Following the restructure an impairment review was carried out during the year on investments held by the company, and investments in Euromoney
Canada Finance Limited were wnitten down by £4,810,000

2012

In Aprif 2012, the company assigned 1ts loan recewvable with BCA Research, Inc to Euromoney Instrtutional Investor {Jersey) Limuted n return for
increased Investment in Euromoney Institutional Investor (Jersey) Limited

Details of the principal subsidiary and assoaated undertakings of the company at September 30 2013 can be found in note 13 to the group accounts
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6 Debtors
2013 2012
£060 £000
Trade debtors 619 532
Amounts owed by DMGT group undertakings 47 2,344
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 18,216 42,268
Other debtors - 165
Deferred tax (note 10) - 148
Prepayments and accrued income 437 335
Corporation tax 169 2,808
19,488 48,600
2013 2012
£000 £000
The above include the following amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 9,238 -

Amounts owed by group undertakings include three loans totalling £18,216,000 (2012 £42,268,000) that bore interest rates of between 1 47% and

10 40% (2012 between 1 56% and 10 40%) and are repayable between February 2014 and September 2018

7 Creditors Amounts falling due within one year

2013 2012

£000 £000

Bank overdrafts - {13,699}
Arounts owed to subsidiary undertakings (78,2006) {114,459}
Accruals and other creditors (59) -
Other taxation and social security (290) 270
Committed loan facility {see note 19 to the group accounts) (20,177) -
Dervative financial instruments (note 14} - {439)
Provisions (note 9) {1,261) -
Loan notes (see note 19 to the group accounts) {1.028) {1,228}
(101,021) (130,095}

All amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are current account balances that are settled on a regular basis As such, the amounts owed to subsidiary

undertakings are interest free and repayable on dermand

Camnaany Arrannte
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Notes to the Company Accounts

continued

8 Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2013 2012
£000 £000
Commutted loan faality (see note 19 to the group accounts) - {43,154)
Derwative financial instruments {note 14) - (206}
Provisions {note 9) (1,041) (1,521}
(1,041} (44,881)
9 Provisions
2013 2012
Dilapidations  Dilapidations
on leasehold on leasehold
properties properties
£000 £000
At October 1 1,521 1,521
Prowision in the year 807 -
Used in the year {26) -
At September 30 2,302 1,521
2013 2012
£000 £000
Matunity profile of provisions
Within one year 1.261 -
Between two and five years 1,041 1,521
2,302 1,521

The provision represents the directors’ best esumate of the amount likely to be payable on expiry of the company’s property leases
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10 Deferred tax
The deferred tax asset at September 30 comprised

2013 2012

£000 £000
Cther short-term timing differences - 148
Movement in deferred tax:
Deferred tax asset at October 1 148 2,212
Deferred tax charge in the profit and loss account - (1.571)
Deferred tax charge to equity {148) (493)
Deferred tax asset at September 30 - 148
A deferred tax asset of £nil {2012 £148,000) has been recogrused in respect of other short-terrn timing differences
11 Share capital

2013 2012

£000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
126,457,324 ordinary shares of 0 25p each (2012 124,349,531 ordinary shares of 0 25p each) 316 311

During the year, 2,107,793 ardinary shares of 0 25p each (2012 3,102,151 ordinary shares) with an aggregate nominal value of £5,270 (2012 £7,755)
were 1ssued as foliows 2,107,793 ordinary shares (2012 720,741t ordinary shares) following the exercise of share options granted under the company's
share option schemes for a cash consideration of £2,228,590 (2012 £1,058,834) In addition, last year 2,381,410 shares were issued under the
company’s 2009 scrip dividend alternative for a cash consideration of £nil There was no scrip dividend alternatwe offered in 2013

12 Share-based payments

An explanation of the company’s share-based payment arrangements is set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 49 to 73 The number
of shares under option, the fair value per option granted and the assumptions used to determine therr values is given In note 23 to the group accounts
Their dilutive effect on the number of weighted average shares of the company s giver in note 10 to the group accounts

Share option schemes

The executive and Save as You Earn (SAYE) Options were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pnong model Expected volatlity was determined by
calculating the histoncal volatility of the group's share price over a three year peniod The executive options’ farr values have been discounted at a rate
of 10% to reflect ther performance conditions The expected term of the option used In the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exerase restrictions and behavioural considerations The charge recogrised tn the year in respect of these
options was £96,000 (2012 £97,000) Details of the executive and SAYE options are set out in note 23 1o the group accounts

famnanyv Arrountc
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Notes to the Company Accounts
continued

12 Share-based payments contimnued

Capital Appreciation Plan 2004 (CAP 2004)

CAP 2004 options were valued using a farr value model that adjusted the share price at the date of grant for the net present value of expected future
dividend streams up 1o the date of expected exercise The expected term of the option used in the models has been adjusted, based on management's
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exerase restrictions and behavioural considerations The share-based charge in the year for the CAP
2004 options was £nil (2012 credst £1,809,000} Detalls of the CAP 2004 options are set out in note 23 to the group accounts

Capital Appreciation Plan 2010 (CAP 2010) and Company Share Opuon Plan 2010 (CSOP 2010)

The CAP 2010 and CSOP 2010 options were valued using a fair value model that adjusted the share price at the date of grant for the net present value
of expected future dmdend streams up to the date of expected exeraise The expected term of the option used in the models has been adjusted, based
on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrichions and behavioural considerations The share-based expense
recogrused in the year for the CAP 2010 and CSOP 2010 options was £ml (2312 £nil) Details of the CAP 2010 and CSOP 2010 options are set outin
note 23 to the group accounts (excludes ISI and cash-settled options)

There 15 no cost or hability for the cash element of the CAP 2010 option scheme These are borne by the company’s subsidiary undertakings

A reconciiation of the options outstanding at September 30 2013 15 detaded 1n note 23 to the group accounts

13 Commitments and contingent liability

At September 30 the company has committed to make the following payments in respect of operating leases on land and buildings

2013 2012
£000 £000

Operating leases which expire
Within one year 673 -
Between two and five years 12 690
Over five years 888 242
1,573 932

Cross-guarantee
The company, together with the ultimate parent company and certain other companies in the Euromoney institutional Investor PLC group, have given
an unhmited cross-guarantee in favour of its bankers

14 Finanaal Instruments

Dernvative financial Instruments
The denvative financial assets/(labilties) at September 30 comprised

2013 2012
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
£000 £000 £000 £000
Interest rate swaps - - - (645)
Current portion - - - {439)
Non-current portion - - - {208)

There were no dervatives outstanding at the balance sheet date
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14 Financial Instruments continued

In 2012 the company held all the Interest rate swaps for the group and full detarls regarding these can be found in note 18 to the group accounts

Hedge of net investment in foreign entity

The company has S dollar denominated borrowings which 1t has designated as a hedge of the net investment of its subsidianes which have US
dollars as their functional currency The change in fair value of these hedges resulted in an increased hability of £2,445,000 (2012 decrease in llability
of £1,888,000) which has been deferred in reserves where 1t 15 offset by the translation of the related investment and will only be recognised in the
company’s profit and loss account if the related investment 1s sold There are no differences in these hedges charged to the profit and loss account in
the current and prior year

Fair values of non-derivative financial assets and financal habtlities
Where market values are not available, fair values of financial assets and financial labilitres have been calculated by discounting expected future cash
flows at prevailing interest rates and by applying year end exchange rates The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings approximate the book value

15 Reserves
Reserve
for
Capital share-
Share redemp- based Fair  Profit
Share premium  Other tion <Capstal Own pay- value and loss
capital account reserve reserve reserve shares ments reserve account  Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At September 30 2011 303 82,124 64,981 8 1,842 (74) 33,725 (261) 671,166 853,814
Retained profit for the year - - - - - - - - 9,579 9,579
Change in fair value of cash flow hedges - - - - - - - 1,977 - 1,977
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - - (493) - (493)
Credit for share-based payments - - - - - - 2,330 - - 2,330
Scrip/cash divdends paid 6 16,304 - - - - - - (23,794) (7,484)
Exercise of share options 2 1,057 - - - - - - - 1,059
At September 30 2012 311 99,485 64,981 8 1.842 (74) 36,055 1,223 656,951 860,782
Retained profit for the year - - - - - - - - 18,320 18,320
Change in farr value of cash flow hedges - - - - - - - 283 - 283
Tax on items taken directly to equity - - - - - - - (148) - {148}
Credit for share-based payments - - - - - - 1,067 - - 1,067
Cash dividends paid - - - - - - - - (27,157) (27.157)
Exercise of share options 5 2,224 - - - - - - - 2,229
At September 30 2013 316 101,709 64,981 8 1,842 (74) 37,122 1,358 648,114 855,376

The investment in own shares is held by the Euromoney Employees’ Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) At September 30 2013 the ESOT held 58,976 shares
(2012 58,976 shares) carned at a histonc cost of £1 25 per share with a market value of £684,000 (2012 £454,000) The trust wawved the rights to
receve dividends Interest and admimistrative costs are charged 1o the profit and loss account of the ESOT as incurred

The other reserve represents the share premium ansing on the shares issued for the purchase of Metal Bufletin plc In Cctober 2006
Of the reserves above, £37,122,000 (2012 £36,055,000) of the hability for share-based payments and £544,935,000 (2012 £575,168,000) of the

profit and loss account 15 distnbutable to equity shareholders of the company The remaining balance of £103,175,000 (2012 £81,783,000) 15 not
distributable

Comnanv Areniinte
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Notes to the Company Accounts
continued

16 Reconcahiation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds

2013 2012

£000 £000

Profit for the finanaal year indusive of dividends 18,320 9,579
Dividends pard (27,157) (23,794)
(8,837) (14,215)

Issue of shares 2,229 17,369
Change In fair value of cash flow hedges 283 1,977
Tax on items taken directly to equity {148) (493}
Credit to equity for share-based payments 1,067 2,330
Net (decrease)/increase in equity shareholders’ funds (5,406) 6,968
Opening equity shareholders' funds 860,782 853,814
Closing equity shareholders’ funds 855,376 860,782

17 Related party transactions
Related party transactions and halances are detailed below

() The company had borrowings under a U$$300 millien mult-currency faclity with DMGRH Finance Limited, a fellow group company {note 19 to
the group accounts)

2013 2013 2012 2012

ussooo £000 uUs$000 £000

Amounts owing under US$ faclity at September 30 34,782 21,478 62,381 38,631
Amounts owing under GBP facility at September 30 - - - 4,523
Amounts due under current account facility at September 30 (2,108) (1,301) - ~
20,177 43,154

Commitment fee on unused portion of the avallable facility for the year = 856 - 6518

() At September 30, the company had fixed rate interest rate swaps outstanding with Dally Mail and General Holdings Limited {DMGH), a fellow
group company, as follows

2013 2013 2012 2012
Uss000 £000 Us$000 £000
US$ fixed rate interest rate swaps
(2012 Interest rates between 2 5% and 5 4% and termination dates
March 28 2013 and September 30 2013) - - 40,000 24,771

GBP fixed rate interest rate swaps
(2012 Interest rate of 2 6% and termunation date of March 28 2013) - - - 5,000
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17 Related party transactions continued
Dunng the year the group pad interest to DMGH and related companies in respect of interest rate swaps as follows
2013 2013 2012 2012
Us$000 £000 usiooo £000
US$ interest paid 963 617 2,353 1,488
GBP interest paid - 50 - 504

() During the year the group received a dmvdend of £268,000 (2012 £291,000) from Caprtal NET Limited, an associate of the company

18 Post balance sheet event

The directors propese a final dividend of 15 75p per share (2012 14 75p) totalling £19,917,000 (2012 £18,342,000) for the year ended September
30 2013 subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting to be held on January 30 2014 in accordance with FRS 21 "Events after the Balance Sheet
Date’, these finanaal statements do not reflect this dvidend payable but will be accounted for in shareholders’ equity as an appropriation of retained
earnings I the year ending September 30 2014 Duning 2913, a final dwidend of 14 75p (2012 12 50p) per share totalling £18,342,000 (2012

£15,162,000) was paid in respect of the dividend declared far the year ended September 30 2012

19 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The directors regard the ultimate parent undertaking as Rothermere Continuation Limited, which 1s incorporated in Bermuda The ultimate controlling
party 1s The Viscount Rothermere The largest and smallest group of which the company 1s a member and for which group accounts are drawn up
is that of Dally Mail and General Trust plc, incorporated In Great Britain and registered in England and Wales Copies of its report and accounts are
available from

The Company Secretary

Daily Mail and General Trust pic
Northchffe House, 2 Derry Street
London W8 5T7

www dmagt co uk
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Five Year Record

Consolidated Income Statement Extracts

2009 2010 20M 2012 2013
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Total revenue 317,594 330,006 363,142 394,144 404,704

Operating profit before acquired intangrtble amortisation,

long-term mcentive expense and exceptional items 79,447 100,057 108,967 118,175 121,088

Acquired intangible amortisation (15,891) (13,671) (12221) (14,782) {15,890)

Long-term incentive expense (2,697) (4,364) (9.491) (6,301) {2,100)

Additional accelerated long-term incentive expense - - {6,603) - -

Exceptional items {33.901) (228) {3,295} {1,617} 2,232
Operating profit before associates 26,958 81,794 77,357 95,475 105,330
Share of results In associates 219 281 408 459 284
Operating profit 27,177 82,075 77.765 95,934 105,614
MNet finance costs (44,538) {10,651) {9,568) (3,566} (10,354)
Profit/(loss) before tax (17,361} 71,424 68,197 92,368 95,260
Tax {expenselcredit on profit/loss) 10,412 {12,839) (22,527) (22,528) {22,235)
Profit/(loss) after tax from continuing operations (6,949) 58,585 45,670 69,840 73,025
profit from discontinued operations 1,207 - - - -
Profit/(loss) for the year (5,742) 58,585 45,670 69,840 73,025
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent {6,287} 58,105 45,591 69,672 72,623
Equity non-controlling interests 545 480 79 168 402
Profit/(loss) for the year {5,742} 58,585 45,670 69,840 73,025
Basic earnings/loss) per share (6 83)p 50 04p 3302p 56 74p 57 88p
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (6 67)p 49 47p 37 34p 5517p 56 70p
Adjusted diluted earrings per share 40 39p 53 50p 56 05p 65 9tp 70 96p
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares 112,372,620 117,451,228 122,112,168 126,290,412 128,077,588
Dividend per share 14 00p 18 00p 18 75p 21 75p 22 75p
Consohdated Statement of Financial Position Extracts
Intangble assets 425,648 422,707 490,042 469,308 505,613
Non-current assets 39,002 40,921 33,824 26,357 23,255
Accruals (46,972) (45,473) (56,249) (54,170} (48,381)
Deferred income hability (82,599) (93,740) (105,507) (105,106) {117,296)
Other net current assets/(labilities) (16,642) 21,962 (12,304) 32,151 16,616
Naon-current iabilities (213,446) (176,894) {124,231) (80,616) (46,048)

Net assets 104,991 169,483 225,575 287,924 333,75%
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Financial Calendar and Shareholder Information

2013 final results announcement
Finai dividend ex dividend date
Final dividend record date

Interim management statement

2014 AGM {approval of final dividend and remuneration policy)

Payment of final dividend

2014 \nterim results announcement
Intenm dividend ex-dividend date
Interim dividend record date
Payment of 2014 interim dividend
Interim management statement
2014 final results announcement

Loan note interest paid to holders of loan notes on

* Provisional dates and are subject to change

Shareholder enquiries

Administrative enguiries about a holding of Euromoney Institutional
investor PLC shares should be directed i the first instance to the

company’s registrar whose address 1s

Equinity
Aspect House
Spencer Road
Lanaing

West Sussex
BN99 6DA

Telephone 0871 384 2951 {calls cost 8p per rminute plus network extras

Lines open 8 30am to 5 30pm, Monday to Friday)
Overseas Telephone (00} 44 121 415 0246

A number of facilities are available to shareholders through the secure

online site wwwyshareview,co.uk including

— Viewing holdings and obtaining an indicative value,
— Notifying a change of address,

Playhouse Yard

Thursday Novermnber 14 2013
Wednesday November 20 2013
Friday November 22 2013
Thursday January 302014
Thursday January 30 2014
Thursday February 13 2014
Thursday May 15 2014*
Wednesday May 21 2014~
Friday May 23 2014*
Thursday June 19 2014~
Thursday July 24 2014*
Thursday November 20 2014+

Tuesday December 31 2013
Monday June 30 2014

— Requesting receipt of shareholder communications by emall rather
than by post,

— Viewing dvidend payment history, and

— Making dividend payment choices

Loan note redemption information

Loan notes can be redeemed twice a year on the Interest payment dates
above by depositing the Notice of Repayment printed on the Loan Note
Certificate at the company’s registered office At jeast 20 business days’
written notice prior to the redemption date 1s required

Registered office

Qther




Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC
164 www euromoneyplc com

Shareholder Notes




www.euromoneyplc.com

Euromoney Institutional Investor pLC
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